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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) et
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
(Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer) Mot 2
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Co-Chief Executive Officer) Mot
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 8BS /P

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 88s jp (Chairman)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp (Chairman)

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 8Bs jp
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Mr. Au In Kee, Adam

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Au In Kee, Adam

Notes:

1. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong retired as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1
January 2023.

2. Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael was appointed as Vice Chairman and Co-Chief

Executive Officer with effect from 1 January 2023.

3. Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen was appointed as Co-Chief Executive
Officer and ceased to be Managing Director, both with effect from 1
January 2023.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

For the year ended/

As at 30 June

BE6AALEE
R6A30H
2023 2022 Increase/(decrease)
2023F  2022%F #2m, ORd)
(A) Operating results (HK$’000) A) REx&ZE(TET)
Continuing operations: FBREER
Revenue A 727,167 665,859 61,308 9%
EBITDAt 2 AReFALE - BiIA
I & K 55 A RO
| g (Hata) 170,533 167,130 3,403 2%
Profit for the year FRNE 55,735 75,231 (19,496) (26%)
Profit attributable to RRARER ANEIS
Owners of the Company ZAIDES|
— From continuing operations —REFHELEETE 60,452 70,502  (10,050) (14%)
— From discontinued operation —REBERILEKE
X% - 1,666 (1,666) (100%)
Total S 60,452 72,168  (11,716) (16%)
(B) Per share data (HK cents) (B) #BREHE GGBL)
Earnings per share — basic ERABF-ER 7.65 9.34 (1.69) (18%)
Earnings per share — diluted BRAEN-#8 7.65 9.33 1.68) (18%)
Dividends per share RS
— Proposed final —# R R EA 3.00 3.00 — =
~ Paid interim —EfFH 1.70 1.50 0.20 13%
Total st 4.70 4.50 0.20 4%
(C) Key ratios (%) (C) EELE(%)
EBITDA/Revenue — continuing RETFIE - R -
operations rE REHATA
R A —FE
RS 23% 25% (2% points & %)
Net profit margin fb R R 8% 1% (3% points & %)
Return on shareholders’ funds % 3R A 2% [B] 7R =R 8% 10% (2% points 57 &)
(D) Financial Position (HK$'000) (D) BA&MR (F#7T)
Cash, bank balances and Be - RITEHRK
deposits F& 290,495 238,120 52,375 22%
Net current assets mEEEFE 224,413 238,336 (13.923) (6%)
Shareholders’ funds A% 5 A =R 740,547 698,653 41,894 6%

Note a: EBITDA represented profit for the year

from continuing operations

Fi3ta :

REFFE - BB EREBHATNAMERLE

before interest income, finance cost, income tax expense and

depreciation and amortisation.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
BMBERE

Basic EPS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present UMP’s annual report, chronicling our
progress during a challenging yet transformative year for the
industry.

The pandemic’s impact has slowly abated as masks come off
and travel resumes. However, healthcare staffing shortages in
the industry remain pressing. The Hong Kong government’s
strong support for fundamental healthcare measures to address
these needs is very encouraging. Post-pandemic, increased
cross-boundary activities may allow us to expand our integrated
care services to serve more patients. As regional networks become
ever more interconnected, UMP remains committed to furnishing
comprehensive, coordinated care for all.

HIGHLIGHTS

In fiscal year 2023, | am glad to report UMP’s overall revenue rose
year-over-year, led by our clinical services, aligning with broader
economic recovery trends. Revenue of our Hong Kong and Macau
clinics was impacted in the short-term by strategic investments in
new imaging facilities. However, we believe these investments laid
the groundwork for future growth. Despite lockdowns in the first
half of the year, our Mainland China business saw significant profit
growth, with the second half rebounding remarkably in revenue,
profit, and patient visits. Our corporate solutions division also saw
increased operating profit. Our balance sheet remained healthy in
terms of liquidity to support ongoing expansion goals. | commend

our team for exhibiting resilience throughout the health care crisis.

This year, we formed strategic partnerships with several prestigious
Hong Kong medical groups and institutions, reinforcing UMP’s
leadership and shared vision to cultivate an enriched healthcare
ecosystem to serve the public. These collaborations will furnish
patients with seamless, coordinated and cross-regional care by
combining our specialized expertise, extensive networks, and
innovative technologies. These partnerships also leverage collective
resources to elevate service standards and help promote community
healthcare access. The Board and | believe that these partnerships
help solidify UMP’s position to achieve our goal of redefining care
and population health for the communities we serve.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

TRANSITION & GOVERNANCE

After decades of service, | stepped down as CEO, welcoming new
leadership. Appointing Dr. Michael Sun and Ms. Jacquen Kwok as
Co-CEOs strategically utilizes their medical and business acumen,
excellently positioning UMP to expand our network in Hong Kong
and Mainland China while maintaining our high clinical standards
and quality of care. Dr. Michael Sun is now the Vice Chairman,
promoting knowledge sharing through effective organizational
management. | have full confidence in their ability to make informed
decisions and achieve their quality care goals.

With the help of our new leadership, UMP also prioritizes robust
ESG practices. Our Quality Assurance Committee, comprising
seasoned medical professionals, ensures capable clinical governance
across our facilities. We prioritize employee development through
training and support diversity and inclusion. We address social
concerns and assist underserved communities through charity and
community health projects.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES & OUTLOOK

UMP has long valued preventive care and primary care. The
government’s emphasis on public health encourages public-private
collaboration to maximize community benefit through a
multidisciplinary approach. We are also expanding our Mainland
China networks to meet rising demand. Investing in innovative
technologies like Al aims to enhance our services, clinical
outcomes and efficiency. Favorable regulations and rising demand
give me confidence in UMP’s outlook as we focus on executing
value-optimization initiatives under the guidance of the Board and

management.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

In closing, our stakeholders’ faith and support have been
instrumental to UMP’s development. Through meticulous
innovation, cordial collaboration and diligent ESG management, |
believe we can strengthen our service, elevate standards and create
long-term value. | look forward to this next chapter as we continue
serving and dedicating ourselves to those we are honored to serve.
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

As we present our inaugural annual report since being appointed,
we want to start by recognizing Dr. YK Sun’s outstanding leadership
as CEO since UMP’s public listing in 2015. Over the past decade,
Dr. Sun spearheaded UMP’s transformation into an integrated
medical network with a vision to provide coordinated care
accessible by the wider public. Through both his medical expertise
and foresight in developing partnerships, Dr. Sun established UMP’s
reputation as an innovative healthcare solutions provider. We are
deeply grateful for the strong foundation he has built, which now
propels us to advance UMP into its next growth phase.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Despite macroeconomic uncertainties over the last year, our
core business displayed tremendous resilience. During periods
of movement restrictions, demand for services initially slowed
as certain new centers openings were delayed due to lockdown
measures. However, as restrictions were lifted, patient volumes
began stabilizing and trending upwards as our expanded facilities
launched to meet rising demand. This recovery phase remains
underway. Overall, our integrated service strategy helped cushion

volatility and created a solid foundation for future growth.

Another bright spot was our Mainland China operations, which
delivered outstanding results amidst the turbulent environment.
Revenue grew 19% compared to the previous year thanks to robust
performance in major cities. This underscores the depth of demand

for our services in the region.

Moreover, areas serving outbound travel also displayed encouraging
bounce-backs. Our dental and dermatology clinics in Hong Kong
and visa medical examination business in China rebounded
significantly following the easing of public health controls. This
demonstrates how our core offerings adapted swiftly as restrictions
eased.

CO-CEOs’ REPORT
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CO-CEOs’ REPORT
BETRERERSE

UPCOMING PRIORITIES

Having recently completed a strategic expansion phase, we now
focus on integration efforts to optimize synergies. Multiple new
clinics and centers were established over the last three years to
expand our coverage footprint. As these service points become fully
operational, we are streamlining inter-business processes through
a digital transformation program. This will enhance the customer
experience across all touchpoints with the aid of online scheduling,
electronic health records, and new payment solutions.

Another objective is to strengthen interconnectivity among our
divisions to allow seamless and coordinated referrals and follow-up,
and optimized use of collective capacity and partnerships. This
creates a true patient-centric experience while improving resource

efficiency.

As one of the few integrated providers offering third-party
administration (TPA) and medical services together, we are uniquely
positioned to deliver cost-effective healthcare programs tailored to
payers’ needs. The Voluntary Health Insurance Scheme initiated by
the Hong Kong government aims to increase individual healthcare
protection, which is expected to further drive private market
demand. Leveraging our expertise and networks, we see significant
potential to capture this growing commercial market for workplace
health benefits and individual medical cost management programs.

Our balance sheet reflects capital investments made to establish
strategic assets that position UMP for continued growth. Significant
investments were directed towards facilities, technology, and
talent recruitment last year. While weighing on short-term profits,
these investments have established high-quality infrastructure
crucial for service expansion, innovation, and market penetration
in coming fiscal periods. With a robust capital structure, we are

well-positioned to capitalize on new opportunities.
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OUR LEADERSHIP APPROACH

As the new leadership team, we are committed to UMP’s vision,
leveraging our business philosophy, and building upon decades of
dedication to preventive and value-driven care. In the coming year,
we will concentrate on four priorities: expanding network reach
by deepening key city and service presence; elevating operational
excellence through talent empowerment and quality initiatives;
powering innovation through targeted R&D and partnerships; and
replicating successes across the Greater China and Asia region
through strategic partnership building.

We have also established strategic partnerships with reputable
medical groups and institutions to enhance our service capabilities
and extend our reach. These collaborations allow us to tap into
specialized expertise, leverage each other's strengths, and create
seamless referral channels and synergies within our ecosystem.

One of our key objectives is for UMP to be recognized among
corporate and insurance clients as the one-stop comprehensive
solution for their healthcare needs. By executing integrated care
models, preventive solutions, and public-private programs, we aim
to become the new standard in the private healthcare market in
terms of accessibility and service excellence.

Through a collaborative leadership style focused on accountability,
adaptability and empowerment, we aspire to maximize competitive
differentiation in a rapidly changing industry.

We thank our other Board members and shareholders for their
ongoing support and confidence as we work to realize our ambitious
goals. We also extend our heartfelt gratitude to the entire UMP
staff for their unwavering dedication, hard work, and invaluable
contributions to the company's success. With UMP’s exceptional
team’s dedication, we are confident in achieving new milestones

that will strengthen community wellbeing for years to come.

Michael SUN & X B
Co-CEO H /7T A2
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OUR BUSINESS

UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines:

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the
design and administration of tailored healthcare benefits
plans for its Contract Customers. The extension of third party
administration service to our insurance company clients is
an important offering among UMP’s corporate healthcare
solutions. UMP aims to provide convenient, reliable,
coordinated, comprehensive and affordable healthcare services
through the well-established and multi-specialties UMP
Network. As at 30 June 2023, the UMP Network comprises
over 1,000 points of services located across Hong Kong and
Macau.

The Group’s Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance
companies, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their policyholders or employees
of their policyholders and (ii) corporations, which enter
into contracts with the Group for healthcare services for
their employees and/or their dependants. When designing
healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates closely with
the Contract Customers and designs and refines corporate
healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or
occupational health-related concerns, scope of healthcare
benefits desired, employee demographic as well as their

budget.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

UMP provides medical and dental services, medical imaging
and laboratory services and other auxiliary medical services
to Self-paid Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i)
general practice services, which serves as the first point of
contact for the patients and (ii) specialist services covering
more than 20 different specialties. For dental services, UMP
provides both primary dental care and secondary dental care
such as dental implants.

Medical imaging and laboratory services are an integral part
of medical and healthcare. UMP, through its ProCare medical
group, provides one-stop and comprehensive imaging and
laboratory services. Equipped with many advanced imaging
equipment and testing facilities including PET-CT, MRI, CT
Scan, ultrasound, mammography and X-ray, we provide
extensive and reliable medical diagnosis and laboratory
services. UMP can provide a wide range of imaging and
laboratory services at our own laboratory, including
haematology, immunology, microbiology, molecular biology,
cytology, and histology, as well as urinalysis, stool analysis,
allergy test and drug test. As at 30 June 2023, the Group
invests and/or operates a total of 12 advanced imaging and
laboratory centres, including its own registered laboratory, in

Hong Kong.

For other auxiliary medical services, UMP provides services

such as physiotherapy and vision care.

Mainland China Clinical Healthcare Services

Our Mainland China Clinical Healthcare Services currently
consists of (i) health check-up business and (ii) selected
outpatient services such as family medicine within the clinics

we own and operate.

EEENWmE DM

= B IR P R PR B AR AR 2 AR A%
REBBREEBEREEREN TR
% BEZERCRRGAREMEE
BERYG - BERELIE  BaBEBIE
HOEMERRY - SRENEERE
B RGDVERRT - BEBEB20ETR
B FRRBOE - BABBIRMHE
AIMERRE _EARER (fIWE
7F) e

B2 RtEBRELETEBNT
AT SkERAERK o - A BRI E TR
EEEE RE—BARZEANEER
L3R - RPIEEZBEENTER
ERARSZNE  PREETEKEER
o O EIRKE - BIKETERE - 8
B ?L)%f&%&x% CREEZmA
SENBEEDEH RERRE - BABEA
L/(EEEE’HK%’LJET?E%/ZE’J 2 95Xe
BRS BRELEE  £FE . MEYD
B.OTEYE . ARSRAKE -
BB - HEDHT - BRI R
PRI o 722023F6 4308 - AEEE
EBHRER S E12HEENT R
AL O - BIEEEM(EERET o

Htmp B RER%G T m - Be BB REM
IR E B IA R R B IR F RS o

Bl P it B PR B R R 2 AR AS

T APT &Y o B P 2t B K B8 R AR AR A% B A
BREOBRER  R>NVERMESR K
NP AREETEMZ RS (WKRE
BER%) -

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

During FY2023, following the increase in vaccination coverage, the
changes in people’s lifestyles and the gradual lifting of pandemic
control measures in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, many
businesses and social activities have gradually recovered. During
the year under review, our Group strived to focus on our principal
businesses to maintain stability in our performance. Meanwhile, we
continued to refine our business and development strategies to boost
our competitive strength and improve our operational efficiency.

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution Services
Revenue for this business line marginally increased by 3.9% from
HK$237.0 million for FY2022 to HK$246.2 million for FY2023
(before inter-segment elimination) and our operating profit for
this business line increased by 27.5% from HK$35.3 million for
FY2022 to HK$45.0 million for FY2023. The increase was mainly
attributable to improving customer base and overall profit margins
from our corporate healthcare solution products.

Hong Kong and Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution Services is
one of our core business lines. Through our professional knowledge
and extensive medical service network, we have designed, provided
and administered comprehensive and cost-effective healthcare
solutions for different local and international companies, insurance

companies and insurance brokerage companies.

Our extensive and long-term relationship with our customers and
service providers has established a strong and stable customer base.
During FY2023, this business line continued its momentum and
reported a positive contribution to the Group, maintaining a steady
growth in revenue and profits.

To reinforce the Group’s development in Hong Kong and Macau

Corporate Healthcare Solution Services, we have been making effort
on the following during the year under review:
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Provision of premium healthcare services in UMP+
centres in Central

In July 2022, our new multi-floor medical facilities “UMP+
& Pedder Health” at One Chinachem Central (“OCC”) in
Central were launched to provide comprehensive medical and
imaging services. Such development strengthens our provision
of comprehensive, competitive and value-added healthcare
solution services to our corporate customers. Moreover, it
broadens our service package and will improve our overall
revenue and gross profit margins of the Group.

Provision of Third Party Administration (“TPA”) service
to FTLife and expand cashless treatment coverage for
scheme members

In October 2022, the Group has entered into an agreement
with FTLife Insurance Company Limited (“FTLife”) in respect of
the provision and administration of the medical services by the
Group to the insured, policyholders and their respective family
members (the “FTLife TPA Agreement”).

The FTLife TPA Agreement provides FTLife individual medical
insurance scheme members with a series of cashless treatments
with pre-approval by network doctors. The approved
arrangements will be payment- and claims-form-free so that
patients can receive timely and high-quality medical services,
with comprehensive protection and less financial burden and

psychological stress during treatment.

This new service agreement with FTLife is UMP’s first
customised healthcare solution for individual scheme
customers of an insurance company, further intensifying
the collaboration model of “Medical+Insurance” and
speeding up our development of healthcare solution

business-to-business-to-consumer (B2B2C) market.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 1 October 2022, 7 October 2022 and
16 March 2023 and circular dated 24 April 2023.

()

(i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

(iii) Exploring and establishing strategic alliances
During the year under review, the Group has proactively
liaised with certain reputable medical providers and
established different forms of valuable strategic and

commercial alliances.

These collaborations and strategic cooperations will bring in
more business opportunities, which are expected to result in
increased revenue momentum for our business. Such potential
and established strategic alliances would also improve
our service spectrum and packages, enhancing our service
comprehensiveness and value. These strategic alliances will be
a positive driving force and provide competitive advantage for
our corporate healthcare solution business.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line increased by 12.5% from HK$500.4
million for FY2022 to HK$562.8 million for FY2023 (before
inter-segment elimination), of which HK$157.0 million was derived
from our medical imaging and laboratory services for FY2023
(before inter-segment elimination) (FY2022: HK$147.3 million).
Our extensive clinical chains have been developed over the years,
which support our corporate healthcare solution service unit and,
on the other hand, serve walk-in patients. During FY2023, social
life has gradually returned to normal following the gradual lifting of
pandemic control measures in Hong Kong and Macau. The demand
for our clinical healthcare services increased, resulting in an overall
increase in revenue from the provision of clinical healthcare services
in Hong Kong and Macau for FY2023.

Our operating profit for this business line decreased by 53.3%
from HK$68.6 million for FY2022 to HK$32.0 million for FY2023.
This is mainly attributable to the (i) significant initial operating
expenses, including depreciation of right-of-use assets, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and property rental and related
expenses for the new medical and imaging centres; (ii) increase in
staff costs arising from expansion in the clinical medical team which
was in line with our development plan of medical and imaging
facilities; and (iii) partially offset by the increase in operating profit
from body health check services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During FY2023, the Group continued to seize opportunities arising

from increasing demand for our health check-ups and medical

imaging services resulting from the increase in healthcare awareness

and the aging population, together with emigration and overseas

studying. The Group made the following progress during the year

under review:

(i) Commencement of business of new medical and
imaging centres in Central, Tsim Sha Tsui and Admiralty

(a)

The new multi-floor medical facilities “UMP+ & Pedder
Health” at OCC in Central started to operate since
July 2022. The centres are operated in conjunction
with Pedder Healthcare Group, a private healthcare
group in Hong Kong formed by a team of professional
physicians and surgeons. Together we offer a range
of medical services, including oncology, day surgery,
diagnostic imaging, general and specialist consultations,
vaccination, physiotherapy and various preventive health
check-ups.

A new integrated imaging centre at 26 Nathan Road in
Tsim Sha Tsui (“26 Nathan Road”) started to operate
in February 2023 to provide medical imaging services
including but not limited to CT Scan, MRI, bone density
scan, Mammogram and X-ray services (“ProCare Imaging
Centre - TST”).

26 Nathan Road is a multi-functional building with many
medical specialties and surgical practices as tenants.
ProCare Imaging Centre — TST is situated at a strategically
convenient location to serve and provide quality imaging
and laboratory services to the medical specialties and
surgical practices in the same building and district.
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() A new PET-CT imaging centre at the Bank of America
Tower in Admiralty, with a brand-new digital PET-CT
scanner installed, started to operate in June 2023.

PET-CT imaging is a type of nuclear medicine imaging
that uses radiotracers to diagnose various types of clinical
conditions accurately. This non-invasive examination
is used for cancer and heart disease diagnosis and
is especially important in cancer treatment. PET-CT
scanning helps to facilitate early cancer diagnosis, staging
and treatment response assessment. However, due to
the unique requirements for installing PET-CT imaging
facilities, PET-CT scanning services are not widely
available in the Hong Kong market.

For the abovementioned new centres, certain significant initial
rental charge and depreciation charge during the renovation,
installation and licenses application period and initial
operating stage amounted to approximately HK$31.1 million
were recognised for the year ended 30 June 2023. These new
centres have been gradually ramping up and have started
to provide positive revenue contribution. With increased
operational efficiency, we anticipate an improvement in the

Group’s financial performance.

The Group is optimistic about the growing demand for private
imaging and laboratory services. We expect the new imaging
centres will strengthen our imaging and laboratory capability
and act as one of the key driving forces to the revenue growth

and business development of the Group.
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(ii)

(iii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Cooperation with Humansa

In October 2022, SkinCentral, our Group’s dermatology
centre, entered into a service agreement with Humansa, a
New World Group healthcare brand, under which SkinCentral
provides professional dermatology and aesthetics services at
HumansaeVictoria Dockside Flagship in Tsim Sha Tsui.

Entering into this service agreement further strengthens our
strategic cooperation with other premium health and wellness
brand such as Humansa and the New World Group. Humansa
is focusing on building a ground-breaking health and wellness
ecosystem across the Greater Bay Area, which will benefit our
future business development in the same area.

Purchase of medical imaging equipment

In response to the increasing demand for health check-ups
and medical imaging services due to the aging population and
increased health awareness generally, the Group has been
focusing on precision and preventive medicine as our core
services and actively expanding our advanced medical imaging

and laboratory services.

To cope with our increasing medical imaging service
points, purchasing medical equipment is an important part
of the capital investment in the medical imaging business
development.

In August 2022, the Group has entered into a series of
purchase contracts for new medical imaging equipment. The
purchase covered the ordering and purchase of advanced and
powerful imaging machineries including but not limited to the
CT machine, MRI machine, PET-CT machine and their relevant
auxiliary supporting systems. The capital expenditure is in line
with the Group’s overall strategic development in the medical
imaging business and is expected to provide a positive return
to the Group. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 31 August 2022 and 6 September 2022.

(i)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

(iv) New integrated imaging centre in Causeway Bay
In July 2023, the Group and a private hospital group leased
the 26th floor of Lee Garden Two in Causeway Bay to operate
a new one-stop multi-service medical centre. Together
we offer a range of medical services, where the Group is
mainly responsible for providing medical imaging services
including but not limited to CT Scan, MRI, bone density scan,

mammogram and X-ray services.

Due to increasing public health awareness and high demand
for healthcare services by an aging population in Hong Kong,
the demand for comprehensive medical services, high-end
medical imaging and health check services and other ancillary
medical services remain strong. The Group believes that
the collaboration with the private hospital group will create
synergistic effects in the operation of clinical network and
drive our operating profit.

The site is under renovation and is expected to open in the first
quarter of 2024.

Although some of the aforementioned developments required high
initial capital investments due to the nature of the business, the
Board believes that establishing these foundations will provide
the Group with a solid platform for sustainable growth. Moreover,
the Group’s customer base will be strengthened and synergistic
contributions will be created, promoting to the overall growth in the
healthcare business and yielding long-term returns.

Mainland China Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line increased by 18.8% from HK$37.6
million for FY2022 to HK$44.7 million for FY2023 (before
inter-segment elimination) and our operating profit for this business
line increased by 994.7% from HK$1.5 million for FY2022 to
HK$16.8 million for FY2023. Such growth was primarily due to
the increase in (i) number of health check-ups; and (ii) operation

efficiency and effective cost control.

Medical service teams in Mainland China principally provide
healthcare check-up services and selected outpatient family medical
services mainly in Beijing and Shanghai. Driven by a massive
demand for quality healthcare services in Mainland China, the
performance of the Mainland China clinical healthcare business
maintained momentum and reported an encouraging growing result
for FY2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

First Innovation Centre for Healthcare Technology

UMP believes in the use of advanced technology in the healthcare
industry. The Group supports the development of advanced medical
application technology and the exchange of scientific research
knowledge and experience among all relevant industry players. In
light of this, we launched UMP Healthcare Innov Centre (“Innov
Centre”) on 1 November 2022 at the UMP’s headquarters at Wing
On House. Innov Centre is the first permanent medical technology
centre in Hong Kong to showcase the latest medical technology and

products.

We believe that the Innov Centre will become an attractive
hotspot to display the latest advanced technology. The support
of various advanced medical equipment industry players and
medical technology developers will facilitate related research and
development projects to be commercialised. We hope that the
advanced medical devices and solutions displayed in the Innov
Centre will be further applied in actual medical settings, which will
benefit the industry and the public at large.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

The following table sets out the revenue, operating profit and
number of visits by our business lines for FY2023 and FY2022 for

comparison:

Revenue by business lines

BEBERE| 7 B)RA

JE R EBRIA
o :

Year ended 30 June

TRE:TFAFTR2023F BEFE %20228 B4
A5 Ko mh 22 IR B A it

BZ6HA30BLFE
2023 2022 Increase/(decrease)
20234 20224 2,/ i)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FExT FAT FAT ERalsd
Continuing operations: FREREXER:
Hong Kong & Macau: BERREFT -
Corporate Healthcare EERERRRERER
Solution Services 7 ER 246,225 236,976 9,249 3.9%
Clinical Healthcare E& IR B8 R fi2 AR 75
Services 562,774 500,419 62,355 12.5%
Mainland China: i B A 4
Clinical Healthcare F& IR B8 (R fi2 R 75
Services 44,657 37,589 7,068 18.8%
Total revenue from continuing EBKRBEHNHEEEEH
operations before BFESEEBRASH
elimination of inter-service
units sales 853,656 774,984 78,672 10.2%
Reconciliation: FEED
Elimination of inter-business B EEEEEE
lines sales (126,489) (109,125) (17,364) 15.9%
Total revenue from continuing REFEKLEERH
operations F-R N 727,167 665,859 61,308 9.2%
Discontinued operation DRI - 6,099 (6,099) (100.0%)
TOTAL REVENUE FR N 727,167 671,958 55,209 8.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNmED

Operating profit by business lines BETERE 7 0948 & F)

Year ended 30 June

BE6A30HLFE
2023 2022 Increase/(decrease)
20234 20224 g,/ O d)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
THET T FHT ALt
Continuing operations: HEREER
Hong Kong & Macau: BB RIEFT -
Corporate Healthcare EREERRERER
Solution Services 7 ERT 45,004 35,284 9,720 27.5%
Clinical Healthcare B R B8 AR 2 IR 75
Services 32,037 68,602 (36,565) (53.3%)
Mainland China: i B A
Clinical Healthcare B PR B8 AR G AR 75
Services 16,793 1,534 15,259 994.7%
Total operating profit from REFESEERN
continuing operations BEERHE 93,834 105,420 (11,586) (11.0%)
Discontinued operation BRIEREER - 1,197 (1,197)  (100.0%)
TOTAL OPERATING RESULTS  #B Q& %45 93,834 106,617 (12,783) (12.0%)
Number of visits by business lines from continuing operations KEFELERBFAEFHERE S B 52
KB
Year ended 30 June Increase/
BZ6H30BLLFE (decrease)
2023 2022 #hn
2023 20225 OB )
Provision of corporate healthcare REBRBFIRELCEEE
solution services in Hong Kong R RF RIRTE
and Macau 988,091 849,405 16.3%
Medical BiE 963,928 824,315 16.9%
Dental FE 24,163 25,090 (3.7%)
Provision of clinical healthcare REBRRMRERHEKRER
services in Hong Kong R 28 BR %%
and Macau 253,528 255,609 (0.8%)
Medical BE 222,499 225,277 (1.2%)
Dental FE 31,029 30,332 2.3%
Mainland China Clinical Fh B A it B PR S AR
Healthcare Services RERTE 34,558 28,640 20.7%
TOTAL &t 1,276,177 1,133,654 12.6%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
FY2023 compared to FY2022

Revenue from continuing operations

During FY2023, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare
services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau and (iii) the
provision of clinical healthcare services in Mainland China.

Total consolidated revenue from continuing operations increased by
9.2% from HK$665.9 million in FY2022 to 727.2 million in FY2023,
primarily due to the growth in our imaging and specialist lines of
business and health assessments performed, which enjoy relatively
higher margin.

Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical
Services, Dental Services, medical imaging and laboratory services
and Auxiliary Services rendered within the UMP Network, as well as
fees paid to third party laboratories and medical imaging centres for

services rendered to the Group.
Professional services expenses increased by 7.3% from HK$238.0

million for FY2022 to HK$255.4 million for FY2023, in line with the
nature of the services provided and turnover growth during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share-based payment expense, as well as
pension scheme contributions for nurses and administrative
personnel, and also include those of the Directors and key
management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 9.2% from HK$164.7
million for FY2022 to HK$179.8 million for FY2023. The increase in
employee benefit expense reflects the Group’s talent strategy as we
continue to increase the talent pool in preparation for the next phase
of our development. While the employee benefit expense is not a
direct variable cost, its increase is in line with business growth.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation, which comprises of depreciation of
the right-of-use assets and depreciation and amortisation of other
non-current assets.

Depreciation and Amortisation increased by 32.1% from HK$78.6
million for FY2022 to HK$103.9 million for FY2023, which is in line

with business growth.

Other Expenses

Other expenses primarily comprise provision of impairment loss
and general overhead expenses such as utilities, operating and
other administrative expenses such as professional fees, repair and
maintenance expenses incurred with respect to the Group's offices

and medical equipment, printing expenses and bank charges.

Other expenses, increased by 12.5% from approximately HK$65.8
million for FY2022 to HK$74.0 million for FY2023, primarily due to
the write-off of brand name of HK$9.8 million during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. The
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group's right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$107.9 million (30 June 2022: HK$136.0 million).

Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2023 the Group’s goodwill amounted to HK$164.8
million (30 June 2022: HK$164.8 million).

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and financial assets at amortised cost

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
assets at amortised cost primarily represent unlisted equity
investments at fair value, listed equity and debt investments at
fair value and investment funds. Certain equity investments are
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at amortised cost amounted
to HK$36.8 million, HK$29.4 million and HK$Nil (30 June
2022: HK$31.5 million, HK$28.5 million and HK$18.9 million),
respectively. The increase of investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income is primarily due to changes in fair value.
The decrease of financial assets at amortised cost is due to its
redemption.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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R6A30H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Current Assets MENE E 495,524 432,816
Current Liabilities mEBE 271,111 194,480
Net Current Assets mMBEEFE 224,413 238,336
Current Ratio MELL X 1.83 223

The Group’s current ratio was 1.83 as at 30 June 2023 (30 June
2022: 2.23), reflecting a strong liquidity in its financial position.
Working capital position of the Group remains strong.

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group intended to satisfy
its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash generated from
operating activities, net proceeds from the Global Offering and the net
considerations received from the series of transactions. As of 30 June
2023, the Group had cash and bank deposits of HK$289.1 million.

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any
bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio expressed as a percentage of loans from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries divided by consolidated
total equity of the Group as at 30 June 2023 as approximately 6.3%
(30 June 2022: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 30 June 2023. The capital of the Company

comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Save for the Investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group, as elaborated
in further details in the section headed “FINANCIAL REVIEW” of this
annual report, the Group did not hold any significant investment as
at 30 June 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during FY2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any specific
future plan for material investments or capital assets as of 30 June
2023.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related to
deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property, plant
and equipment for the Group’s medical, dental, medical imaging
and laboratory and Auxiliary Services centres. For FY2023, the
Group incurred capital expenditure in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$109.3 million (FY2022: HK$84.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDEBTEDNESS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2023, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Capital Commitment

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has material capital commitments
of approximately HK$50.6 million in relation to the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

The Group employs a conservative approach to cash management
and risk control. To achieve better risk control and efficient fund

management, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised.

During FY2023, the Group’s receipts were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Payments were mainly made in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Cash was generally placed in
short-term deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The objective of the Group’s treasury policies is to minimise risks
and exposures due to the fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. The Group does not have any significant
interest rate risk at present as the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any

bank loan facilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain
transactions in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk, primarily relating to the Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure when the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

Credit Risk
The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2023, the Group has pledged certain deposits with

an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.4 million (30 June 2022:
HK$2.4 million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a
bank in favour of respective independent third parties for potential
disruption of Medical and Dental Services.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a total of 508 full-time

employees (30 June 2022: 449 full-time employees). For FY2023,
the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of
salaries and other benefits) was approximately HK$179.8 million
(FY2022: HK$164.7 million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance-related
basis, together with reference to the profitability of the Group,
prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and
market conditions within the general framework of the Group’s

remuneration system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible participants
are entitled to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company for
their past and potential contribution to the growth of the Group.
As at 30 June 2023, there was no option remained outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, 23,822,000 options were lapsed and no share
options were exercised during FY2023. As at 30 June 2023, there
were 25,740,000 options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding. Under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme,
570,000 options were lapsed or forfeited and no share options were
granted or exercised during FY2023.

In addition, the Company has also adopted the Share Award Scheme
on 30 June 2016 to provide an incentive and reward to selected
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group. During FY2023, 2,000,000 awarded shares were granted and
vested under the Share Award Scheme, with no awarded shares were
lapsed.

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results and

comparable market statistics.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK3.00

cents per Share for FY2023 (FY2022: HK3.00 cents with scrip
option), subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2023
AGM. Such proposed dividend is expected to be distributed on
Friday, 5 January 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 8 December
2023.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong (“Dr. Sun”), aged 80, is a founding member
of the Group and the Chairman of the Company. He was appointed
as a Director on 23 April 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is primarily responsible for the
overall formulation, supervision and guidance of business strategies,
planning and development of the Group. He is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Sun is also a director of
various companies of the Group.

With over 45 years of experience in family medicine practice,
Dr. Sun is a Founder Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. He is a Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Faculty
of Medicine, Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Honorary Clinical
Assistant Professor in Department of Family Medicine and Primary
Care, The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Sun is one of the pioneer
Hong Kong doctors to participate in the healthcare development and
training of medical professionals in the PRC.

Dr. Sun is the father of Dr. Michael Sun, the Vice Chairman,
executive Director and Co-Chief Executive Officer and the
father-in-law of Mr. Patrick Tsang, an executive Director. He is the
sole shareholder and one of the directors of East Majestic Group
Limited. He is also the sole shareholder and director of EM Team
Limited.

He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1967 and became a Fellow of
the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians in September 1987 and
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the specialty
of Family Medicine in December 1993. He was also registered as a

specialist in Family Medicine in March 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. SUN Man Kin, Michael (“Dr. Michael Sun”), aged 45, is the
Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He
was appointed as a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated
as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is a specialist in
Radiology and along with Ms. Kwok, he is responsible for building,
consolidating, and strengthening professional network of the Group
and the overall guidance of planning and development of the Group.
Dr. Michael Sun has over 15 years of experience in medicine and
has been the chief radiologist of the Group since July 2012. He
is currently a radiologist, a director and a shareholder of ProCare
Medical Imaging and Laboratory Centre Limited, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. He is also a consultant
radiologist of the Group and a director of various members of the
Group.

Dr. Michael Sun is the son of Dr. Sun, the Chairman of the Company
and executive Director and the brother-in-law of Mr. Patrick Tsang,
an executive Director. He is also a director of East Majestic Group
Limited.

Dr. Michael Sun obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in December 2002. He
became a Fellow of the Royal College of Radiologist in October
2007 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Radiologists in
October 2010. He also became a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
of Medicine in the specialty of Radiology in June 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Ms. KWOK Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (“Ms. Kwok”), aged 55, is the
Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company. She was appointed as
a Director on 5 November 2014 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. Along with Dr. Michael Sun, she is
responsible for the overall guidance of planning and development
of the Group and initiating and leading business projects in
collaboration with medical insurance companies and corporate
customers. Ms. Kwok is also responsible for internal operations to
enhance operational efficiency and develop the Group’s corporate
expansion in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Ms. Kwok is one
of the key members in establishing the administration arm of the
Group. She has over 25 years of experience in health schemes
management and providers network administration to support the
healthcare plan’s implementation in the Group’s network. She is
actively involved in developing the infrastructure of the Group such
as information technology platforms and medical network facilities.
In the recent years, Ms. Kwok is also leading and managing
corporate development, merger and acquisition investments, and
business expansion for the Group.

Ms. Kwok obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Business
Studies (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in November
1991 and obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Peking University in
July 1996. She also obtained a Master of Science in Management
(Health Services Management) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (“Mr. Patrick Tsang”), aged 52, was
appointed as a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated
as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Patrick Tsang
is primarily responsible for providing strategic directions on
co-operations with different business stakeholders in China and
globally. He is the Chief Executive Officer and a director of CTFE.
He is also a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of CTFE and a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Patrick Tsang has over 25 years of international
capital markets experience, and was previously managing director,
head of Asia Fixed Income Capital Markets at Deutsche Bank AG,
Hong Kong Branch, where he worked from 2003 to 2012.

Mr. Patrick Tsang is an executive director of Melbourne Enterprises
Limited (stock code: 158), non-executive director of Giordano
International Limited (stock code: 709), the vice chairman and an
executive director of i-Cable Communications Limited (stock code:
1097) and a non-executive director of SJM Holdings Limited (stock
code: 880), all being companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. From June 2015 to May 2022, Mr. Patrick Tsang
was a non-executive director of Greenheart Group Limited (stock
code: 94), and from November 2012 to August 2022, Mr. Tsang
was a non-executive director of Integrated Waste Solutions Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 923), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Patrick Tsang is the son-in-law of Dr. Sun, the Chairman and an
executive Director and the brother-in-law of Dr. Michael Sun, an
executive Director, Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer

of the Company.

Mr. Patrick Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from
Columbia College of Columbia University in New York, USA in May
1994.
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Dr. LEE Pak Cheung, Patrick (“Dr. Patrick Lee”), aged 58, was
appointed as an executive director on 28 February 2018. He joined
the Group in 2003. He was appointed as the Dental Director for the
Group since 2014, primarily responsible for supervising the dental
practice of the Group and advising on the continuing training of
dental professionals and development of clinical and professional
services. Dr. Patrick Lee is one of the major contributors in the
Group’s dental centre chain, he keeps an active practice to nurture
and inspire his dental colleagues. Dr. Patrick Lee also performs
a key role in business development and quality assurance in the
Group’s dental centre chain. Dr. Patrick Lee obtained a Bachelor
of Dental Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in 1988. He
became a member of the faculty of general dental practitioners
(UK) of the Royal College of Surgeons of England in 1995 and a
member in general dental surgery of the Royal College of Surgeons
of Edinburgh in 1997. In 1999, he became a Fellow of the Royal
Australasian College of Dental Surgeons. In 2007, he was granted
a Diploma of Membership in General Dentistry by the College of
Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong. Dr. Patrick Lee currently also serves
as dental consultant for the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Felix Lee Kar Chung, Felix (“Dr. Felix Lee), aged 42, was
appointed as a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an
executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is currently a Senior Vice
President of CTFE with responsibilities in making investments in the
healthcare sector in Asia and globally and a director of Healthcare
Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CTFE, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Felix Lee is also an
independent non-executive director of Asymchem Laboratories
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd (stock code: 002821.SZ and 6821.HK) and a
non-executive director of ClouDr Group Limited (stock code: 9955.
HK). Dr. Felix Lee is also a director of various companies of the
Group. He has nearly 20 years of experience in healthcare, law
and finance. He was an associate with the law firm Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in February 2008 to join UBS
AG, Hong Kong branch as an analyst in the investment banking
department until January 2009. He then joined the investment
banking department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and
last held the position of director in the Corporate Advisory Group,
where he worked from January 2009 to August 2014. From August
2015 to June 2023, Dr. Felix Lee was an independent non-executive
director of CR Medical (stock code: 1515.HK), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Dr. Felix Lee is also a Vice Chairman
of the China Committee, the Hong Kong General Chamber of

Commerce.

Dr. Felix Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the London
School of Economics and Political Sciences and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in July 2003
and June 2004, respectively. He obtained a Doctor of Business
Administration from the University of Wales Trinity Saint David
in 2023. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
September 2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luen Wai, John BBS /P (“Mr. John Lee”), aged 74,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 6
November 2015. He is the chairman of Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. John
Lee is an independent non-executive director of New World
Development Company Limited (stock code: 17), an associate of
CTFE. Mr. John Lee is also the managing director and chief executive
officer of Lippo Limited (stock code: 226), an executive director and
the chief executive officer of both Lippo China Resources Limited
(stock code: 156) and Hongkong Chinese Limited (stock code: 655),
all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. John Lee is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a partner of Pricewaterhouse (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Hong Kong and has extensive
experience in corporate finance and capital markets. Mr. John Lee
is an Honorary Fellow of the City University of Hong Kong and
a Justice of Peace in Hong Kong and an awardee of the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

Mr. John Lee is active in public service. Over the years, he has
served as a member or chairman of different government boards and
committees in Hong Kong, including a member of the Hong Kong
Hospital Authority and the chairman of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Currently, he serves as
the Chairman of the Hospital Governing Committee of Hong Kong
Children’s Hospital.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P, (“Dr. Donald Li”), aged 69,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
6 November 2015. He is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited (stock
code: 1177) and New Horizon Health Limited (stock code: 6606),
all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Dr. Donald Li is a specialist in Family Medicine in private practice
in Hong Kong. He is the past President of the Hong Kong Academy
of Medicine, the Immediate Past President of the World Organisation
of Family Doctors (WONCA), Director and Honorary Consultant
of Jiahui Health and Censor of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. From December 2017 to May 2023, Dr. Donald Li was
an independent non-executive director of C-MER Eye Care Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3309).

Dr. Donald Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University,
USA, and a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery from
the University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and November 1980,
respectively. He became a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
General Practitioners in September 1987, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in December 1993, Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons in August
2004, Honorary Fellow of the Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners in September 2005, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong
College of Family Physicians in May 2007, Fellow of the Faculty
of Public Health of the Royal Colleges of Physicians of the United
Kingdom in February 2010, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of
Family Physicians of Malaysia in April 2011, Registered Mainland
China Medical Practitioner in April 2013, Honorary Fellow of the
Royal College of Physicians of Thailand in April 2013, Fellow of the
Academy of Medicine, Singapore, in August 2013, Honorary Fellow
of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland in October 2014 and
Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of General Practitioners in
November 2014.

He served as Member of Council of Cornell University. He is a
Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family Medicine at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Honorary Professor of the Li
Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong.
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Dr. Donald Li is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association. He is the Advisor to board & executive committee of
the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited, Honorary
Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is the Honorary Adviser
of The Hong Kong Award for Young People. He is the chairman
of Elderly Commission, chairman of the Action Committee Against
Narcotics of Security Bureau, honorary consultant of Department of
Health, member of the Steering Committee on Primary Healthcare
Development of Food & Health Bureau, and also chairman of
Professional Committee on Medical Health of Belt and Road General
Chamber of Commerce. He is also the independent non-executive
director of ZA Life Limited. He has been appointed as an advisor of
Our Hong Kong Foundation from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2025.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun, Mike (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 70, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 6
November 2015. He is a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung is an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of Hong Kong Shanghai
Alliance Holdings Limited (stock code: 1001), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years’
working experience in banking industry. Mr. Yeung began his
career with the HSBC Group in 1972 and advanced himself in the
organisation by taking up different positions under various business
streams including personal banking, sales and marketing, branch
operation and trade service. In 2001, Mr. Yeung was relocated
to Shanghai and took up the role of branch manager of HSBC
Shanghai. In June 2006, he was seconded to Hang Seng Bank
(China) Limited and appointed as the Head of Personal Financial
Services and Wealth Management, China Business. He assumed
the role of Deputy Chief Executive and Head of Personal Financial
Services and Wealth Management in May 2007. Mr. Yeung retired
from HSBC Group in January 2014. Mr. Yeung is the Honorary
President of Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai. He was
awarded the “Magnolia Gold Award” presented by the Shanghai
Municipal government. Mr. Yeung was also awarded a Professional
Diploma in Company Direction by The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors in 2017. Mr. Yeung was a member of the 11th and 12th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee in
Shanghai.
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Mr. CHAU Chit Jeremy (“Mr. Chau”), aged 47, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 26 November 2021. He
is currently a Director of Sinovation Ventures Hong Kong, and the
Senior Vice President of Sinovation Ventures Al Institute. He is also
the Chairman of the Southern Branch of Chinese Angel Association,
and the Vice Chairman of Global Chaoren Innovation Economic
Promotion Association. In addition, he is an advisory board member
of the Department of Electronic and Computer Engineering at The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and a member
of the Innovation and Technology Committee of Hong Kong
Association of China Business.

Mr. Chau joined Google in the year 2000 and he was the first
engineer of Google AdWords. He was responsible for developing
various products during his 8-year career at Google: Gmail, Maps,
and China Music. He became an angel investor in China beginning
in 2008. One of the portfolio companies in which he invested in
was LightinTheBox, which was subsequently listed on NASDAQ
in 2013. Other notable investments include Papaya Mobile, instreet.cn,
and the movie “One Night Surprise”. He co-founded Jide
Technology Co., Ltd. in 2014 to develop an enterprise operating
system based on Android for equipment such as laptops and
desktops.

Mr. Chau graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering and Stanford University with a Master of Science degree

in Electrical Engineering.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company believes that
high standards of corporate governance provide a solid foundation
for the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency and
maintain high standards of accountability. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise sound internal control and

aim to protect Shareholders’ interests in general.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, CULTURE AND VALUES

Our corporate culture is built on the values of expertise,
compassion, innovation, trust, and efficacy. We strive to be experts
in our field, providing the highest quality care to our patients. We
treat our patients with compassion and empathy, recognizing the
importance of the human connection in healthcare. We embrace
innovation and creativity to improve patient outcomes and enhance
the patient experience. We understand that trust is the foundation
of our relationship with our patients, their families, and our
community, and we act with integrity, honesty, and transparency
in all our dealings. We are committed to delivering effective
and efficient care, measuring and evaluating our performance
to continuously improve the quality of care we provide. Our
corporate culture is built on the principles of ethical and responsible
decision-making, transparency, and accountability, ensuring that
our actions are always in the best interests of our patients, our
employees, and our stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code during FY2023, except for the
deviation as disclosed in this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, consisting of six
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as Chairman and executive Director,
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael as Vice Chairman, Co-Chief Executive
Officer and executive Director, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen, as
Co-Chief Executive Officer and executive Director, Mr. Tsang On
Yip, Patrick, Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick and Dr. Lee Kar Chung,
Felix as executive Directors, and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP,
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P, Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike and

Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy as independent non-executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report.

The Company has maintained on its website and on the website
of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying
their roles and functions, and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board
effectively exercises independent judgment to better safeguard
Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement
or further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what
actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve

the Board performance.

The Board has conducted a review and considered that the
Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism has been properly
implemented for FY2023 and is effective.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity
of Board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to the gender, age,
cultural, educational background and professional experience of the
Board members. The appointment of Directors will be based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-
balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company. The Board currently has one female Director and in
compliance with Board gender diversity requirement under Rule
13.92 of the Listing Rules. We will continue to strive to enhance
female representation and achieve an appropriate balance of gender
diversity. The Board has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy for
FY2023 and is of the view that the Board Diversity Policy has been
properly implemented and is effective.

As at 30 June 2023, the gender ratio in the workforce (including
senior management) of the Group was approximately 26.6%
male and approximately 73.4% female. The Group treats every
employee equally and equal opportunities for different genders. In
particular, the recruitment process of the Group shall not involve
any discrimination on the grounds of race, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, family responsibilities, marital status, age or other
discriminatory factors. It is relatively more challenging for the Group
to achieve equal gender ratio across all business units of the Group
due to the characteristics and work types of different business units.
The Group will continue to enhance diversity in different levels of

workforce.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision C.2.1 of the part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman of the Board, was
also the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believed that vesting the
roles of both chairman and chief executive in an experienced and
qualified person such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provided the Company
with strong and consistent leadership while allowing effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies. The Board considered that this structure would not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group.
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Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong retired from his role as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 1 January 2023. With
the full support and agreement of the Board, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
remained as the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company after his retirement as the Chief Executive Officer. Upon
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong’s retirement, the Company has complied with
the code provision C.2.1 of separating the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer under the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangement
when the Board considers appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During FY2023, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view

that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Roles of the Board and Management

The Board oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and performance of the Group. It is collectively responsible for
the management and operation of the Company. The Board is the
ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the
Articles, the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
management of the Company. The Board and the management have
clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various internal

control and check and balance mechanisms.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board plays a major role in the supervision of corporate
governance to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
governance framework and the long-term sustainable Shareholders’

value by way of, among others:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, and reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management. The Board has also reviewed and ensured
compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the
code of conducts, the code and the disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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AN\ X =5 U
TRERRSE
Board Meetings and Supply of and Access to Information ExeeERERRERER

Under code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the REMEEATRIMTRNEXECS. 115 &
Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held FEEETHHE EFegREEFEHE
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and MK KHBFE— X MBECEEAT
under code provision C.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the BIFSFREXEC2.716  EESEFENESR
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with A B FEBYIFRITESRIT - AHMBES
the independent non-executive Directors without the other Directors @ EM &% - 20230 EEN EEEE
present. During FY2023, the Board held four meetings and Directors’ {70 A & + SEFMHELEHINMT -

attendance records are set out below:

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Directors = BERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) BRIBAE (E) 4/4
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BN BRELE (FL/EFEETHAAS)

(Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen BEB L (BETEBAEZ)

(Co-Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick B ERE 3/4
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick FHFE 4/4
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix ZTRBEL 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHFBITEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John THRESTE 4/4
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald TRIREE & 4/4
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike SERER SR 4/4
Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy BAEEAE 4/4

In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent  |thoh » & & EIB T IERNITE FET— XA
non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors. {TEZRFEHN S # °
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Notice incorporating the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
be given. All Directors or Board committee members are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Meeting
agenda and accompanying meeting papers are sent to all relevant
Directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular Board meeting

or committee meeting.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and
the chairmen of Board committees in preparing meeting agendas
and ensures that the Corporate Governance Code as well as all
applicable laws and regulations are duly complied with. Minutes
of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient details of the matters considered and decisions reached
at the relevant meetings. Draft and final versions of the minutes
in respect of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
sent to all Directors or Board committee members respectively for
comment and records within a reasonable time after the relevant
meetings. All minutes are properly kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for the Directors’ and Board committee members’

inspection.

All Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to the Company’s business and make further enquiries
or retain independent professional advisors where necessary. The
management provides all relevant explanation and information
to the Board so as to give the Board the information it needs to
discharge its responsibilities. During FY2023, the management
has provided all members of the Board with adequate information
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.
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GENERAL MEETINGS BRAE
During FY2023, the Company has convened and held one annual 20238 BFERN - AR AE B KBIT—

general meeting (“AGM”) and one extraordinary general meeting RXBREBAFAL((REEFAE]) k—KK
(“EGM”). Attendance record of the Directors at the general meetings HR4FFIA G ([REFHAE]) - EFHRKRE
is set out as follows: AW HELEHINMOT

Number of meeting attended/held

HEBITEERRE
AGM EGM
Name of Directors EEnE RREBEFRE RREHIKE
Executive Directors HTEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) FRISA (/) 1/1 1/1
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael (Vice Chairman and &3 EX82 4 (5% 3

Co-Chief Executive Officer) BETIHARE) 1/ 1/
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen BEEL LT (B ETEAAZ)

(Co-Chief Executive Officer) 1/1 1/1
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRERE 1/1 0/1
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick FHRFEELE 1/1 1/1
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREF L 1/1 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHFHITEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John FHERE 1/1 0/1
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald FEIRE 0/1 0/1
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Rt 0/1 1/1
Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy BE L 0/1 1/1
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors (other than
Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy) has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on the
date of his appointment. Thereafter, the appointment is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year. Mr. Chau, Chit
Jeremy has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a fixed term of three years. All independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles and the provision under their letters of
appointment.

The Articles provide that each Director is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election once every three years and
that one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
of the Directors shall retire from office every year at the annual
general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting while
any Director appointed by the Board as additional Director shall be
subject to re-election at the next following annual general meeting.

Directors’ training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package covering the statutory and regulatory
obligations of Directors, organizational structure, policies,
procedures and codes of the Company, terms of reference of board
committees and charter of responsibilities of internal audit. The
Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and conferences to
enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties as a director. The
Company Secretary from time to time updates and provides written
training materials to the Directors, and organizes seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and

regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings received by R RIMEHGFTE BEIE IO - 2023
the Directors. The trainings received by the current Directors during B FE - BEEEEZHFINERLNOT -
FY2023 are as follows:

Training
Matters™oe
Name of Directors EENE £ 3| =5 15 it
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) BRRIBAE (F/E) A/ B, C
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael (Vice-Chairman and BXBREE (G EEFEETEHAAS)

Co-Chief Executive Officer) A, B, C
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen BEBR L (BETEBAEZ)

(Co-Chief Executive Officer) A, B, C
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRESRE A B, C
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick ZHEEE A, B, C
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREF L+ A B, C
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTESE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John FTHRERE A, B, C
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald FEIfREEE A, B, C
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 5 58 4 S A, B, C
Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy B8 kA& A, B, C
Note: A. Corporate governance MEE A BEER

B. Regulatory updates B. BEE&ZHIEMN
C. Directors’ Duties C. E8E
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Directors’ and officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

CODES FOR DEALING IN THE COMPANY’S

SECURITIES
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code for

dealings in the Company’s securities by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors have complied with the Model Code
during FY2023.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on terms
that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there was no incident of
non-compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Employees during FY2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies. In arriving at its
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration Committee
will consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Committee either determines or makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and it also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
twice a year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr.
Li Kwok Tung, Donald and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike, and an
executive Director, namely Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick. Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The composition of the Remuneration Committee meets
the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the Listing
Rules.

During FY2023, the Remuneration Committee had performed the
following works:

e determined and reviewed the remuneration policy of the
executive Directors;

e assessed the performance of executive Directors; and
. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages (including the granting of share awards) of individual

executive Directors and senior management.

TERERME
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The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEEKEHFELZE @@ ZAOLEEHFMOT :
meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HE BT

Remuneration Committee Members FHEEERE SERH

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald (Chairman) TRREE (£E) 3/3

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike SR B S 3/3

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BLERE 373

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are disclosed in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established its Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, the appointment or re- appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, reviewing
the leadership needs of the Company to ensure the continued
ability of the Company to compete effectively. The Committee is
also responsible for assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and reviewing their annual confirmations on
independence. The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year
and is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald, and an executive
Director, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong serves as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The composition of the
Nomination Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and
independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2023, the Nomination Committee had performed the

following works:

J reviewed the current structure, size and composition of the
Board;

J assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors;

J made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of

Directors;

J made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer; and

J reviewed the current board diversity policy.
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The Board adopted the policy of the nomination of Directors in
December 2018 (the “Director Nomination Policy”). Pursuant to
the Director Nomination Policy, the nomination committee of the
Board shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to Shareholders for election
as directors at general meetings of the Company or to appoint as
Directors to fill casual vacancies or as an addition to the existing
Board, for details of which, please refer to the Company’s website at

www.ump.com.hk.

During the year, the Board reviewed the overall contribution and
service to the Company, expertise and professional qualifications of
the retiring Directors and recommended them to be re-elected at the
Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting.

The attendance records of the committee members to committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

TERERME

EFZR2018F N2 ARMESRABEK ([£
EREBE]) - BEEEREBK EFL
ETRZZESANESCIRAEA AEHR
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B WEBERERARANEERRBEA
g LBEREE-

23
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Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HE BT

Nomination Committee Members REZEEEHE ERBRY
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) FRRIBAE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John THE ST AE 2/2
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald FERE 2/2
202368 | BABBEREERAR
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Audit Committee

The Company has established its Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s website
at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for effective financial reporting controls, internal controls and
risk management. The Committee monitors the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts
and half-year report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. It reviews, makes recommendations
and reports to the Board on findings relating to the financial
statements, reports and accounts, systems of internal control and
risk management and compliance issues on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee also oversees the Company’s relationship with
the external auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor. It is empowered to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. It reviews external auditor’s management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response. The Committee meets at least twice a year
and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its

duties.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald and Mr. Yeung Wing
Sun, Mike. Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John serves as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee meets
the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the Listing
Rules.
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During FY2023, the Audit Committee had performed the following

works:

. reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and
made recommendation to the Board;

J reviewed the annual caps on continuing connected transactions
of the Company;

J reviewed the remuneration, terms of engagement and the
independence of the external auditor and considered the re-
appointment of the external auditor;

J reviewed the arrangements for raising concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

matters;

J reviewed the Group’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness, adequacy of

resources and competency; and

] reviewed the whistleblowing policy, anti-corruption policy and

board independence evaluation mechanism.
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The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEE@KEHFELZE @@ ZAOLEEHFMOT ¢
meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HE BT

Audit Committee Members EREEEHRE = NS

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John (Chairman) THESE(E/E) 2/2

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald FERE L 2/2

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Bkt 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which should give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
for such reporting period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for auditing and reporting its opinion on
the financial statements of the Group and the independent auditor’s
report for FY2023 is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and overseeing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement

or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including clinic
chain operations, business development, financial reporting, human
resources, information technology and handling and dissemination
of inside information.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

EEHMBRRNEM

EXSREARUMBRR  UBBRERE
R R RS £R B0 2% ¥R A Y SR A5 AR
N MBRRELRBAESRE - REHETBHRE
B EZSCERRALERERTELARES
EAREENETBR  FHEE 2FR
BEMHE KGR URHELEEERH
MBRE EFTAERRAKERERE
HENGRLE  UREARIERASEEER
BAKERPBAR -

EFXQUTABEAREAEERBELLR
NBREARBZEHIBRABEBAZENE
ATHBRZ - At EFERUPBRE
HEBERAFSEQLEEE-

BB EERASENMBERR NERE
ER 203 RFENF L ZBENBRERN
RERBIZBENRE ] A -

PR B 12 % e B o B
EXEAREBHRREERABEIZERG
BRE UAEAEREBRE -ARAEAMRE
EEEMPERREEREBERENAR
FIEAREANKERAKBREHREGIEM
FFEHHIRE o

ARARDERRMRAZIARREEEF N
SERBMERE  URITEEXEKRRRF R
NERE BRELHEHEHKLE EBER-
MBEHR - ANER  ERBRAREER
BHARHE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and
monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the
systems.

The internal audit team is responsible for providing the internal audit
function and performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal
control structure are as follows:

e well-defined organizational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities to minimize risk of errors and abuse;

J establish written policies and procedures for major functions
and operations;

J important business functions or activities are managed by
experienced, qualified and suitably trained staff;

e continuous monitoring of the key operating data and
performance indicators, timely and up-to-date business and
financial reporting, immediate corrective actions are taken

where necessary; and

o internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of
major operations on an ongoing basis.
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A risk-based approach is adopted to ensure that a methodical
coverage of the Group’s operations and resources are focused on
high risk areas. The internal audit team takes the lead to evaluate
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
by reviewing the major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis every year. The review covers all material controls including

financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management.

Review results and recommendations in the form of written reports
are submitted to the Audit Committee for discussion and review.
Follow up actions will be taken up by the internal audit team
to ensure that findings previously identified have been properly
resolved. The Board had discussed and reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the
FY2023, and considered them effective and adequate.

The Company also established a procedure to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

During FY2023, the Board, in conjunction with the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function, as well as those relating to
the Group’s ESG performance and reporting. The Board considered
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for FY2023 was effective and adequate and no significant areas of

concern has been identified.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries by KPMG, the auditor of the Company
for FY2023 are set out below:

TERERME
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HK$’000

THE T

Audit service =R 75 2,230
Non-audit services FEAZ B 75 228
2,458

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of the Company provides that any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A Shareholder may lodge a notice of his intention to propose
any person (other than himself/herself) for election as a Director
together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected to the head office of the Company
or at the registration office where the branch register of members
of the Company is kept provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given shall be at least 7
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Other than the above concerning a proposal of a person for election
as a Director, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for putting forward
proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at general meetings.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such

written requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned

above to the following:

Address: 27th Floor
Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2511 1152

Email: ir@ump.com.hk
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by

law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communication with Shareholders and in particular, through its
annual general meeting and other extraordinary general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries. The Directors, Company Secretary or appropriate
members of senior management, where appropriate, also respond to

inquiries from Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

Under the Listing Rules, all resolutions proposed at Shareholders’
meetings must be voted by poll except where the chairman of
a general meeting, in good faith and in compliance with the
Listing Rules, decides to allow resolutions to be voted on by the
Shareholders on a show of hands. Details of the poll procedures
will be explained during the proceedings of Shareholders’ meetings.
The poll voting results will be released and posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at

www.ump.com.hk.

To provide effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.ump.com.hk. All the financial information and other
disclosures including, inter alia, annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and Articles are available under the section of
“Investor Relations” on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders can direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders
and the investment community may at any time make a request
for such information. Designated contacts, email addresses and
enquiry lines of the Company have been provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report to enable the Shareholders
and the investment community to make any enquiry in respect of the
Company.

Shareholders can refer to the “Shareholders’” Communication
Policy” posted on our corporate websites for more details. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness and implementation of the
Shareholders” Communication Policy and is of the view that the
Shareholders” Communication Policy remained effective and has
been implemented effectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company amended and adopted the second amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company on
25 November 2022, the date which the proposed amendments were
approved by the Shareholders at the 2022 Annual General Meeting,
for the purposes of, among others, bringing the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company in line with the relevant
requirements of the amendments made to the Listing Rules and
the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, and providing greater
flexibility to the Company in relation to conduct of general meetings
to enable hybrid general meetings to be held.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

UMP Healthcare Group (“UMP” or “the Group”) is a leading
medical and healthcare solution provider in Hong Kong and Macau.
The Group offers a wide range of healthcare services suited for
diverse individual needs, while also partnering with corporate and
insurance companies to administer customised corporate healthcare
UMP, through its affiliated
companies, operated multiple joint-ventured medical centres with

benefit plans for their members.

local health service partners in major Chinese cities and facilitated
the provision of family doctor training. The UMP network spans over
1,000 self-owned and affiliated medical service points across Hong
Kong and Macau.

Since its inception in 1990, the Group has been providing trusted
and affordable services to patients. Maintaining a high standard
of professional practice and acting with integrity are core tenets
of UMP. The Group has integrated Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) management principles into operations and
services. We strive to continue to align our business strategy
with ESG considerations to continue our journey to sustainable
development.

This ESG Report of UMP provides an overview of the identified
material ESG issues and related practices that help us drive
sustainable development. The data reported in this ESG Report
was prepared based on our internal reports, internal policies, and
other internal documents. The board of directors (the “Board”)
is responsible for overseeing statutory compliance, stakeholder
engagement, ESG performance and risk management. The Board
hereby confirms that no false or misleading statements have been
made in this ESG Report to the best of their knowledge and belief.
The approval of this ESG report from the Board was obtained on 21
September 2023.
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Reporting scope

This report covers UMP’s ESG management approach and
performance for the period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023
(“FY2023"), aligning with the reporting period of our financial year.
Unless otherwise specified, the contents and metrics reported cover
our operations in Hong Kong.'

Reporting standard
This ESG Report was prepared according to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix
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27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. For more information relating to
the Group’s business and its corporate governance practices, please
refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section and
“Corporate Governance” section of this annual report.
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In the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group follows the four
reporting principles as set out in the ESG Reporting Guide:

Reporting Principles

Application in this ESG Report

BE ¥ = Al RERE HEREABSTHNER

Materiality Material environmental and social issues were identified and prioritised with
inputs from internal and external stakeholders of the Group and are disclosed in
this ESG Report.
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The Group accounts for and discloses KPIs in quantitative terms for proper
evaluation of the effectiveness of ESG policies and actions.
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Quantitative

Balance This ESG Report aims to disclose data in an objective way, which aims to
provide stakeholders with a balanced overview of the Group’s overall ESG
performances.
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The Group adopts consistent measurement methodology to achieve meaningful
comparison of ESG performances over time whenever practicable. Any updates
in the methods or KPIs used will be disclosed.
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' Environmental data only covers our operations in Hong Kong as the relevant
figures for our operations in Mainland China and Macau are considered
relatively insignificant to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT OF ESG ASPECTS

The effective management of ESG issues is essential to ensure the
sustainable growth of our business. We embrace ESG responsibility
and continuously improve the quality and effectiveness of our
response to align with our mission, focusing on what is most
important to our company, and where we can achieve the greatest
impact.

We are committed to upholding a culture of integrity and ensuring
that our employees comply with our Code of Ethics and internal
policies. Our business operations comply with our Procurement
Policy and relevant laws and regulations, such as registering and
licensing clinics, handling radioactive substances and apparatuses,
treating clinical waste, marketing and promoting healthcare products
and services, possessing and distributing drugs, and safeguarding
customer and patient privacy. We believe that strict and effective
regulation within our company is crucial for sustainable growth and
to instil confidence in our stakeholders.

The Board holds ultimate responsibility for assessing ESG-related
matters to our business and ensuring that our risk management
and internal control systems are suitable and effective to address
these issues. To strengthen the Board’s oversight on ESG issues, an
Executive Director became a member of the ESG working group
starting from June 2023. The working group oversees ESG issues and
integrates ESG considerations into our daily operations, consisting of
senior management from various departments, such as clinic chain
management, human resources, finance, legal and compliance, and
third-party administration teams. The working group meets twice a
year to review roles and responsibilities, ensure compliance with
updated ESG requirements and policies, and supervise the Group’s
data collection tools.

RE - HERERBE

RE HERERSTENERE
BERERES HEREAFAYNERR
IR0 AT EE RAAE B - RARER
5o HRREARE THEERMEMEN
B RS AGERMOES  LHEE
BHRMARMNE REENEEARRKLE
MELBRAYENA -

BB EEREL  LRERMNESR
BT HRFIERTHRABEER - RAEE
28 B IR P B R AP A SR ORI K AR RE
EREOER  PIInERED M R - K&
ERSTEMERES BEBEEEY 2
HhkEERERRRERRRYE BEARDH
2y URREEPRBELRENERZR
AR BPIEGE ERRASETEREE
MHEEHNAFRBEEREEIHNEREL
EE

EFETEEXRBAMNRE HeRE
AR ARERRERMAOEREIE &R
EEAGERERARMMREREZEEEL
BERRET RNBEFTSHIRE 48
REREHEMEE H B2023F6ARE - — %
HITEEMAKABRE @8 MERIED
B - ZIENEEERRE HE@RER
EH UHRR HERELGEEMALM
MAFEEE KEHEBTLER ANE
BB ERRER - UARE=ZTEEE
ZEMPINSREEEAEK - TENESF
BRMAEH el HEARRRBE  BR
NERFHIRE HENREBRTERBEK
WHAEENEIEKETRETES -

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA



70

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HEREREBE

Compliance with ESG-related regulations

The Group is committed to complying with relevant laws and
regulations that pertain to our business operations, including the
registration and licensing of clinics, processing of radioactive
substances and apparatuses, clinical waste treatment, marketing
and promotion of healthcare products and services, possession and
distribution of drugs, and the protection of customer and patient

privacy.

We have established robust internal policies and systems to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Our commitment
to environmental protection, community contribution, fair labour
practices, occupational health and safety, patients’ rights protection,
and responsible procurement is outlined in our Corporate Social
Responsibility policy (“CSR policy”). All employees are expected
to comply with the CSR policy and the relevant procedures in
the Whistleblowing Policy and Employee Handbook, which help
monitor and improve the quality of services provided by our
affiliated practitioners to our customers. Other than guidance
from our standard written procedures, our staff and medical/
dental practitioners are provided with training and development
programmes to keep them updated on recent developments in
compliance matters.
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Stakeholder engagement

We appreciate the trust and support from our stakeholders, and
we engage with our stakeholders to understand their views on
the ESG issues that concern them the most. The engagement and
communication with our stakeholders are essential to align our
business practices with their needs and expectations.

Stakeholders
K&
Government and regulatory authorities

BT R B AR

&SR

MEEHEE -

Engagement

285K

Respond to inquiries with government department

(2] & 2R i BB P9 & 5

BAPVEA B0 EOEERS YRR E
B TROMRABLONERE HEakE
AERERHAREEANESL - BENERS
NBBASHMNELERmEMFONFER

Investors

REE

Issue timely announcements and circulars

Convene regular shareholder meetings
EHARBRRRE

Publish financial and ESG reports
TIEMBHRERRE HEREERS

Employees

=

Training and employee-caring activities
B RERER AR

Grievance mechanism

FR &% 14 7

Company intranet

NS

Customers

BF

UMP Service Point app
[UMPHR# 6 | E A2
Customer hotline

TP AR

Feedback surveys

BERAE

Suppliers and contractors

Supplier rating system

HEm kA BE HEREFRER
o Regular communication
EHER
Community J Cooperation with social enterprises
ol HUYEMREE
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Materiality assessment

Materiality assessment is a continuous process to review our
sustainability approach and reporting. Through a review of
the impact and importance of ESG issues to the Group and its
stakeholders, our assessment process has showed changes in the
material ESG topics this year. With reference to the material topics
that were identified last year, we have incorporated two new topics
into the list of material topics, namely “Development and Training”
and “Access to Health Care”, to align with industry norms and
respond to the evolving priorities of our stakeholders. By adding
these new areas of focus, we maintain a comprehensive and relevant
sustainability framework that promotes positive change for our

company, stakeholders, and the environment.

Material topics of the Group

Patients’ Data Protection and Privacy
Service Quality and Safety

Supply Chain Management

Business Ethics

Employee Relations

Labour Standards

Development and Training
Occupational Health and Safety
Access to Health Care

Hazardous Waste Management

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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OUR SERVICES

UMP is dedicated to safeguarding community health, providing
quality service, and improving patient satisfaction. Our Quality
Assurance and Safety Committee, comprising medical practitioners
and senior management, is responsible for monitoring the
performance of our clinics and providing suggestions on clinical
governance, clinical risk, and continuous development of clinical
and professional services. The Committee also formulates policies
and procedures regarding the healthcare and medical services

offered by the Group.
The Group strictly complied with all relevant laws and regulations

on health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided.
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Clinic hygiene and infection control

To ensure a healthy and comfortable clinical environment, we
prioritise maintaining environmental hygiene in our medical
centres. Other than good ventilation and lighting systems, we
equip clinics with a special suction apparatus to reduce aerosols
in the air and procure personal protective equipment (“PPE”) to
maintain sufficient stock across our clinic chains. Patient triage
and placement procedures are in place to prevent the transmission
of disease within clinics. We carefully sterilise reusable medical
equipment and ensure that sufficient sanitary and hand-washing
facilities are available to all patients and staff. Hand hygiene tips
and cough etiquette posters are also displayed at our clinics to act
as a reminder for all. We provide clinic infection control training
to clinic staff to prevent epidemic diseases and further reduce the
risk of communicable diseases. Surgical masks and other necessary
protective equipment are also provided to frontline staff to safeguard
their health. Proper disposal of waste generated by clinics is also
an important clinical infection control. Please refer to the “Our
Environment” section for further details.

Patient relationship management

To ensure high-quality medical services, it is important for us to
understand our patients’ needs and concerns. The Group has various
established communication platforms to engage with patients and
provide them with enhanced convenient and quality services.
Our mobile app UMP Service Point is the primary platform for
communication, allowing users to access the latest information
about doctor availability, types of healthcare services offered, and

the location and operation hours of our medical centres.

Following our Complaints and Incident Reporting guidelines,
all first-hand complaints about the clinics are to be directed to
the respective clinic-in-charge. Feedback or suggestions can be
submitted via the UMP hotline or website. Any complaints that
relate to medical practice are handled by Clinic Chain Management
Department and will be investigated thoroughly and impartially.
During FY2023, the Group did not receive any complaints related to
our services and products.
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Safeguarding patient’s rights and their privacy

The Group treats patients of all backgrounds equally and
prohibits any discrimination in terms of age, race, sex, marital
status, pregnancy, disability, or any other traits protected by

anti-discrimination legislation.

To protect patients’ rights, UMP is committed to maintaining a
transparent and open relationship with patients throughout the entire
healthcare process. The patients’ medical status is kept confidential,
and we respect patients’ decisions to accept or refuse medication or

treatment.

The Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(“PDPQ”) regarding the collection, retention, handling, disclosure,
and use of personal data including medical history. To avoid
unauthorised disclosure of confidential information, we maintain
a data storage system to regularly monitor and evaluate the
risk of improper use of information. Our Employee Handbook
stipulates that staff may only access confidential information on a
need-to-know basis and must follow our procedures when handling
printed and electronic documents related to personal data. To
strengthen the protection of confidential patient information, we
provided trainings on personal data privacy this year to guide staff in
upholding their responsibilities on privacy matters.

Quality of medical services and products

UMP is highly conscious of the responsibility to deliver quality
services and products to achieve and maintain patients’ health and
well-being. We have implemented a service quality management
approach in our day-to-day business operations. This approach
strictly monitors operations from patient registration to clinical
consultation procedures and efficiency management. This approach
is also clearly outlined in our internal guidelines for staff, and we
regularly review the relevant procedures to ensure they remain up to
date.
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We believed that digitalisation and innovation are crucial to
ensuring and improving the quality of our services. In view of this,
the Group has collaborated with a local university to develop an
artificial intelligence (“Al”)-powered nurse named “WaiWai”. This
mobile application uses medical big data to analyse and predict
users’ health conditions, providing personalised care services
tailored to different age groups and treatment strategies. In addition
to WaiWai, UMP has established the UMP Healthcare Innov Centre,
which serves as a platform for exchanging ideas among medical
technology developers, medical professionals, and health-conscious
individuals. This platform supports the development of MedTech and
HealthTech in Hong Kong, promotes the use of advanced medical
devices and treatment options, and supports the development of
related technologies. By investing in digitalisation and innovation,
we strive to bring new possibilities to medical services in Hong Kong
and provide the best possible care to our patients.

Professional practitioners

The Group takes pride in providing safe and high-quality healthcare
services through qualified practitioners. At UMP, all medical
practitioners possess valid certifications and qualifications to
provide relevant medical treatments and handle drug and pharmacy
matters. Doctors, dentists, and certain auxiliary service providers are
required to comply with applicable codes of professional conduct or

discipline.

To ensure that all practitioners are competent in providing quality
healthcare services, we have a process in place that involves
more than one senior executive from UMP to identify qualified
and suitable practitioners. The recruitment process begins with a
review of the candidate’s background by a Director from the Human
Resources Department, followed by a video or face-to-face meeting.
Suitable candidates are then interviewed by the General Manager.
The Co-Chief Executive Officers are also involved in the hiring
decision-making process. Professional qualifications and certificates
are collected and kept on record.
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At UMP, we make a concerted effort to ensure that our medical
services meet industry standards. To achieve this, we provide our
practitioners with the necessary resources to enhance their skills
and knowledge. Our dedicated team conducts regular clinical visits
to engage with our affiliated practitioners and ensure consistency
in the quality of care provided. We periodically review our policies
on practitioner selection, remuneration, and training with the
senior management team to ensure that we deliver clinical care
in accordance with industry standards and promote sustainable

business operations.

Supply chain management

UMP procures medicines and medical equipment from qualified
pharmaceutical companies and suppliers of medical consumables in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Our Procurement
Policy provides a framework for all procurement activities within the
Group, and specific procedures are developed for different business
units as needed.

The procurement and supplier management processes aim to support
the long-term business development of UMP by continuously
improving supplier performance and the relationship between
suppliers and UMP. Performance ratings for suppliers are determined
by assessing multiple criteria, including product quality, delivery
time, brand reputation, and environmental and social factors.
Suppliers with higher performance ratings, are engaged when
procuring a particular good or service. The Group encourages
feedback from suppliers to monitor procurement progress and
identify areas for improvement. The preferred supplier list is
reviewed annually to ensure supplier performance meets UMP’s
procurement standards.

In addition, UMP adopts a centralised procurement system to
facilitate the ordering and distribution of medical supplies to
individual UMP Medical Centres. Each centre is responsible for
storing its own inventory of drugs and medical consumables. This
system effectively controls the quality and costs of procurement,
while also eliminating the risk of corruption and bribery.
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BUSINESS ETHICS

The Group continues to maintain high ethical standards and works
closely with employees to promote strong ethical values.

UMP has a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms of
corruption and observes and upholds high standards of business
integrity, honesty, fairness, impartiality, and transparency. Our
Anti-corruption Policy sets out the minimum standard of conduct
which applies to all directors, officers, and employees of the Group.
Compliance with this policy is obligatory, and any violation thereof
may result in disciplinary action, including potential employment
termination and the imposition of civil or criminal sanctions. As part
of our efforts to strengthen anti-corruption practices and promote
employee awareness, we have invited Independent Commission
Against Corruption to deliver annual anti-corruption training
sessions to directors and all employees this year.

Our Employee Handbook contains guidelines setting out the Group's
policies regarding gifts from suppliers and clients. To avoid conflicts
of interest, employees are recommended to either return the gift with
a written explanation, donate it to a charity through the Group, or
keep the gift while donating an amount equal to the market value of
the gift to charity. In certain circumstances, we request employees
to report necessary instances to their supervisors and the Human
Resources and Administration Department.

The Group encourages employees to report any suspected instances
of unethical business behaviour. Our Whistleblowing Policy, which
is a part of our internal risk management system, sets forth the
procedures for reporting inappropriate behaviour or violations of
UMP’s Code of Ethics. The Group has established an email address
to receive whistleblowing reports, providing a secure channel for
employees to report any irregularities and improprieties to the
Internal Audit Department. The utmost confidentiality is maintained,
with the Group ensuring that the identity of whistleblowers will
not be divulged without their explicit consent or the issuance of a
court order. Employees can anonymously report any misbehaviour,
dereliction of duty, or irregularities involving the Group, without

fear of reprisal.
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RE - HEREREBE

UMP also thinks highly of the intellectual property rights of the
company and respect third party intellectual property rights. Over
the years, the Group had registered a myriad of trademarks for its
services offered in Hong Kong and Mainland China, covering diverse
domains such as family doctor services, payment application,
internal training courses and branches of different professional
centre. The Group maintains a Trademark Register which keep
records of the registration number, mark image, class number,
owner’s name and expiry date. The Group will take legal action
and consult with legal experts if there are any violations of the
intellectual property rights that the company owns. We will continue
to strengthen intellectual property application and protection.

During FY2023, there have been no legal cases regarding
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or non-compliance with
intellectual property laws brought against the Group or our
employees.

OUR EMPLOYEE

Employee benefits and welfare

We recognise the valuable contribution made by our employees
to the success of the business. To ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Employment Ordinance, the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance
of the Laws of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC, and the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC, the Group has implemented
various human resources management policies and procedures.
Our Employee Handbook outlines detailed rules and guidelines for
employee conduct, as well as the rights and responsibilities of staff
in the workplace.

We strive to create an inclusive and positive work culture that
promotes the well-being of our staff. Employees from all departments
and levels are encouraged to express their views on improving work
efficiency and internal communication to achieve better quality and
productivity.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

BMeBBENTREERARANMBERE I
EEF-NANHER -ZER AKEHHBE
REBRFPEAMMRERNRBEEMZ AR
FAERERZAE  BREREBERY
XNER ABBEIRERTRANEEE
FLDEE - AKREBEF -OERELM
ERREELRE  RLER - BB -
BEEEMBLARS - MEREARILAR
BIABERNTA  AKERERIVARTH
W FE AR B IR o 3 A9 % A AR 0 o N 8 EE
B FE R R AR e

R20238 MFE - WES B ANKEKE TR
BREMNES B R MFEXTET
AMBERAEONAERM -

ERHES

BESBRER
BZPEEREREEXRMIENEERR -
REEREBSTEECERGDD - CHE ISR K
By~ CRARBAR G AR PBEChEARK
MESEZE) (PEARKNREBHARE)
FMAZERNES  AKBEEETERAND
BREERREERF - R8T M
TERREREBRTHFARA NES - AKE
THEIESMMENREE-

BHARSEEBBTRBEEN THEXE  E
B TR - MAECER AT - SEBAN
EERMARATHEREEABRERE
RoURSEEREET -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

To incentivise and motivate employees to support UMP’s goals, the
Group offers competitive remuneration and merit bonuses, including
share options and share awards schemes. Staff benefits include
comprehensive medical insurance, employment compensation
insurance, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and mandatory
provident fund for employees. Employees are also entitled to
annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave and
examination leave. To encourage work-life balance and ensure
well-being among employees, the Group has clear policies outlining
overtime working arrangements. We are devoted to creating career
development opportunities and fostering unified spirit amongst
employees across the Group.

Labour Standards

UMP is dedicated to conducting all of its business affairs in
accordance with the highest standards and regulations of ethical
business conduct. As per the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and the International Labour Organisation
Conventions, the Group strictly adheres to the principles of
respecting basic human rights and eradicating any and all forms of
child or forced labour practices. We oblige our suppliers to uphold

and apply the same stringent standards in their operations.

To prevent incidents of such infringements, the Group implements
multiple measures, including thorough identity verification checks
on potential candidates, unambiguous employment contracts,
and avoiding hiring candidates with fake qualifications and under
legal working age. If any instances of child or forced labour are
discovered, the Group immediately terminates the contract. The
management regularly reviews the effectiveness of its labour

standards management approach.

During FY2023, the Group was not found with nor involved in any
non-compliance in employment and labour or employment of any

child labour or forced labour.
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Development and training

With the principle of maximising the utility of our employee’s
capability, UMP is committed to supporting the career development
of the Group’s employees. We provide professional support to
ensure employees can manage and perform their duties effectively.
To ensure the well-being of our employees and patients, the clinic’s
management team has established a set of guidelines for clinic staff
to follow to prevent and mitigate the spread of infectious diseases.

All new employees are required to attend an orientation where they
will receive a thorough introduction to the Group and its operations.
UMP also provides educational sponsorship and examination leave
for clinic staff to pursue additional external training related to their
duties, including injection techniques, blood sample collection,
medication dispensing and other job-related skills and knowledge.
All employees can receive up to HKD3,000 per year for external
work-related training, with 80% of the course fee being subsidised.
The sponsorship program aims to enhance the personal and
professional development of our medical and clinical support staff.
With above measures implemented, UMP is on track to reduce the
risk of infection transmission within the clinic, provide a safe and
comfortable environment for patients and staff and enhance the
clinic’s reputation for safety and quality care.

Other than clinic-related matter, employees are required to be
familiarised with protocols for maintaining a clean, orderly, and
safe work area that is hazard-free, performing work in a safe
manner so as not to jeopardise oneself or others in the work area,
using protective equipment and safe materials and being able to
identify and become familiar with the Emergency Plan, Evacuation
Procedures, Procedures for Life Safety Threats, and other general
safety issues in the event of an emergency to ensure safety and

minimise loss.

Furthermore, UMP encourages employees to expand their work
contacts within the Group and to take advantage of career
development opportunities. Employees will have the chance to
pursue development in other parts of the Group, and the policy also
allows us to maximise the company’s utility by transferring capable

employees to the most suitable service areas.
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Health and safety at workplace

The health and safety of employees are of the utmost priority at
UMP. Health and safety policies and practices are integrated into
our business operations and activities to minimise safety risks.

Infection control is a priority in every clinic. The clinic has been
equipped with personal protection and preventive equipment,
including hand-washing facilities, adequate masks, and sharps
disposal containers. All clinic staff have been educated on health
and safety procedures and are encouraged to proactively raise
awareness of infection control and report potential risks to the
person in charge for the clinic.

We require all employees to be aware of unsafe medical procedures.
Special medical equipment such as irradiation apparatus can only
be operated by certified staff. Clinic staff are regularly trained in
proper use of medical equipment to keep up with the changes. All
employees are also required to follow the general office safety and
workplace rules.

During FY2023, the Group strictly complied with all relevant laws
and regulations on occupational health and safety, including but not
limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the
laws of the PRC on prevention and control of occupational diseases.

OUR COMMUNITY

Our mission is to offer trusted and affordable services to individuals
from all walks of life. We aim to go beyond providing our patients
with healthcare services but also promote public health within the
communities we serve. We hold ourselves to the highest standards
of quality and strive to make a positive impact on the overall

well-being of those we cater to.

Access to healthcare is a fundamental component of a healthy
society that promotes health equity. It ensures that everyone has
equal opportunities to receive proper medical care, regardless
of their socioeconomic status, race, or gender. By improving
accessibility to healthcare, we can also achieve significant cost
savings for both individuals and society as a whole.
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RE - HEREREBE

To improve accessibility to healthcare, UMP has established
a virtual care platform that enables patients to have video
consultations with a doctor and receive necessary prescriptions
without leaving their homes, which helps to effectively respond and
solve many common illness and chronic conditions. In FY2023,
we provided free telemedicine services for COVID-19 patients. The
program involves the participation of 16 doctors and 50 supporting
staff and has benefited 1,627 individuals from the convenience
of remote healthcare consultations. Moreover, to improve health
literacy among the general public, we have initiated a health literacy
campaign, which includes publishing health leaflets and educational
videos to raise public awareness of common illnesses and promote
mental health. Recognising the importance of educating younger
generations, we have collaborated with local schools to organise
health talks and work tasting programs, fostering a culture of
proactive health awareness and building a healthier future
generation.

UMP recognises that individuals who are marginalised or
disadvantaged may face additional difficulties in accessing to
healthcare. The Group aims to address the barriers of financial
concerns and promoting accessibility to healthcare for elderlies
by promoting the Government Health Scheme. We are also part
of the Colorectal Cancer (“CRC”) Screening Programme, which is
subsidised by the government and has now been fully implemented
and extended to asymptomatic Hong Kong residents aged between
50 and 75. By participating in the programme, we are helping to
promote early detection and treatment of colorectal cancer, which
can ultimately save lives and reduce medical expenses in our

society.

We also actively participate in charitable events organised by
non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”). During FY2023, the
Group donated a total of HK$79,000 to various charitable or
NGOs. In the future, UMP will continue encouraging employees
to care for the community and contribute to society by organising
and participating in volunteer activities, and actively building a

sustainable society while pursuing business development.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group recognises that we have a responsibility to minimise our
impact on the environment and to promote sustainable practices
both within our organisation and throughout our industry, as
outlined in our CSR policy. While our top priority is providing
high quality and reliable medical services, we strictly comply with
applicable environmental laws and standards. Our environmental
efforts include actively reducing our impact on the environment
through energy conservation, waste reduction and recycling, as
well as raising employees’ awareness of environmental issues and
promoting employees’ contribution to improving our environmental

performance.

Waste management

UMP recognises the importance of safe and effective waste
management, as well as to follow established local protocols
and guidelines to minimise the risk of accidents or exposure to
hazardous materials. In terms of disposing of clinical waste, the
Group strictly abide by environmental policies and regulations
including the Code of Practice on Clinical Waste Management in
Hong Kong and the Clinical Waste Management Ordinance in the
PRC. UMP is experienced in handling clinical waste in a safe, legal,
and professional manner to avoid potential risks to the environment

and human health caused by improper disposal.

Prior to collection, clinical waste is segregated and placed in
appropriately labelled garbage bins and bags, while chemical waste
is categorised and disposed of in labelled containers that specifically
designed to be leakproof and puncture resistant. The Code for
the Disposal of Medical Waste specifies the categories of medical
waste, including syringes, contaminated pads, cotton balls, human
tissue samples from examinations, dental amalgam, and expired
medicines, and provides staff with specific procedures to properly
manage and dispose of medical waste. Records of Medical Waste
should be sealed, labelled, and stored in designated locations in our
medical centres for collection by licensed waste collector for further
processing. We keep detailed medical waste records with tracking
information, such as delivery date and address, quantity, and name
of licensed collector. All clinic staff are required to receive training
to ensure proper implementation of these procedures. We regularly
monitor the disposal of both clinical and chemical waste to ensure
that they are handled correctly and safely.
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Non-hazardous waste of the Group is composed of general waste
and office paper waste. To reduce the amount of non-hazardous
waste, the Group has adopted the following measures:

° Educate our staff to reduce unnecessary material consumption
and disposal;

. Employ electronic system for administrative purposes to
minimise paper usage; and

J Disseminate internal communications through emails and
electronic messages instead of printed materials.

Resource management

Ensuring medication safety and quality requires appropriate
packaging that includes individual packaging and clear labelling
with relevant information for identification purposes. At UMP, we
employ various types of packaging to meet these requirements.
Medicinal bottles, pill pouches, ointment jars, ointment bottles,
dropper bottles, and plastic bags are used for packaging medicines,
pills, and topical ointments. Likewise, report folders and bags
are utilised for our imaging services, while specimen containers
serve our laboratory services. Recognising the importance of
environmental preservation and reducing plastic waste, we are
actively exploring the implementation of a USB burning system as a
substitute for wet firm, which has the potential to result a substantial
reduction in X-ray bag consumption.
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A significant portion of UMP’s energy consumption is attributed
to the general lighting and the use of medical equipment, such
as high-temperature disinfection and X-ray imaging apparatus. To
reduce our energy consumption, we are continuously exploring
energy-saving measures in our daily operations, such as installing
LED lighting systems in some medical centres and prioritising
energy efficiency medical equipment to improve energy efficiency.
In order to optimise the management of energy consumption, we
have launched a Smart Energy Monitoring Solution at our ProCare
Integrated Medical Imaging and Laboratory Centre (Tsim Sha Tsui)
this year which enables real-time monitoring of energy usage and
provides intricate analysis of energy consumption patterns. By
leveraging this technology, we can identify areas of superfluous
energy usage and implement targeted strategies to enhance energy
efficiency.

Furthermore, the Group is actively promoting centralised
information management and digitising operations by utilising IT
systems to reduce paper consumption. Clinical management and
administrative work, including the Group’s E-Claims system, have
been digitised to further minimise our paper consumption.

While climate change is not considered material for UMP’s
operation, it is recognised as a significant global environmental issue
that poses health and safety risks to individuals and communities.
For instance, air pollution increases the risk of respiratory
infections, heart disease and lung cancer, and higher temperatures
and humidity can lead to the proliferation of disease-carrying
mosquitoes, which can cause illnesses such as malaria and dengue
fever. In addition to the health impacts, climate change can also
lead to an increase in the frequency and severity of extreme weather
events. Appropriate measures have been implemented to train staff
members and ensure that the operations can respond quickly during
extreme weather events. The Employee Handbook outlines clear
guidelines and rules in response to Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above
or Black Rainstorm Warning, and medical centres facing greater
risks from extreme weather events are identified and managed
through risk management strategies.

As a responsible healthcare service provider, the Group is taking
steps to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions and adopting
measures to prepare our operations to respond to climate-related
risks. In doing so, we aim to reduce the environmental impacts of
our operations and protect the health and well-being of our patients
and the wider community.
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R HEBRERRE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY? REHEBERHE

FY2022
20228 BUEE

FY2023
20238 BUE E

Environmental KPIs?

REBRARER

86

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions*

BERE R

Scope 2 GHG emissions® tonnes CO,e 944.17 1,072.77
BEVRERBYRC N —R(LIREE
Emission intensity tonnes CO,e/visiting patient 0.00086 0.00109
BREmE AWM REE KPR
#

Hazardous waste produced
FEXEREERY
Medical waste tonnes 2.48 6.36
BEEZEY N
Medical waste intensity tonnes/visiting patient 0.000002 0.000006

BREERVEE DM/ ke

Any discrepancies between (i) totals provided and the sum of the numbers
presented; and (ii) percentages provided and the associated numbers
throughout the Report are due to rounding.

The data for medical waste, general waste and packaging materials from our
Imaging and Laboratory business are newly included in FY2023 due to data
availability, resulting in a significant increase in these data.

Our scope 1 emission includes direct but fugitive emission of
hydrofluorocarbon (HFC), which is expected in small quantities as the Group
uses HFC-based refrigerants for pharmacy refrigerators, therefore relevant data
is not disclosed.

Our scope 2 emission includes indirect emission from purchased electricity.
Calculation methodologies for GHG emissions: “Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” published
by the Environmental Protection Department and the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department of the Hong Kong SAR Government.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

BEPOMREABREMZIBFRNZE &
(PFIRREBES L EBEAR T HNEENEZR -
TYE M FAPTE -

HRESHMOTEREREBNEREEY
—RERMREBEMBHBIE - MR20230 BF
EHMATZERE  SHEMBBEREEM -

BENFEREERAETERCY (THFC)) WERZE
BRI - AREMEASEMEANELEI

HFCAX - ETERSEX LD EHFCHER + Bt £
WERAAEEE -

HERFHRIERBINBEHNREER - RER
BHMONFER L BERBBFRBFE TRE
RESRHETRZEHRO(EBREEY (BXE -
FEHAHEAR) R EREIRSBR N ZERN
HmEHESID) -




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
e HERERRSE

Environmental KPIs? i FY2022 FY2023
RERRAEMRER 20228 B F B 20238 B F
Non-hazardous waste produced
FELXBERRY
General waste litres 607,807 931,559
—REEY NF
General waste intensity litres/visiting patient 0.55 0.94
—REERNEE DIt/ K BE
Energy consumption
BERUH #E
Purchased electricity MWh 1,368.2 1,554.6
SNEBE KRR
Energy consumption intensity MWh/visiting patient 0.0012 0.0016
BEREREE KRBk BE
Packaging materials consumption
BERMBERE
Packaging materials kg 1,516 6,429
B % 2y
Packaging material consumption intensity kg/visiting patient 0.0014 0.0065
BEMBBEREE Rk BE
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Social KPIs® FY2022 FY2023
HERRERER 20228 B E 2023 REF E
Number of employees
BEAH
Total 526 580
B
By employment type Full-time 449 508
RERER 2B
Part-time 77 72
B
By gender Male 105 119
RIE R B4
Female 421 461
g
By age group Below 30 125 142
irges W] 308 A T
30 -40 195 188
305%-405%
41 - 50 96 114
415%-505%
Above 50 110 136
5058 A £
By employment category Senior level 45 44
RERER =ARER
Middle level 110 151
RARE &
General level 371 385
EBER
By geographical region Hong Kong 435 489
R R E
Mainland China 85 85
B A 3,
Macau 6 6
RS

® Number of employees, number of employees turnover, and employee’s
turnover rate reported cover our operations in Hong Kong, Macau and

Mainland China.
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Social KPIs® FY2022 FY2023
HERRARIER 20228 B F 20238 B F
Number of employees turnover
BEREXAH
Total 293 283
B
By gender Male 55 55
biagi il Bt
Female 238 228
g
By age group Below 30 120 92
BE A Al 308K AT
30 -40 103 86
305%-405%
41 - 50 41 55
4175%-505%
Above 50 29 50
5058 A £
By geographical region Hong Kong 270 278
R [= ES
Mainland China 23 5
B A3
Macau 0 0
P
Employee’s turnover rate’
BERAE
By gender Male 52% 46%
gkl Bt
Female 57% 49%
gegid

7

In FY2022, there was a department restructuring within the Group, resulting in 7 P20228 BF & - REBRIETHIEE - 5

a higher-than-usual turnover rate. However, in FY2023, as things returned to BRAESRESF - A - R2023M BFE - BE

normal, our turnover rate decreased overall when compared to FY2022. EBRER BERAXTE2022MBEEELE
P BE -
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Social KPIs® FY2022 FY2023
HERRERER 20228 B E 2023 REF E
By age group Below 30 96% 65%
irges W] 308 A T
30 -40 53% 46%
305%—-405%
41 - 50 43% 48%
415%-505%
Above 50 26% 37%
505% A -
By geographical region Hong Kong 62% 57%
B ES
Mainland China 27% 6%
A 3
Macau 0% 0%
P
Number of trained employees®
ZIEE AR
Total 278 269
2
By gender Male 79 79
bagi il 514
Female 199 190
pegi
By employment category Senior level 35 37
RERER =B R
Middle level 23 86
1R B R
General level 211 146
BB B

8

HAlE B ABE A S AR FIEIE IR 2 BUR

8 The data on the number and percentage of trained employees and the average

training hours only covers the training sessions arranged or provided by the EREREETBSIREAIEIIRE - ARAE
Group. It does not take into account any external training that employees may W B B R - RO AT ST B B AT R 2 N EY (AT
have attended as the relevant data has not been collected. SNEBEE BN o
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Social KPIs® FY2022 FY2023
HEERERER 20228 B F 20238 B F
Percentage of trained employees
ZIEEES L
By gender Male 75% 66%
BRI R £y
Female 47% 41%
oy
By employment category Senior level 83% 84%
RERER = AR E R
Middle level 29% 57%
AR E &
General level 60% 38%
EBER

Average training hours’

F 3935 3 B B

By gender Male 0.64 3.90
=1 Rl B
Female 1.5 1.5
gegi
By employment category Senior level 4 7
RIERER = A E R
Middle level 2 2
hARER
General level 2 1
BB

9 In FY2023, we conducted two full-day training sessions on data privacy for  ° R20238BFE @ KM ASRERIESBHWK
senior level employees which led to a significant increase in the average FRENMLEROZ BEIIRE  SRTHHIE
training hours. AMEE N -
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Social KPIs® FY2022 FY2023
HERERAEMRER 202281 B F & 2023 BUF E
Health and safety
RERZZ
Number of work-related fatalities' 0 0
ETTiRag ABe
Number of lost days due to work injury 44 0"
ATIBBELXIEAH
Number of suppliers
HEEHE
By region Hong Kong 570 491
B B
Number of hours of anti-corruption trainings provided
iR RESEIRE
Total 84 95
B
By gender Male 34 38
bagi il St
Female 56 57
oy
By employment category Senior level 23 20
R ERAR = AR E R
Middle level 32 35
RARER
General level 35 40
5 B A

0 Total number of work-related fatalities in FY2021 was also 0.

""" One of our employees experienced a back injury while working in FY2022,
which is considered a one-off accident.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2023 ANNUAL REPORT

0

11

2021 R FEE T T8 ZAEI RO °

K202 BFE  BMH—BEETERSHZ
S LR A —B—IRMEEN



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE HEXF(BIE - HEREAREIE

INDEX SDARBERSG
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Section Remarks
A - i
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing Management of ESG
EIRLRE the following elements: aspects
HEFTSRLNENR  EFHATIAE: | RR HER
BRTHNERE

(i)  a disclosure of the board’s oversight
of ESG issues;
(i) WEEFGURSE HERERFHR

E/]Q:,—: e

(ii) the board’s ESG management
approach and strategy, including the
process used to evaluate, prioritise
and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and

(il EFEMNRE HERER/EERITH
K RES - B - R MEE
EENRE HERERHBEER
(BREBTARTOER) MBI
54

(iii) how the board reviews progress
made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

(i) BFRFMARIRE LG REIQIAH
BiRmal £ - SRR T 0 a5
TARB A BE

&
op
Rl

B

5
i
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Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Section

=z e

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRE

Remarks

BEHERE

Reporting Principles

— Materiality
EHRRA-FEM

(i)  the process to identify and the
criteria for the selection of material
ESG factors;

() HANEBRE HeREAEAEZNA
BEEEELEEARNER

(ii)  if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified,
and the process and results of the
issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

(i) WMETADETHHESR TG
MEERNE WL RETARNE
ZHEIBENER -

E B

Reporting standard
B 7 7 A

i

Reporting Principles
— Quantitative

PE R A — &1t

Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or
calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting
of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable)

ERERFERE, ARER (@A) B
R - 708 BRE/HAETANE
Bt DARERE A R B3R R X /9 SRR 8 T 4R

=,

Reporting standard
BEE ¥ %= Al

Reporting Principles
— Consistency

PE R IR Bl — — Bl

The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or
KPIs used, or any other relevant factors
affecting a meaningful comparison.
BOABRERE HehEaBRETRE
BET AR ARERBEENEE (WF) K
THEMEZEERRLBNEBRE -

Reporting standard
FE 5 2 1)

Reporting Boundary
PE ¥R

A narrative explaining the reporting
boundaries of the ESG report and
describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included
in the ESG report.

BERE HERBEARRENERDE
KA k@ L BRE S R M AR -+t
ERERBRENBEIE -

Reporting scope

DEE % £ [E]
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section Remarks
FTEER EEH —REERBEREARER 3] B
A. Environmental
A RE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : SR
General Disclosure Information on: Our Environment As our major purpose is
— M H B FABERKRKREREBHENR Rk | HMARE to operate clinics, provide
THHES  EEREEEREDN medical services and
EEER corporate health solutions,
our activities do not emit
a) the policies; and significant quantities of air
a) BE Rk pollutants or discharge into
water.
b)  compliance with relevant HRBEMOEEZEXEBRE =
laws and regulations that KEDH RHEBEERB R
have a significant impact EBEREBATERE B
on the issuer relating to PR EREHP L |EAXSZE
air and greenhouse gas RO RMBER L RIKBET ©
emissions, discharges
into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste
by BTHBETABEAZENM
FOZERRPINESR -
KPI AT.1 The types of emissions and - As our activities do not emit
B R R BB EAT respective emissions data significant quantities of air
HERU iR 2R K A8 B BE LB o pollutants and effluents, this
issue is not material to the
Group.
R IR I SR 7505 B P I R
REZRFRY MFKEE
Mo WEBRHAKEMS L
TEKX-
20233 | BMABKEEBRAF
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —KRERBERBEEARER

KPI A1.2
RS AR SRR 1RAT .2

Greenhouse gas emissions in

total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility)
BERBAENE (CAMEGHE) &
(WER)ZE (WABESEM -
BERMEE) °

Section
=6
Performance data

summary

RRBEME

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HBREARE

Remarks

E

KPI A1.3
S AR IR FE1RAT.3

Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility)
PMELBEEREMHEE (AME)
RnER) ZE (MNEBESEE
T SEBMHE) -

Performance data
summary

RRBEME

KPI A1.4
FASRAR IR IRAT 4

Total non-hazardous waste
produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per
facility)

PRELEZEZENHE (AHHE)
Rpam #wE (WA SEEE
iz - BEARMETHE) °

Performance data
summary

RRBEME
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —REBERBEEARER

KPI A1.5
S4TSR IRIRALS

Description of emission target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve
them

AR BERE R B R RESR
LB IRPTERENR P8R -

B

Section

=z e

E B

Our environment

HPIERE

- HERER®E

Remarks

o

Emissions are not
considered to be the

most material issues
comparatively given the
Group’s business nature.
We have not set specific
targets with respect to

this aspect. The Group
reviews its operations and
environmental performance
on an ongoing basis and
will consider setting targets
as appropriate.
ERAREMEREE -
MERY M = KRR IR
ERSH- - HMEET LM
THOABRR AKER
BERLENRERE I
HEBEBERI NI E

iR o

KPI A1.6
RIS 4E IE1RAT.6

Description of how hazardous

and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

WA EEEEREZERYMNT
A& R AR SRR EE B AR M S
ZERE L B RPTRELA B -

Our environment

HFIRIRE

Our Code for the Disposal
of Medical Waste is in
place which outlines

our commitment and
management on medical
waste management. We
have not set specific

targets with respect to

this aspect. The Group
reviews its operations and
environmental performance
on an ongoing basis and
will consider setting targets
as appropriate.
BFFTB(REBEERY
TR BRI EE
BERYEET M AHRE
I o APIL AT S UE DT E A
ARER AEEFEER
LERBRRRR  LTHERE
HEEBRTIFILBR -
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B HBREARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —KRERBERBEEARER

BmEA2 : ERFEH

Aspect A2: Use of resources

Section
=6

Remarks

E

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials
BERERAER(BERIR - KREAM
[RETEL) BER ©

Our environment

TAFIE IR

We consume municipal
water mainly for dental
services but not in
significant quantities;
therefore, the issue is not
material to the Group.
BPIPTANARERAKER
RRFRRY - BRKER
R EE - hEBEHAEE
MELTEK o

KPI A2.1
RA SR 4B R 12 A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per
facility)
RSN ERE R SEEER
(BNE - Feom) BFEE (ATET
ERFE) MEE(WMUEEEE
iz - BERMETHE) °

Performance data
summary

RRBERE

KPI A2.2
R SR B IR 12A2.2

Water consumption in total

and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)
BIEKEREE (MABEEEN -
SHER I H) -

We do not consume
municipal water in
significant quantities;
therefore, the issue is not
material to the Group.
BRI EERAELA B R
KAl hEBEHAREE
MELTEK -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —REBERBEEARER

KPI A2.3
B S AR I IR1RA2.3

Description of energy use
efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

A PTRI LB RER M E B R R
REFNELRZMERBMOTE -

B

Section

=z e

E B

Our environment

HPIERE

- HERER®E

Remarks

o

Energy uses are not
considered to be the

most material issues
comparatively given the
Group’s business nature.
While we put effort to
improve our energy
efficiency, we have not set
specific targets with respect
to this aspect. The Group
reviews its operations and
environmental performance
on an ongoing basis and
will consider setting targets
as appropriate.
ERAKBHEREE - 8
TRAE AR Y = AR I 3F
REZEH -BERMEN
RERMHOEERYE - B
P BT T E R A8 R
R AKERERREER
RERE  USKEEEEE
BRTEILBRER -

KPI A2.4
FASRAR AN FEIRA2 4

Description of whether there is
any issue in sourcing water that

is fit for purpose, water efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them

i 2t SR ER @ P 7KOR R B AR
B AR PRI M KRR as B AR &
REIGFLERBEMRMATE

Water consumption

is minimal within our
operation. Therefore, the
issue is not material to the
Group, and we have not set
specific targets with respect
to this aspect.
BHEEERNAEKER
e Eit - thEEHAEE
mEWAEKXN - BAAIIREET
VU STHEHAEERE -

KPI A2.5
BA SR AR B 1R A2.5

Total packaging material used for

finished products (in tonnes) and,

if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced

LRk T A B R M B AR 2 (JANR
AHE) R (ER) BEEEMEE

Performance data
summary

RABBERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
B HARE

BWE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —KRERBERBEEARER

[EHAS :

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRARER

Section

3]

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Remarks

E

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on minimising the

issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources
AT AHRE R RAEREK
ERTENERE -

KPI A3.1
BB 4E BB 1RAS.T

Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the action taken to manage
them

WA R AR ERERRAREIRD
EAFENCDROEEBEERZEN
178

Our operation does not
have significant impact on
the natural environment and
the availability of natural
resources. Therefore, the
issue is not material to the
Group.
BAMEBHIALESE B ARE
LA ANRAERGEEEL
BARE - Hit - EEY
AEEMSAEAERKX -

BHEA4 : RIFE

Aspect A4: Climate Change

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on identification

and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

BRI REEDERATEEHETA
EEFENEARIEHEBEENR

s

ﬁio

Our environment

BPIWERE

KPI A4.1
B S AR IR 1R A4

Description of the significant
climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

HRE KRR EHBITAELER
ENEARMKEBREER - MEYTT
& o

Our environment

BT IRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section Remarks
FTEER EEH —REERBEREARER 3] B
B. Social
B. &
Aspect B1: Employment
FEEB1 : {E R
General Disclosure Information on: Our employee
—RIE BRAZ MM RE BB NET #HFImER
TERE - BY - FERE 2T
b~ RIBARIA R EAb 8 R m A -
(@) the policies; and
@ BXR:k
(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare
(b) EFHETABEATENH
BRAR RPN EF -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, Performance data
BB AE MR 1EB1.1 employment type, age group and | summary
geographical region RIBEBERHE
MR EREE - FERER K
&SRS R -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, | Performance data
B4 48 DB 1EB1 .2 age group and geographical summary
region. RRBERE
B~ FiE R Miblm & DR B
BRAKLLE-

&
op
{5l

B
S
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEBRERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Section

Remarks

FTEHER - EH —KRERBERBEEARER

EMEB2 : REHZE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

3]

E

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on: (a) the policies;
and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the

issuer relating to providing a

safe working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards
FRRELZ2THERERRERE
BMEBRMEREZN  (QBEK Kb)
BTHETABEAXENMERX
REBROIHEFL -

Our employee

nfmES

KPI B2.1
8 52 48 B 1ZB2.1

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the
reporting year.

BE=F (BEERFE)BFAT
THEBAB R X -

Performance data
summary

RRBEME

how they are implemented and

monitored

R RMBRERE L 2
it ARABBEITRERITA

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Performance data

B 52 B B 1EB2.2 AITEEATIERH - summary
RABEBERE

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health | Our employee

RA SR AE R HE1FB2.3 and safety measures adopted, RMHIES

[EHEB3 : R RIZI

Aspect B3: Development and Training

General Disclosure

—RBE

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities
ERRETREREET TERENANH
REBER R © IR E A -

Our employee

HHmEE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —REBERBEEARER

KPI B3.1
RS2 AR SR F515B3.1

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category
RUERNRESEMNBSOZIIES
Bl e

RE - HERERBE

Section

=z e

E B

Performance data
summary

RRBEME

Remarks

o

KPI B3.2
BB AR N5 15B3.2

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category
R REEEMNE D B2EER
FRENTFYHE -

Performance data
summary

RABERE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

JETB4 : % T%#H|

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

BRAD b E Takoa |8 T :

(@) the policies; and

(@ BE: K

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced
labour

(b) BTHBETABEAZENHE
FREERRPINER -

Our employee

ZHmESR

KPI B4.1
B S AR IR 15 1R B4.1

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour

MR BB EARRE
TRs&HIST -

Our employee

HFIeEER

KPI B4.2
B B4R AN IR 1R B4.2

Description of steps taken to
eliminate such practices when
discovered

A RRERBRFERA RIS
U ERER &Y 2 B o

Our employee

wimES
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B HBREARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Section

Remarks

FTEHER - EH —KRERBERBEEARER

FEEBs5 : HEHEER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

3]

E

General Disclosure

Policies on managing

Our services

suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored
HAARERKERNED  mE
HITARMEMMHEREE UK
HERTRERT A -

— AR5 environmental and social risks of AT AR 75
the supply chain
B HEENRE R S RBBUR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by Performance data
Bl 82 48 MIE1EB5.1 geographical region summary
RipmE D WHEERE - RRBERE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Our services
%8 2 48 W f2B5.2 to engaging suppliers, number of & P9 8 IR 78

KPI B5.3
A S AR S I51RB5.3

Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and
how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR AR B RS R IR
BERieRBME - LA REBHR
TRERFE-

Our services

APT 8 AR 75

KPI B5.4
B S 4R 3R $5 1585 .4

Description of practices used

to promote environmentally
preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and
monitored.

e REHEEREES ARR
EmERBHED - LARBRERT
MERIE

Our services

AT AR 75
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —REBERBEEARER
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHEB6 : EmEE

Section

=z e

E B

RE - HERERBE

Remarks

o

General Disclosure

— R E

Policies and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations on
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress
B B P ER G an A0 AR 75 B 62 BR SR 22
2 EBEE BREMMESENRES
BT AR R BT HRBAR RS
o

Our services

T API & BR 75

During FY2023, an incident
occurred at our clinic
involving administration

of a small number of
expired vaccines. We took
immediate action by closely
following up on the health
condition of the affected
persons and a thorough
examination was conducted
to identify the root causes
of the incident to prevent
the recurrence of similar
incidents in the future. The
incident did not lead to a
significant impact to the
Group.

R2023FBFE - HFIWZ
EET —RERERIE
BEREHESF - RMCZ
BIERENTTE) - MUV REX T
EATHREMR - AETT
BEHS - UEHE SRR
ANREA - P ARBREE
RIS - WEHLRE AR
EEEREALE -

KPI B6.1
B8 S48 3R 15 15B6.1

Percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
EERCEXERAHTEL2HA
BFEEAmMARNKNE DL -

Not applicable to the
Group’s business.
TERARAEEER

KPI B6.2
S 4R 95 15B6.2

Number of products and
service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt
with.
BRERNE R MR OFER A
REETTA -

Our services

A AR 75
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B HBREARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —KRERBERBEEARER

KPI B6.3
A S 45 315 15B6.3

Description of practices relating
to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

18t 2 4 S e R 0 S EE R B O
BHl -

Section

=4}

Business ethics
[HE 3EK

Remarks

E

8 52 48 "I5 1ZB6.5

protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

L E B & ERHRE R AL REE
AR BBERITRERTE

TR0 IR

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance - Not applicable to the
B 5 45 W 15 15B6.4 process and recall procedures. Group's business.

T E Sin e B2 & A mm B AR o TEBNAREEETR -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data Our services

BEB7 : RES

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:
BRI - 1R - MEFREE
EHY

(@) the policies; and

(@ BX: K

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money
laundering

(b) BTFHBETABEAFENM
OZERRPINER -

Business ethics

mRER

KPI B7.1
B S AR SNFE 1587 .1

Number of concluded legal

cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the
cases
RERMAHZEITALHESRD
VEBFGENESHARFNEE &
SRENESR o

FAy=]

Business ethics

mEER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHER - EH —REBERBEEARER

KPI B7.2
A S AR S IR1RB7 .2

Description of preventive measures
and whistleblowing procedures,
how they are implemented and
monitored

HR B # 16 it K B AR T - PARAR
BT REEERTTK ©

RE - HERERBE

Section

=z e

E B

Business ethics
EESCER

Remarks

o

KPI B7.3
A S AR AN IR 1RB7 .3

Description of anti-corruption
training provided to directors and
staff.
WRREER B TRHENRESE

Fl e

Business ethics;
Performance data
summary

FFEERE  REBIE
BmE

Aspect B8: Community
EEBS : HERE

Investment

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on community
engagement to understand

the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and

to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests
BRANRESERT L EMEDL
EFENBERAEKEDHSES BT
& A 28 BV IBUER ©

Our community

BTt

KPI B8.1
B S 4R SR $5 1588 1

Focus areas of contribution

(e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

HIERERE (WHE  RIREH
BTES - 28 XL BE) -

Our community

BTt

KPI B8.2
BA AR AN IE15B8.2

R A
Resources contributed (e.g. money
or time) to the focus area
EEIREMBAER(WEENL
FefE) o

Our community

£z A (Bknkad
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for FY2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 10 of this annual report,
in “Co-CEOs’ Report” on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report and
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 33 of
this annual report, which forms part of this report of Directors. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, key
relationship between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers, the environmental policies of the Group and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
are set out below.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Groups’ results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Strategy Risk

The current macroeconomic uncertainty and sluggish economy
may cause episodic disruptions to the medical industry. Our
Company must effectively and efficiently allocate resources in
order to minimize the risk brought on by the uncertain economic
environment. We must also continue to find new strategic angles
to improve our operations and business. The sluggish economy
may continue to impact global business in the near future. The
Group must be prepared to continue being agile in our operations
and ready to switch gears to curb any unexpected operational
headwinds that might cause significant interruptions to our business.
As consumer discretionary spending decreases, we need to be
thoughtful about pricing and promotional strategies. At the same
time, we should look for opportunities to diversify our revenue
streams and create new partnerships to weather the economic
downturn.
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Reputation Risk

The Group’s success in Hong Kong depends significantly on the
recognition of its brand and reputation as a leading corporate
healthcare solutions provider. However, Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers working in the Group may from time
to time be subject to complaints, allegations or legal actions
regarding the adequacy of patient care, treatment outcome and
medical services provided, which may harm the business, results of
operations, financial condition, brand and reputation of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s business operations, Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary
Services Providers in the Group’s network working in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China are subject to extensive laws,
regulations and licensing requirements, any failure to comply with
such laws, regulations or licensing requirement could harm the
Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition, brand
and reputation.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE GROUP
AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing
high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s

sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group recognises the importance
of good environmental stewardship. In this connection, the Group
strictly adopted and implemented policies and procedures to ensure
environmental protection. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During FY2023, no environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions were reported to our

management.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China while the
Company is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with its Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China. During FY2023, our businesses were
in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China in all material
aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit of the Group for FY2023 and the Group’s financial

position as at 30 June 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 156 to 159 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK3.00 cents
per Share for FY2023 (FY2022: HK3.00 cents with scrip option),
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM. Such
proposed dividend is expected to be distributed on Friday, 5 January
2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on Friday, 8 December 2023.

Together with the interim dividend of HK1.7 cent per Share paid in
April 2023, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for
FY2023 will be HK4.7 cents per Share (FY2022: HK4.50 cents per
Share).

DIVIDENDS POLICY
The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the

“Dividend Policy”). The Company is endeavor to maintain sufficient
operating capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and

to provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.
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In considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board
will take into account the following factors:

financial results;

3 cash flow situation;

. business conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

J capital requirements and expenditure plans;

J interests of shareholders;

e any restrictions on payment of dividend; and

J any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and
reserve the discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend will not in any way
constitute a legally binding commitment of the Group in relation to
its future dividends and/or will not in any way render the Company

obligated to declare dividends at any time or from time to time.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2023
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 21 November 2023 to Friday, 24 November 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify as members entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting, investors should lodge all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20
November 2023.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed 2023 final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 7 December 2023 to Friday, 8 December 2023 both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 6 December
2023.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group for FY2023 amounted to

HK$79,000 (FY2022: HK$500,000).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 31 August 2023, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong has resigned from the board

of director in The GBA Healthcare Group Limited and the Group
lost its significant influence over GBA Healthcare Group. As a result,
the investment in GBA Healthcare Group and its subsidiaries are no
longer accounted for as an associate and has been reclassified as
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income from

investments in associates.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out on page 301. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options
of the Company for FY2023 are set out in notes 35 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the purchase of shares for the share award scheme (as
detailed under Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements),
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2023.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for FY2023
are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$568,073,000, of which
HK$24,329,000 has been proposed as final dividend for FY2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

BORROWINGS
During FY2023, the Group did not have any bank borrowings

or entering into any bank loan facility and as at 30 June 2023,
the Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings or
indebtedness.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets during the year are set out in section
headed “Pledge of Assets” in the “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2023, the revenue attributable to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 17.4% of the Group’s revenue for the
year and the largest customer included therein accounted for 6.4%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
shareholders of the Company that owned more than 5% of the
issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during FY2023.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during FY2023 and up to the date of

this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
(Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
(Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBs jp

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8s P

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Mr Chau, Chit Jeremy
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The details of Directors (as
required by the Listing Rules) who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM, will be provided in
the accompanying circular. The re-election of each Director will
be subject to vote of shareholders of the Company by separate

resolutions.

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald, Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John, Mr. Yeung
Wing Sun, Mike and Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy shall retire at the Annual
General Meeting. Among them, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald, Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM while Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike and Mr. Chau, Chit
Jeremy will not seek for re-election at the AGM as Mr. Yeung Wing
Sun, Mike wishes to devote more time for his personal commitments
and Mr. Chau, Chit Jeremy would want to focus on his other work
arrangement and both will retire as an Independent Non-executive
Director after the conclusion of the AGM.

Pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code, if an independent non-executive director has served more
than nine years, such director’s further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
Both Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John have
served as an Independent Non-executive Director since November
2015. Current term of appointment of each of Dr. Li Kwok Tung,
Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John will expire on 5 November
2023 which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one
year. If Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John are
re-elected at the AGM and their letters of appointment are renewed
upon expiry of their current term and for any successive term,
they will have served on the Board as Independent Non-executive
Directors for more than nine years by 6 November 2024.
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The Board had assessed and reviewed the written confirmations of
independence of Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai,
John and considered that they both satisfied all the independence
criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Dr. Li Kwok
Tung, Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John both have in-depth
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and have
expressed objective views and given independent guidance to the
Company over the years, demonstrate a firm commitment to their
role.

The Board considers that the long service of Dr. Li Kwok Tung,
Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John would not affect their exercise
of independent judgment and is satisfied that they have the required
character, integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role
of an Independent Non-executive Director. The Board believes
that they will continue to contribute effectively to the Board.
Accordingly, the Board has proposed that each of the above retiring
Directors, namely Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald and Mr. Lee Luen Wai,
John stands for re-election as Director and separate resolutions for
their continuous appointment will be proposed at the AGM.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company the names and the titles
and nature of office held in the public companies or organisations
prior to the acceptance of the appointment and promised to inform
the Company timely of any relevant change. The Company will also
require Directors to submit written confirmation twice a year, and
update their biographical details, if any.
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THE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in pages 34 to
43 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration payable to the senior management
(excluding Directors) in the Group are as follows:
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and a share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out in pages 125 to 135

of this report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during FY2023.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited and EM Team

Limited, our controlling Shareholders, have undertaken to the
Company in a deed of non-compete undertaking that, subject to
and except as mentioned in the prospectus of the Company dated
17 November 2015, they would not carry on, engage, invest,
participate or otherwise be interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with any of the existing and/or
future businesses carried on by any member of the Group in relation
to the provision of corporate healthcare solutions and consultancy
services in non-UMP medical centres in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China.

Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of
their compliance with the deed of non-compete undertaking
for disclosure in this annual report during FY2023. No new
business opportunity was informed by them as at 30 June 2023
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-compete undertaking and are of
the view that the non-competition undertakings have been complied
with by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited and EM
Team Limited for FY2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
at any time during FY2023 and up to and including the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code were set out below:
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The Company i) ZAAT
Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Rt/ K8
EBfg BE/ AR 2 ROBE HE  HORREA%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 24,952,000
BRIBE fFe ESBAA
Long position Interest held by his
e controlled corporations 273,220,989 1
REhARHZERA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,300,000 2
3 Bl
7R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 3
B Bl
iR EalAA
301,472,989 37.17
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 19,935,033
FXBEE 8 EREEA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 2
7E EERAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 3
7E EEBAA
22,435,033 2.76
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Long position Beneficial owner 19,200,000
BEELL iR ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 2
5y} ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 3
R ESBAA
21,700,000 2.67
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares  Note  shareholding (%)
Bt/ #
Esng HE/ %R gt Ro#E ME  BOBRLH%
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 4,486,000
BRERE 5y ] 553 2UN
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 2
FR 553 2-UN
Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 3
7R EEAAA
6,986,000 0.86
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 22,714,556
ShERE iR ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 2
R ERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 3
7R EafiAA
25,214,556 3.10
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 11,388,000
FRBEL e 532U
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 2
R 532U
Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 3
R BEBBAA
13,888,000 1.71
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John Long position Beneficial owner 3,036,081
FHERE 78 BEaABA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 2
78 BaAA
3,336,081 0.41
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald Long position Beneficial owner 332,000
FHREE R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 2
R ERBAA
632,000 0.07
2023FH | BMABBEEARAR
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Long/short
Name of Director position
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(ii)

Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is deemed to be interested in the 223,740,989
Shares held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled
corporation, and is also deemed to be interested in 49,480,000
Shares held by EM Team Limited, also being his controlled
corporation.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 6 November 2018 pursuant to the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

These Shares represented by the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 26 May 2021 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

These percentages are calculated on the basis of 810,955,244 issued
shares as at 30 June 2023.

Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the

SFO)

Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited®

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(i)

GEX

ESEHRE

RRBRIBEAEHGSAREZEEER
East Majestic Group Limited$f A HY
223,740,989 MR R HE B #E 2 » TRERAR
BRARAEZEABEM Team Limited
F57H #949,480,000/% IR 1A P HEH #E 25 ©

ZERMIEARRANR2018511 A6 BIRIE
BHRAFRBEZBRETEELOER
I T A ERARG °

ZERMDIEARRAIN202145 A26 B IRIE
BRAFRBEZBRETERLOER
HEIE T ERERR D °

WEB DL TER2023F6A308 2
810,955,24408 B BT 0 BEEFH -

HEEE (ERERESFRBEREH)

EEBEXERLLBRPLERAFO

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)

A F5 IR EE B

EEnR BR KR 51 R4 8B (%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael  Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25

R R ) BB A

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited® iR HIRPOERDF?

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)

1BE 40 45 B L 41

EEpng BR KR 54 R 8B (%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael ~ Long position Beneficial owner 95 6.33

BXRE

) oA A
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United Medical Services (China) Limited® United Medical Services (China)
Limited®

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)
A9 35 R L )

EEpng HR KR &4 RH#EE (%)

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick  Long position Interest of controlled 20 20

corporation

BRERE e PG EE S

Notes: ftaE -

(1) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (1) AREAWZENBARKESEBEFRLE
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare BRARBEEFEEE2ZERERTLE
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited. RAFMNEEEBEITRAE62.5% °

(2)  UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 2) ARANEZENBRARHMAEBERLE
Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway RO B R #\TJIEEP SDHERR
Bay MRI Centre Limited. AlA 2 EE BEITRAE20%

(3)  UMP Medical China Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of (3)  UMP Medical China Holdings Limited
the Company, holds 80% of the entire issued share capital of United (RARFZZEMERAE) K AUnited
Medical Services (China) Limited. Medical Services (China) Limited® 28 &

BITIRA Z280% °

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors & = X FT# 52 & b » 72023F6H308 © &
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short FHARAZFEITHAERAERE & E G
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the JEME (E&E R &EH K HERHIFEXVEL) 8 AL
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part 3 ~ HHEKRHD REFH - B EEGREF
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company &%ﬁﬂﬂﬂ%XV*B%7&%8’\*EWE’%‘EA1‘
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV BRXATEAERSORE (BRERER
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were ﬁ"‘;ux—rmﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬂ iR X M AR (E 2 & 1
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were EBRERIORE) » HIRIEE = M HAE &P
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the  55352{&7RALERA X G & FL M &V (AT #E 25
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company SA B - SR EFEFRIE Mg AR D7) K #
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. RS IRE °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

The number of options available for grant under the share
option schemes of the Company under the scheme mandate at
the beginning and the end of the year ended 30 June 2023 is
47,290,000 and 47,860,000 respectively.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Company has not granted
any share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme or the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, the number of Shares
that may be issued in respect of options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 30 June 2023 divided by the weighted average
number of Shares in issue for the year was not applicable.

Pre-IPO Share option Scheme
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18
August 2015. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as

follows:

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of, the Company and to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees. In determining the basis of
eligibility of each eligible participants, the Board would take
into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion
consider appropriate.

(b) Participants
The Board may at its discretion grant options to persons
who satisfy the following eligibility criteria (“Eligible
Participant(s)”):

(i) any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director of any member of the Group or an
entity in which the Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”);

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

BRRREsT 8
AR R E AR IR RS AT B - BDE R DB
BENBRES B R ERAMEERBRE

st

B E2023F6H3 0B EFEFIRFER
ERTEI R TR B AR 5 B8 I % 51 2] AT (it
RERERESE 5 5 /47,290,000 &
47,860,00017 °

KB ZE2023F6F308 EFER - XA AW
EREBEALAAEEMBERESEIER
AHAEERBRES SR LT MERE -
I RE E2023F6A30B IEFERRIE S
RARBERBRESE RE XA AREER
FE AR ST B8 I A B AR B 1T P] RE 321 T A AR 1D
HBEBRUAFEEBITRMOMNETF L
@A o

BRAAHBRENBRESS
ARAAR2015F8 A18B HME X AREE
ATIE AR AERT 8l - X A A E AT B IR ERTE
HBWT

@ EBH
BRALREBEEABRESZEERSE
BR2MEERREBENERMREBES N A
NN AR T &5 R 4t AP 4 2R B e 3=
o REBEASEEEFNREEATHNE
B -AEESESERREENEREE
W ZEEZeeZFENBERAGENZ

b) BEE
EEETRBEAGA U THEEEEN A
T (AERBEE]) B MHRE

(i) AKBEARKBEARIAEER
HpfARam T ER ([5ES
RA) BEA AT  JEMITHE
VERITES
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

any employee of any member of the Group or an
Affiliate;

any customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant,
adviser or shareholder (including director(s) of such
shareholder) of, or contractor to, any member of the
Group or an Affiliate;

the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of, or
contractor to, any member of the Group or an Affiliate; or

a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
shareholder, adviser of, or contractor to, any member of

the Group or an Affiliate.

(c) Summary of Key terms

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

As at 30 June 2023, no further options could be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and there were
no outstanding options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

The total number of Shares currently available for
issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is zero,
representing 0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

There is no specific limit on the maximum entitlement of

each Eligible Participant under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.
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There is no monetary consideration for the grant of
any option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The subscription price for the Shares under the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
HK$1.2228 per Share. The subscription price in respect
of each Share issued pursuant to the exercise of Options
granted shall be determined by the Board at its discretion
and set out in the relevant grant letter(s), provided that it
shall not be less than the nominal value of a Share as at
the date of grant.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may only exercise their options in the
following manner: (i) 10% of the option shares shall only
be exercisable from the first anniversary of the grant date
up to and including the end of the Option Period; and
(ii) 90% of the option shares shall only be exercisable
from the second anniversary of the grant date up to and
including the end of the Option Period.

The “Option Period” means the period from the Listing
Date and end on the date immediately before the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was only in force
during the period from 18 August 2015 to 9 November
2015, and no further options are to be granted thereunder
but in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the exercise of any options granted.
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(d) Outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme

Details of movements of the share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2023

are as follows:

(d BEEBXLAHBEANBERETIECREY
W9 18 R AT BE BB AR
HE2023F6A30B IEFEREHAA
7B & AT B AR A AT 23R H B AR pE
EAFUNNE

Exercise As at Granted Exercised As at
Exercise price  period 1]July during during  Lapsed during 30 June
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share  (Note) 2022 the year the year the year 2023
i (il:d 20228 ) 20235
ERA Bft RiLAH BROGE (M) TRIR EARE AR FR%R 6£308
dd/mm/y y) (HK$)  (dd/mmiyyyy)
R Gy @Ak
Directors
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Co-Chief Executive Officer and  18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 - - (1,138,000) -
- Executive Director 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 = - (10,242,000) -
FRIREHRNTES
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - (60,000) -
BRERE HTES 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - - (340,000 -
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Exeggtive Director 18/08/2015 12228  18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - (10,242,000) -
SRERL EEEE
Sub-total: 22,022,000 s - (22,222,000 -
INgF
Service ﬁrowders
RReE
In i@gregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 160,000 = - (160,000) -
Ak 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 1,440,000 = - (1,440,000) -
Sub-total: 1,600,000 - = (1,600,000 =
NG
Total: 23,822,000 = - (23,822,000) -
At
Note: The vesting period of all the outstanding share options and share options  Ff&E : (M ARTT{E R & B HIERENEE R AH
granted is the period beginning on the date of grant and ending on the date RE ARG EETEARBAA —H I -

immediately before commencement of the exercise period.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015. Details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are
as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward the Eligible Persons (as defined in
sub- paragraph (b) below) for their contribution to the Group
and to align their interests with that of the Company so as to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

Participants

The Board (including any committee or delegate of the
Board appointed by the Board to perform any of its functions
pursuant to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme)
may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may
determine to an employee (whether full-time or part-time) or a
director of a member of the Group or associated companies of
the Company (the “Eligible Persons”).

Total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes (including but not
limited to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of

Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No options shall be granted to any Eligible Person under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other Share option
schemes of the Company which, if exercised, would result in
such Eligible Person becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of Shares as, when aggregated with the total number of
Shares already issued or to be issued to him under all options
granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the Shares in issue at

such date.
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(e)

()

(g

(h)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

Period within which the option may be exercised

Any vested option which has not lapsed and which conditions
have been satisfied or waived by the Board in its sole
discretion may, unless the Board determines otherwise in its
absolute discretion, be exercised at any time from the next
business day after the offer of options has been accepted. Any
option which remain unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry
of the option period, which period shall be determined by the
Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer date of the
option.

Vesting period of options granted

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period
for which an option must be held and performance targets that
must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of
the option

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing
or by telex or facsimile transmission or (if the Board agree)
by electronic communication received by the Chairman (or a
person designated by him with the approval of the Board) for
such period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from,
the date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to
the Eligible Person concerned provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the duration
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An offer of options not
accepted within this period shall lapse.

An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option and such payment shall not be refundable
and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise
price.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not
be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of offer of the option; (ii) the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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(i) Life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire automatically

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of

the Listing Date, subject to early termination provisions in the

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The summary below sets out the details of the movement during the
year ended 30 June 2023 of all the options granted pursuant to the

ESEHRE

BEROMBERBREFTINES
EEHERAFRBEERBIRETEIMEMR
IHERZRR T BRAFHBEERBER
BAEKEER EMBAMTBFI—X
BEEm °

AT EEHSBEE R AREEEERES
EEEMTEBREREZ2023F6H30H

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme: I FEOEBFE
Number of Shares issuable under the share options
BREETIFRTRAZA
Forfeited/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1July 2022 during during the year 2023
Name grant® @0 per Share period®) the year the year
20228 £ 2023
#e REAHooo  GRTEE  FEHY 718 EREH ERfifE R/ %% 6A308
(dd/immAyyyy) (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy)
(B/B/%) (At) (B/R/%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman and 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
Executive Director) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2022-25/05/2029 400,000 - - - 400,000
RBIRE(ZE#H723) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael (Vice chairman, 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 400,000 - - - 400,000
Director) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
BXBBE (F1E  BETREHZH/7EE) 260052021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Co-Chief 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Executive Officer and Executive Director) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2022-25/05/2029 400,000 - - - 400,000
DEERL (BEARBAZHTEE) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 300,000 = - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick (Executive Director) ~ 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
EREXRE(HTEE) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 400,000 - - = 400,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick (Executive 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Director) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 400,000 - - - 400,000
THERE(HEE) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix (Executive Director) ~ 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
SRBET (1722 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 400,000 = = = 400,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 300,000 - - - 300,000
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Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BREETTFRORGBEUE
Forfeited/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1 July 2022 during during the year 2023
Name grant® @0 per Share period® the year the year
IV £ 0235
£ Ripgo00  SREEE TEEY 7A18 FREH EnfifE R/ %% 6A308
(dd/mmAyyyy) (HKS)  (dd/mmiyyyy)
(B/R/%) (#n) (B/R/%)
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP 06/11/2018 2.06  30/06/2019-05/11/2023 300,000 - - - 300,000
(Independent Non-executive Director)
FRELE (HEHEE ATHT)
(BU#H17EF)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $B8S JP 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 300,000 - - - 300,000
(Independent Non-executive Director)
FEREL (FEHEE A1)
(BU#H7£8)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 200,000 - - = 200,000
(Independent Non-executive Director)
BRELE (B FH1EE)
Sub-total 16,600,000 - - 16600000
NG
Employees
€S
In aggregate 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 2,684,000 - = (228,000) 2,656,000
At 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 2,163,000 - - (171,000) 1,992,000
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2024-25/05/2029 2,163,000 - - (171,000) 1,992,000
06/11/2018 2.06  30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
05/05/2019 1.56 04/05/2020-03/05/2025 250,000 - - - 250,000
05/05/2019 1.56  04/05/2021-03/05/2025 500,000 = = = 500,000
05/05/2019 1.56 04/05/2022-03/05/2025 750,000 - - - 750,000
Sub-total 9,710,000 - - (570,000) 9,140,000
It
Totl 26,310,000 - - (700000 25,740,000
@t
Notes: BT
(1) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the (1) ZEBRER2018F11 AcAER L Z BATAY
share options were granted on 6 November 2018 was HK$1.75 per share. Bt ERER.758 T -
) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the  (2) ZERBAREN2019F5 ASHER H 2 BATH
share options were granted on 5 May 2019 was HK$1.56 per share. Bty W B A E R 5608 T
(3) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the  (3) REBRAERN2021F5 A26 A ER H Z BRI
share options were granted on 26 May 2021 was HK$0.82 per share. B tn W i (B A = A%0.82/8 7T -
(4) The vesting period of all the outstanding share options and share options  (4) HMARITEERERERHNERENEEDHA

granted is the period beginning on the date of grant and ending on the
date immediately before commencement of the exercise period.
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Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, cancelled
or lapsed under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2023.

The total number of Shares currently available for issue under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 73,600,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.08% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June

2016, to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives
for the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date and to be expired on 29 June 2026 or such date of early
termination as determined by the Board. Pursuant to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, the Company will not issue new Shares in
connection with the awards granted under the Share Award Scheme.
The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
one per cent (1%) of the issued share capital of the Company in
each year. The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding two per cent
(2%) of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

A selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall
be entitled to receive the awarded Shares vested in him/her in
accordance with the vesting schedule (if any) and subject to the
selected participant having satisfied all vesting conditions (if any) as
specified in the Share Award Scheme or the grant notice.

No consideration is required to be paid upon acceptance of the

award by a selected participant.
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As at 30 June 2023, the details of the share award granted and
outstanding under the Share Award Scheme are set out as follow:

R2023F6H308 @ [ EENFHEIIE TE &
R M ARITE Z R D B FESST

Number of awarded shares

EBRHOUE
Fair value
of awarded Cancelled/
shares at Granted Vested lapsed
Date of the date As at during during during As at
grant of grant 1 July 2022 the year the year the year 30 June 2023
ERRH
RRL B 20225 Fh #2023
RuBH MMEE 7A18 FRR EnBE  HE/AX 64308
HK$
AT
Directors
gz
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael 12 December 2022 0.79 = 1,000,000 (1,000,000 = =
BXBEE 20224124128
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen 12 December 2022 0.79 - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
AEELT 2026127128
Total 2,000,000 (2,000,000 - -
ezt (Notes 1, 2
and 3)
(Hzt1 - 2R3)
Notes: Bt &
1. The exercise price was set at nil consideration per awarded share. 1. BREBEROHTEERTRE-
2. The awarded shares vested on 12 December 2022 and were not subject to 2. RENRMDA2022F 124120 5E - EAZEM
any performance target. KEERARR -
3. Save as disclosed above, no share award was granted during the year ended 3. R EXHEEESN  REIE2023F6A30B IEFE

30 June 2023.

3,156,000 Shares have been purchased and 382,846 scrip Shares
have been allotted under the Share Award Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2023. The total amount paid to acquire the Shares
during the year was HK$2,537,000. As at 30 June 2023, 11,492,863
Shares are held by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme for the
benefit of the eligible participants for the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on

which the awarded shares were granted on 12 December 2022 was
HK$0.79 per share.
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The weighted average closing price immediately before the date on
which the awarded shares were vested was HK$0.79 per Share.

The fair value of the awarded shares was calculated based on the
market price of the Company’s share at the grant date. The fair
value of awarded shares granted was HK$0.79 per Share.

The total number of Shares available for being awarded under
the Share Award Scheme is 16,219,104 shares, which represents
approximately 2% of the issued Shares as at the date of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Scheme” in this report, at no time
during FY2023 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance subsisted in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of
FY2023.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director and officer of the Company acting
in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs and damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or omitted in
or about the execution of their duties in their respective office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2023,

Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be

so far as was known to the Directors of the

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAE2FARG REEK

DR R RE

20236 H30H - IBA AR EEFA - A
TAL /BB (BESEHAQAR
HN) AR RIRI IR 1 S AR BA AR (0 AP #E B S AR
REAERBIESFRHAE
3 BB ST A AN A B K Bk A BT I FE A 4 e A
AIEAREZSRHAE
F336IETFEMNELMANERIAR ¢

B HEHERNAEAR

SITHA B

SR M EXVELE2 &3

= {6151

Interests Approximate
Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/  under equity percentage of
shareholder position Capacity underlying shares derivatives  Notes shareholding
BASEIA
TERRER #R/ %R BB Rt/ HERABE  ET2EZE MW BA R
(%)
East Majestic Group Limited  Long position  Beneficial owner 223,740,989 - 1 27.58
T ERBEAA
EM Team Limited Long position Benefi_cial owner 49,480,000 - 1 6.10
HR ERBEAA
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position  Interest held by its 119,180,175 - 2 14.69
(Holdings I1) Limited He controlled corporations
BEmETEEERE
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position  Interest held by its 119,180,175 - 2 14.69
(Holdings) Limited HE controlled corporations
EHEmETZERA
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Long position Interest held by its 119,180,175 - 2 14.69
HE controlled corporations
B AXPEERA
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Long position  Interest held by its 119,180,175 - 2 14.69
Limited HeE controlled corporations
BAR () BRAR ERmETEEERA
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Long position  Interest held by its 119,180,175 - 2 14.69
Limited HE controlled corporation
BARBLEEBRAR BRpAXBEERSA
Healthcare Ventures Long position  Beneficial owner 119,180,175 = 2 14.69
e EREAA
China Resources Company Long position  Interest held by its 91,803,000 - 3 11.32
Limited 55) controlled corporations
TEEBERAA B EXPEERA
CR Medical Long position  Interest held by its 91,803,000 - 3 11.32
ERER HeE controlled corporations
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Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 223,740,989 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation, and
was also deemed to be interested in the 49,480,000 Shares held by EM
Team Limited, also being his controlled corporation. Dr. Sun’s interests in
Shares are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated Corporations”.

Healthcare Ventures was wholly-owned by CTFE, which was wholly-owned
by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH”). CTFH was held as to
81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC”), which was in
turn held as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
(“CYTF”) and as to 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
(“CYTFII”). By virtue of the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIl were
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare
Ventures was interested.

Pinyu was the beneficial owner of the Shares. Pinyu was wholly owned by
Unison Champ Premium Limited, which was wholly owned by CR Medical.
CR Medical was held as to 35.76% by CRH (Medical) Limited. CRH
(Medical) Limited was wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare Group
Limited, which was wholly owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH
(Healthcare) Limited was wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, which was wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC
Bluesky Limited was wholly owned by China Resources Inc., which was
wholly owned by China Resources Company Limited. Commotra Company
Limited held 0.82% of CR Medical Commotra Company Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. By virtue of the
SFO, Unison Champ Premium Limited, CR Medical, CRH (Medical) Limited,
China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, CRH (Healthcare) Limited,
China Resources Inc., China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, CRC
Bluesky Limited and China Resources Company Limited were deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Pinyu was interested.

These percentages are calculated on the basis of 810,955,244 issued shares
as at 30 June 2023.
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the Directors
have not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions mentioned below, none of such related
party transactions constituted a non-exempt connected transaction
or a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as and where applicable and relevant.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of which for FY2023 are set out as follows:
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Actual transaction

Annual cap for Amount for

the year ended the year ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2023

Continuing Connected Transactions Connected Persons (HK$’000) (HK$’000)

BE2023F BE2023F

6A30BLFE 6A30BLFE

NEELR NERRZEH

RFRBERS BMEAL (F#rn) (F#&r)

A. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick  Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 7,800 3,912
BPHEEENERHE FHEBE

B. Medical Services Framework Agreement CTFE 31,000 19,984
BERBER M ARBEEE

C. Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael 7,500 4,362

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
HEXBREEANBREERR

BXEBE

The above non-exempt continuing connected transactions are
subject to reporting and announcement requirement but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements. For

further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company

LM ERAERAEISAETHRREASE
MEBERPETELREAERTE - £—
THBEFEL2HEARRE#A2021F9823H
F2021F9H27H 2 R o

dated 23 September 2021 and 27 September 2021.

Actual transaction

Caps for amount for
nine months nine months
period ended period ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2023
Continuing Connected Transactions Connected Persons (HK$’000) (HK$'000)
BE20235F B35
6A30HILN{EA 6A30H LN A
HENLR HENERRZEH
FREBERS BEAL (F#&x) (R
D. Medical Services Agreement FTLife Insurance Company 30,000 22,321
Limited
BERB S EBRRBARAF

202343k | B
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The above non-exempt continuing connected transaction is subject

to reporting, annual review, announcement and independent

Shareholders’” approval requirements. For further details, please refer

to the announcements of the Company dated 1 October 2022 and
16 March 2023 and circulars of the Company dated 24 April 2023.

A.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick entered into a consultancy agreement, and
on 6 September 2018, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick further entered into a first consultancy renewal
agreement (the “First Consultancy Renewal Agreement with
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick”), pursuant to which the Group
appointed Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick, as a consultant to
provide Medical Services, in particular Dental Services, to the
Group. During FY2021, the Group agreed to continue engaging
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick as a consultant after the expiry
of the First Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick. On 23 September 2021, the Company entered
into a second consultancy renewal agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick (the “Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick”) for a term up to 30 June 2024. The major
terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

J Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick shall provide Dental Services
to the Group;

o the annual fees charged by Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
to the Group shall be negotiated on an arm’s length
basis, and shall be on normal commercial terms which,
from the Group’s perspective, are expected to be no less
favourable than those which the relevant members of
the Group could obtain from independent consultants of
similar expertise, experience and reputation for similar
role, scope of services and responsibilities; and

e the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick shall commence from the Listing Date until 30
June 2024 and may be renewed by mutual consent of the
parties.
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The Company has made reference to historical aggregate fees
paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr. Lee
Pak Cheung, Patrick of similar scope of services to ensure that
the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to the
Company.

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick is an executive Director,
and accordingly, a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement with Dr.
Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick for FY2023 was HK$7,800,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick was HK$3,912,000.

Medical Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and CTFE entered
into a medical services framework agreement, and on 6
September 2018, the Company and CTFE further entered into
a first medical services framework renewal agreement (the
“First Medical Services Framework Renewal Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group shall provide Medical, Dental
and Auxiliary Services to the employees of CTFE and/or its
associates. During FY2021, the Group agreed to continue
providing medical, dental and auxiliary services to the
employees of CTFE and its associates after the expiry of the
First Medical Services Framework Renewal Agreement. On
23 September 2021, the Company entered into a second
medical services framework renewal agreement with CTFE (the
“Medical Services Framework Agreement”) for a term up to 30
June 2024. The major terms of the agreement are set out as

follows:

J the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services to the employees of CTFE and its associates;
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¢ the relevant members of the Group shall enter into
individual agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions, including scope of medical services, service
amount, payment method and other terms;

o the terms of, and the service amounts payable under,
each individual agreement will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and on an arm’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than those which
the relevant members of the Group could offer to
independent third parties, with a comparable scope of

services; and

e the Medical Services Framework Agreement shall
commence from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024 (both days
inclusive) and may be renewed by mutual consent of the
parties.

The management has made reference to the prevailing price of
medical services offered by the Group to other customers and
the historical service fees the Company received for medical
services with a similar scope to ensure that the service amounts
payable during the service period are fair and reasonable to the
Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of the Company and,
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees to be received by the
Company from CTFE for FY2023 was HK$31,000,000 and the
actual amount received or receivable by the Company was
HK$19,984,000.
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Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael

The Company entered into a consultancy agreement with Dr.
Sun Man Kin, Michael (“Dr. Michael Sun”) on 13 November
2015, and further entered into a first consultancy renewal
agreement (the “First Consultancy Renewal Agreement”)
with Dr. Michael Sun on 6 September 2018 to regulate the
consultancy relationship between the Group and Dr. Michael
Sun for the provision of radiologist services by Dr. Michael
Sun to the Group. The Company intends to continue engaging
Dr. Michael Sun as a consultant after the expiry of the First
Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr. Michael Sun. On
23 September 2021, the Company entered into the second
consultancy renewal agreement with Dr. Michael Sun (the
“Second Consultancy Renewal Agreement”) for a term up to
30 June 2024. Details of the Second Consultancy Renewal
Agreement with Dr. Michael Sun are set out below:

e Dr. Michael Sun shall provide radiologist services to the
Group;

e the consultancy fees payable under the Second
Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr. Michael Sun,
shall be determined by the parties through arm’s length
negotiation and on normal commercial terms and based
on the scope of services rendered by Dr. Michael Sun
and with reference to the fees charged by independent
consultants of similar expertise, experience and reputation
with similar role, scope of services and responsibilities
under similar circumstances to ensure that the terms are
no less favourable to the Group than terms available by
independent consultants; and

e the Second Consultancy Renewal Agreement with
Dr. Michael Sun shall commence from 1 July 2021 until
30 June 2024 and may be renewed by mutual consent of
the parties.

Dr. Michael Sun is an executive Director and is therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1)
of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the Second Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr.
Michael Sun constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Michael Sun for FY2023 was HK$7,500,000 and
the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Michael Sun was
HK$4,362,000.

Medical Services Agreement

On 1 October 2022, UMP Professional Management Limited
(“UMP Professional”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a Medical Services Agreement with
FTLife Insurance Company Limited (“FT Life”) in respect of
provision and administration of the Medical Services by UMP
Professional (or procure its applicable affiliates) to the insured
and/or policyholders of FTLife (“FTLife Members”) and/or
respective family members of policyholders of FTLife including
spouse and children (“Family Members”).

UMP Professional agreed (or procure its applicable affiliates)
to provide and administer medical services to FTLife Members
and/or Family Members, including (a) various administrative
services including, among others, 24/7 hotline services,
third-party administrative services and other ancillary
digital support for FTLife Members and/or Family Members
(“Administrative Services”); and (b) medical services including,
among others, day procedures, diagnostic imaging services,
in-patient surgical procedures, medical advice and other
relevant services (“Clinical Services”) (collectively, the
“Medical Services”).

FTLife is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS
Holdings Limited which in turn is a subsidiary of New
World Development Company Limited (“NWD”) and CTFE
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) is a controlling
shareholder of NWD. Hence, FTLife is a connected person
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
Medical Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The term of the Medical Services Agreement shall be for
three (3) years commencing from the 1 October 2022, unless
terminated in accordance with the terms of the Medical
Services Agreement.
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The actual demand for the Medical Services under the Medical
Services Agreement has exceeded the original expectations
which has resulted in a corresponding increase in the total
amount of service fees payable by FTLife to UMP Professional
under such agreement. As such, the aggregate amount of
service fees payable by FTLife to UMP Professional under
the Medical Services Agreement are expected to be higher
than the level envisaged at the time when the parties entered
into the Medical Services Agreement. On 11 May 2023, an
extraordinary general meeting approved the annual caps
(revised) and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

The caps for nine months ended 30 June 2023 received by
UMP Professional from FTLife was HK$30,000,000 and the
actual amount received or receivable by UMP Professional was
HK$22,321,000.

The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 30 June 2023 and confirmed
that:

(a) the transactions have been entered into by the Group in
the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on
normal commercial terms or (ii) (where there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms) on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.
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KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that (i)
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board; (ii) for transactions including the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) with
respect to the aggregate amount of each of the above continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected

transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group during FY2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme
as disclosed on pages 125 to 135 of this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or
existed during FY2023.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

RRARZBMEFHEAMEBAIZEMR
AEEZFHBERERS  BRBBGQFTOA
G PR M B & B 28 TE2ERI3000 [ /E 2B
BEEBTUBHAIINEFTER U2
RCEBH A E7405% AR BECLETRAD
PT345 4B B X2 5 O R BRI B 1 T T 3RS o
ESRESMEKME R EMRAIE14A56
FEHBREBEEL  BEEHARAKER
EXBRBENRERERSERZAERLE
i ARABEMBRAER a2 ZEE{E
K B AN o

ARBZBEEMEERS  (HRELTA
ZEENFE BARSHEESTEREAH
BEERBZRBEBERS  (MMEBREAE
BEHERIRBZRHME - WEL T
BEEMNEE BURFHEEZFERIES
EETHYIFRBASEZEBRKET
(INRELTHNBEEEMEE  SRREM
ERFCRBECRERERIERERTE
WHRRREZEX D ZHEBHHRET &
(vt Ll ERERSEEREMS K
ST FTAMEAEEMNER  EHEFHEEH
BRBERERFIOBHARAREZFE
ER-

EEEY

20230 KREFE - AR R B @A -
REFEANEERITIIAAHNERNER
REBEIHHI AL ER -

P% #E £ 80 177

MRARFIRFE1252 1358 FTHE A BB AT 2
RS 0 R EH BN » PA20238 EE R - A
NEIWER L I AR R S -



PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company, and
to the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company had maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules during FY2023.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 September 2023
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To the shareholders of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UMP
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 156 to 300, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.
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Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 2.4.

The Key Audit Matter
BRBETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESTNMEEFARETEER

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has goodwill of HK$165
million and indefinite-lived intangible assets of HK$48 million,
representing 21.4% and 6.3% of the Group’s net assets,
respectively.

R2023%6A300 - BEXEEEAEEISEEBTRERTHN
EBRVEE4ASET DREER EREEEFEN21.4%K
6.3% °

Management performs impairment assessments of the goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets which arose from business
combinations annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
EEESFHERAHMELAZRERERFHNELEELET
ARG XAEEHRBERECBE AR ER E AT
TR B -

In performing such impairment assessments, management
compares the carrying value of each of the separately identifiable
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated with their
respective recoverable amounts based on the greater of their fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use as determined by
discounted cash flow forecasts to determine if any impairment
loss should be recognised.
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RReREBANERE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential
impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets included the following:
BMEFEEERERFHNETLEE LG
ERERRANETEZFAT

o assessing the management’s
identification of CGUs and the
allocation of assets to each CGU;

A EREYRSELESMMNENA
X ARASHREELESMUOIIENEE

J with the assistance of our valuation
specialists, assess the methodology
adopted by management in its
impairment assessments of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FERETTEE )

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 2.4.

TFEEERERFUNELEEZEERE
BRI E N BHEREN T18R 25t E N iE2.4 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRBEITER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESTNMEEFARETER

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts for the purpose
of assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets involves estimating future cash flows generated
from business and certain assumptions, including revenue growth
rates, professional services expenses rates and discount rates,
which can be inherently uncertain.

ARAGEEEMERFHNEVEE CBEREMRABRIRRESR
ERAE @S RMEFAEEAGNARARREERENARETASE
ETREAZENRR (BRBAERR  EXRBEXNMEEX) -

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets as a key audit matter
because the year-end impairment assessments performed by
management contain certain judgemental assumptions which
could be subject to management bias.

BB ERERERFHNENEE 2 BEREN G RERE
SRR WIAREEERFATHREREMAE THERR
HAgtaXelEB e RAMTE -

evaluating the key assumptions,
including revenue growth rates and
professional services expenses rates,
adopted in the preparation of the cash
flow forecasts for the purpose of the
impairment assessments of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets,
with reference to our understanding of
the business, historical trends, available
industry information and available
market data;

2ERMYER ELBY - FAEET
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with the assistance of our valuation
specialist, assessing whether the
discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow forecasts
prepared for the purpose of assessing
potential impairment of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets
were within a reasonable range by
comparing with companies operating in
the same industry;
ERMEEERNHBE T - ZRERAE
RAETHR - AR A EEERER
FHNEBTEEZ BEREMREBME
BenERAMKRANUREIEES
BHEN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 2.4.

The Key Audit Matter
BRBEITER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESTNMEEFARETER

comparing the cashflow forecasts
prepared at the end of last year for the
purpose of impairment assessments
with the actual performance of the
businesses for the current year to
assess how accurate the cash flow
forecasts were, making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and
considering if there was any indication
of management bias; and
HEFBEMGEMEENRSRER
BEANEEXBOERRFETHLE
Ntz nERANERZE - XM
EREEAMBERENEREZHHNR
AR EREFEEFNERERLD
PR R

performing sensitivity analyses on the
key assumptions, including revenue
growth rate, professional services
expenses rate and the discount rates,
adopted in the discounted cash flow
forecasts on the conclusions reached
in the impairment assessments and
assessing whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the
selection of these assumptions.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

REPBRRARERBENRE
UMY IR B

EFAHAMERAR - HMEEEFE T
REEREANMERES  ETEEEAY
BHmR BN ZBEMRE -

BB GEEMBEBRRNBERLNREEME
BT AEREREMERERTMAEA

g
(AN
MEEE®

/

TEMEEMEE  FERET  TEEM
EEEREFREMBRRIRMESTER
FAEENEAFEEREENEUTFE
BERERRANBR -

BAERMESEEMBHERRNET  RANE

ERNBMERTHIE WREMARBSEAM
EEFEEAHRRL BRAFTERSZE
BE-fwEsm: BRFPREEMA®RSE -

EENGEMBEHRREEREN
=

BEF
EXEAERERSSIMASHEMBNCES
B S TR E Bl ) K BB A BHE B B #5537
EMEBEEMFR S NARSMEREK  UWHE
REEFGEAEVERROEE N FEESR R
5F Sk 8 AR 1 2 BUAY B K 8 s BR 1t BT 55 A 1 36
ZEHasE -

ERBHEAVBHRRE EF8ENE &
SESELENR) YEBABRATRE
EFELERRNER  URERFERLE
REFER KRIEFARH EXEER
HIFILEE AR EEMERNBERTE -

EZBESWHERETRE EE &%
B REBIE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations

or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ M B BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Chui Kin Pong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 September 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE2023F6H308ILFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E THERT FAET
Continuing operations BEREXER
REVENUE WA 5 727,167 665,859
Other income and gains L N 6 19,550 21,422
Professional services expenses BERKEHR (255,396) (238,035)
Employee benefit expense EERFAAX (179,817) (164,687)
Property rental and related expenses ¥ & & A3 5 &2 (14,047) (11,076)
Cost of inventories consumed BEEFEKA (45,247) (37,564)
Depreciation and amortisation I 5 (103,885) (78,617)
Other expenses H At F 2 (74,005) (65,774)
Finance cost A& B 8 (5,675) (3,918)
Share of (losses)/profits of: b (E18), /A8 -
Joint ventures & RA] (636) 8
Associates /N (3,644) (1,638)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B4 A0 R 7 64,365 85,980
Income tax expense FiEHiE R 11 (8,630) (11,946)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REFREEXKH
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FARRNE 55,735 74,034
Discontinued operation BRI R
Profit for the year from ERIEKREERBH
discontinued operation FRNE 40 - 1,197
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R E 55,735 75,231
Attributable to: LA & 75 FE(h -
Owners of the Company ZN/NECIE Z DN
— From continuing operations - REBRELCEER 60,452 70,502
— From discontinued operation - REDRIEREER - 1,666
60,452 72,168
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR 4,717) 3,063
55,735 75,231
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARAEBESERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BB RAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 13
Basic BN
— Continuing operations - BESEER HK7.65 cents#fll  HK9.12 cents/&
- Discontinued operation - BRIEEEED - HK0.22 cents# 1l
Total — included discontinued R - BEERIE
operation S HK7.65 cents#Efll  HK9.34 cents/&
Diluted e
— Continuing operations -RBECEER HK7.65 cents#{ll  HK9.11 cents/E
— Discontinued operation Ei%u:i“‘%%ﬁ - HKO0.22 cents#
Total — included discontinued R - BEERILE
operation R HK7.65 cents#fll  HK9.33 cents/&{ll

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEZEHBAR

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE2023F6H30RLLFE
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R E 55,735 75,231
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2m (FE) WA
(LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive loss that may R EE BRI AEEN D EEE®
be reclassified to profit or loss in B H M 2 EE 1R
subsequent periods:
Release of reserve upon partial REH & —FH B A A%
disposal of a subsidiary R IR - (1,786)
Release of reserve upon deemed RBAER D B E — & R R
partial disposal of an associate 1& AR BR 18 - (223)
Exchange differences on translation  ITE BB AINEEHE X =58
of operations outside Hong Kong (1,437) (316)
Net other comprehensive loss that ~ REGEMAIREETHEE
may be reclassified to profit or BamHEM2mEBRFE
loss in subsequent periods (1,437) (2,325)
Other comprehensive income that REZHBTEEFDEEZES
will not be reclassified to profit or B E A 2 EWA
loss in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of equity BERBRAABEA
investments designated at Hi2HEKAZ
fair value through other RARENR R EBEZD
comprehensive income 5,905 10,963
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  FAHMZEEA -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HBRBLIH 4,468 8,638
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  FRZHEW A&
FOR THE YEAR 60,203 83,869
Attributable to: AT & 77 A ¢
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZEDN
— from continuing operations - REFBEEEY 64,920 80,926
— from discontinued operation - REERIEKEET - (120)
64,920 80,806
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A
— from continuing operations - REEEREER 4,717) 3,532
— from discontinued operation - REERIERER - (469)
4,717) 3,063
60,203 83,869
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MR R

As at 30 June 2023

M2023%6H30H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TERT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment RNy e 14 205,543 141,501
Right-of-use assets TREEE 15(a) 107,932 135,998
Goodwill Bk 16 164,768 164,768
Other intangible assets HitbEVEE 17 48,200 59,852
Investments in joint ventures ReaBRAINKRE 19 8,022 7,978
Investments in associates REEE AR E 20 16,719 24,782
Investments at fair value through BARBEFAEMER
other comprehensive income WARKE 22 36,844 31,517
Finance lease receivables EWFERERS 15(e) 3,904 5,858
Deferred tax assets EETRIBE & 33 9,168 5,110
Deposits RES 25 24,630 27,421
Total non-current assets EnBEELE 625,730 604,785
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories BE 23 12,372 8,834
Trade receivables g 5 WA 24 121,095 81,414
Prepayments, other receivables and  TE{TFRIE  H fth f& Y FR 18
other assets REAMEE 25 32,814 29,008
Finance lease receivables ERRERE 15(e) 1,954 1,578
Financial assets at fair value through &2 BEF ABZEE
profit or loss TRMEE 26 29,447 28,529
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKNATENESREE 21 - 18,865
Amounts due from associates JE U st & N R SRIB 27 3,391 22,999
Amounts due from joint ventures e & & A RIFKIEA 27 50 1,119
Amounts due from related companies &8k A &) I,E: 28 1,335 1,446
Tax recoverable G ER 2,571 904
Cash, bank balances and deposits Re |ITEHREER 29 290,495 238,120
Total current assets BN & E AR 495,524 432,816

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B IR R 3R

As at 30 June 2023

2023F6H30H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables B 5 IR 30 64,061 39,057
Other payables and accruals HENRIENRETE A 31 71,941 60,836
Loans from non-controlling D=L ENGIE 22004003 4:
shareholders of subsidiaries S/ 32 48,800 =
Amounts due to associates JE (< Bot & N B R IE 27 1,131 976
Amounts due to related companies AN NEI L] 28 2,122 2,254
Provision B 34 5,593 2,347
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) 58,483 63,272
Tax payable FES IR 18,980 25,738
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 271,111 194,480
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 224,413 238,336
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 850,143 843,121
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) 64,932 85,069
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 33 9,183 13,306
Provision B 34 6,309 7,441
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEERE 80,424 105,816
NET ASSETS EEFE 769,719 737,305
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners KAREEAEGES
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 35 811 793
Reserves B 38 739,736 697,860
740,547 698,653
Non-controlling interests JEYE R A% 2 29,172 38,652
TOTAL EQUITY B 769,719 737,305

Sun Yiu Kwong
Director

EF

Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
BEEFE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEBEBER

Year ended 30 June 2023

BE2023F6H308ILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARERARE
Shares held
underthe ~ Share-
Share  Capital ~ share  based Fair Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium contrbuton ~ award  payment  value  Llegal fluctuation  Refained controlling ~~~ Total
apital  account  reserve  scheme  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve profit Total interests  equity
Rt
2B URHA
B Rt i ETER EEN OQAEE EX FER
Ra  EER BE  BRE NHEE BE EERE RORR GRAE A EE  EEEE
Notes  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
izt Thr Thr TR TR TEn  TEn  TEr  TRr  Thr TR TE TR
(note 35) (note 38) ~ (note 37) (note 38) (note 38)
(Ht3s) (Hbe)  (Hasr) (W) (Hie)
AtT July 2021 NONETRIA 75 409015 37294 (14693 47542 (174%) 2571 (1647) 176136 639498 53,556 693,056
Proft for the year R - - - - - - - - Tl Tl 3063 7531
Other comprehensive incomelloss) for the year: ~ ERAHZERN/(FE)
Changes in fair value of equity EEARABEIALL
investments designated at fair value through — 2EMAZRAZER
other comprehensive income MEEEY - - - - - 10903 - - - 10963 - 1093
Release of reserve upon partial disposal of RBRLE-BRERA%
a susidary Ehas - - - - - - N I ¥/
Release of reserve upon deemed partal disposal -~ VB[54 HE-FRE
of an associate RARERER = - = = = - - - Wy -y
Bxchange diferences on transltion of TEERINZHY
operations outside Hong Kong 352 - - - - - - - B S - g
Total comprehensive income for the year ERRENALE = = = = - 10963 - (235 72168 80,800 3063 83,809
Dividends paid/payable to non-contrlling interests 2t/ B 2R BER & - - - - - - - - - - o) 974
Final 2021 dividend ANERERE 12 - - - - = - - - sy sy - 4y
Inerim 2022 dividend ANFRERS 12 - - - - = - - - By 1739 S (1147
Transfer upon disposal of equity securites RUEERALBEA
designated at fai value through other ERERANSAZ SR
comprehensive income 3 = = = = = (306) = = = (306) = (306)
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend EaRURERLRE 35 18 1349 - (27) - - - - - 1326 - 1303
Purchases of shares for the share awerd scheme ~ SiRAZEHEBRNRA 37 - - - (157) - - - - - (157) - (157)
Equiy-settled share-based payment amangements  J R4S\ R(7 A
ERBARRH 3,37 - - - 58 (4167) - - - LR (M) Sy
Establishment of subsiciares RIHEAR - - - - - - - - - - 816 816
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHELT = = = = = = = = = - (90400 (9,040)
Transfr o legal resenve BETETRE - - 5 - . - B1) - 1 B} _ i
At 30 June 2022 1202264308 795 420505 37294 (14564 23375 (6,838 2540 (3972 237520 698653 38652 737305
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 June 2023

BE2023F6H308ILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
LN TN
Shares held
under the ~ Share-
Share  Capital ~ share  based Fair Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium contrbuton ~~ award  payment  value  Llegal fluctuation  Refained controlling ~~~ Total
apital  account  reserve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
Rt
2B URGA
B Rt g ETRE EEN OQAEE E FER
Ra kR B BRE  GRER B iERE RORE 9FNE ait BE REEE
Notes  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
izt Thr TRr TR TR TEn  Thn  TEr  TRr TR TR TEr TR
(note 35) (note 38) (note 37)  (note 38) (note 38)
(&t3s) (ie) (W) (Kibe) (H&t38)
AtT July 2022 R0E7R1A 799 42505 37294 (4564 23375 (6,838) 2540 (3972) 237520 69,653 38652 737305
Proft for the year ERHIE - - - - - - - - 60452 60452 (4717) 55735
Other comprehensive incomel(loss for the year: ~ ERERZERA/ (BB :
Changes in fair value of equiy EERRALBETALL
investmens designated at fair value trough——— 2EUWA ZRAREH
other comprehensive income MERE = = - = - 5905 = = - 5905 -5
Exchange differences on translation of REERMIN 2B
operations outside Hong Kong EzE o o = o o 5 - (14 - (143 - (143
Total comprehensive income fo the year ERRENALE - - - - -5 - (A 60452 6490 (4717) 60203
Dividends paidpayable to non-controlling interests B /B3R RiER RS - - - - - - - 8 > - ey @)
Final 2022 dividend ANERERR 12 - - - - - - - - (B 34 - (340
Interim 2023 dividend ABERFRE 12 - = = = = > = - (13393)  (133%) - (1359
Transfer upon disposal of equity securites RUERALEEA
designated at far value through other EREENADRAZSKE
comprehensive income 1 - - - - - (04) o o 9% = o o
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend RAURERSRE 3 1B 1426 - () - . s s - 13965 - 13965
Purchases of shares for the share award scheme ~ SEEAREFEEEDRR 37 - - -5 - - - - - @5 - (3%
Equitysetted share-based payment arrangements  [EZEE R KA
BB ng 36,37 - 5 - 150 (705 5 = -8 260 -6
Transfer to legal reserve BRTLRER - - - - - - - - - -
AL30 June 2023 R003E6 5308 BTOS6T30 W (580 1610 (0 281 (AW 268046 MO WAL 769719
20235 | BMEBKEEBERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERER

Year ended 30 June 2023

BE2023F6A30HLFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 54 AT A 64,365 87,177
— Continuing operations —FBEREER 64,365 85,980
- Discontinued operation —ERIEREETK - 1,197
Adjustments for: #MTFEIEFE
Finance cost RN 5,675 4,067
Share of losses/(profits) of EhEEAREE(FE)
joint ventures 636 (8)
Share of losses of associates FE(R & N R &R 3,644 1,638
Bank interest income RAT A B WA (2,811) (101)
Interest income on financial assets REHK ARG ED
at amortised cost TREENN KA 6 (328) (1,211)
Interest income from finance lease MERENT WA 6 (252) (46)
Dividend income from investments EAnBETFTAEMEER
at fair value through other WAz &RE 8RB HA
comprehensive income 6 (5,032) (2,377)
Fair value (gain)/losses on BRARBEGABRZD
financial assets at fair value EMEEMNAREE
through profit or loss, net (W zs),/ BB FHE 7 (918) 4,825
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A R EY AR 6 — (39)
Write-off of items of property, plant and #fi#5%1% - BE kR EHEE
equipment 7 482 343
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME BENMKEEE
plant and equipment ) & 18 7 144 -
Depreciation of property, ME - BERJREINE
plant and equipment 14 32,376 24,092
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15 69,681 56,908
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fib £ i & 7= 4 1 7 1,828 1,829
Impairment loss of an associate — BB R AR REE R 7 1,546 -
Write-off of an intangible asset WiE—TBEFEE 7 9,824 -
Write-off of inventories WiEFE 7 502 =
Lease modification HEBN 7 (126) (76)
ECL of financial assets at amortised RESHKAT B SRMEE
cost ZTEBEEEE 7 - 6,240
Gain on deemed disposal of previously 8 & S gt — B2
held interest in an associate NCIESE- A 33§ 6 - (14,806)
Gain on disposal of discontinued & B AR IR & R e
operation 40 - (15,412)
Rent concessions HE R R 15(b) - (777)
Equity-settled share-based payment At i B AR D B ERE R
expense/(reversal of equity-settled ~EF S (BB LA RE2S
share-based payment expense) REE AR R AT 5K
Fisc) 2,620 (1,247)
Operating profit before working BEESEIAIKLLTE
capital changes 183,856 151,019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEETRER

Year ended 30 June 2023

HZE2023F6H30RIEFE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo =E FE T THT
(Increase)/decrease in inventories Ti"j (), m (4,033) 199
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables %Fgﬂﬂl RIg (1 7][])//& 2o (39,615) 399
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other i‘Eth B - Hth U GRIB
receivables and other assets REMEERL (8 m) 3,036 (8,614)
Decrease in finance lease receivables Fﬁuﬁzﬁﬂéﬁﬁ‘fﬁid\ 1,830 -
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from & W B & A T R IB R 4~
associates (&) 19,608 (4,621)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from [EWREE AT ZHER LD
joint ventures (3%40) 1,069 (668)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts JE%ZF@H%?’A FRIE
due from related companies s /(i")JD) 20 (257)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ‘féf%fﬁ RIE 0, CRl ) 25,176 (20,863)
Increase in other payables H e 5k E K et B B
and accruals 30 18,916 3,476
Increase in amounts due to JE < Bt 2 2 B R IE A0
associates 155 976
Decrease in amount due to a B —RE& & QR RIE
joint venture A - (561)
Decrease in amounts due to related &S B3 B R B FRIE R
companies 22) (808)
Increase in provision BB 12 0 2,416 7,253
Cash generated from operations EXEBEENIRS 212,412 126,930
Interest received 2 W F 8 2,811 101
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBMEH (25,182) (16,119
Net cash flows from operating activities REZEHELRSREFHE 190,041 110,912
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETZHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Increase in bank deposits with original R %5 B &3 18 A KR 1T
maturities of more than 3 months e @)l (52,794) -
Interest income on financial assets at BEHEKAFTEN
amortised cost TRLEEMF B WA 328 1,211
Dividends received from investments BUIE AR EBEFFAEMERE
at fair value through other WARRE R E
comprehensive income 5,032 2,377
Dividends received from associates SR g WNEI S 2,520 1,320
Acquisition of additional interests ina ~ WE—MA&EA 73)1%59|\f =
joint venture (680) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB A A - (385)
Purchases of items of property, EEWE r%& %18 B
plant and equipment (105,355) (80,547)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 30 June 2023

BIE2023F6A30RLLFE
2023 2022
2023 20226
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT T
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME - HEREZHELN
plant and equipment T 1S 5008 549 =
Proceeds from redemption of BB O SHK ANFT 2 8
financial assets at amortised cost TREEMSRIE 18,720 7,805
Proceeds from disposal of investments .':HETEZ\\fEfETE A
at fair value through other 2 EB AR
comprehensive income REMBFHRIEA 543 2,555
Purchases of investments at fair value E%Ef?ﬁ/&ﬁfﬁﬁ FA
through profit or loss BankE - (6,239
Capital injection to an associate R YWD 3 - (750)
Deposits paid for purchases of items BEWME WENRREBEE
of property, plant and equipment XA RE R (3,979) (3,968)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits #1717 e, 4 (18 50) 1,028 (500)
Net cash flows used in investing RETHAREREZRE
activities (134,088) (77,121)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHNRESAE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of shares for the A R R ET 2B B )
share award scheme 37 2,537) (157)
Dividends paid EE (23,108) (22,041)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EH?‘H HX%&T&H
interests (4,763) (9,745)
Loans from non-controlling shareholders 3 & Fff & /A 7] 3£ 5= A% A% B A9
of subsidiaries B 48,800 -
Lease payments GEE AN 41(b) (66,389) (54,970)
Interest paid =AY (5,675) (4,067)
Net cash flows used in financing RETHMAREREERE
activities (53,672) (90,980)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HRERBEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in, i) B 2,281 (57,189)
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNRETE R Z B ) R B FHE
changes, net (1,672) (1,058)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNREREEEEY
beginning of year 235,727 293,974
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  FARRERBEEEY
END OF YEAR 29 236,336 235,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at 27/F., Wing On
House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

. medical and dental services;

o medical imaging and laboratory services;

o other auxiliary medical services; and

o healthcare management services

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAIREBEER (»)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries MERBER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRR EEMBRBZFHFBET :
follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
ML/ R BRITEE/ RDAEL
28 REXBE EREA RELHl IERE
2023 2022
03F  2002F
Axon Scanning Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 100 Provision of medical imaging and
laboratory services
RERERETLAERAT B 20,000% 7T REESYERICRRS
Dr. Lee Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Provision of dental services
FRLTHROARAA R 1A AT HRS
Flash Mover Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical imaging and
laboratory services
RERRAE B 10,000/ 7 REESYERICRRS
Metro International Clinic Limited Macau MOP100,000 69 69 Provision of medical services
ERXKERRARAR BF 100,000271% REERRS
New Season Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 70 70 Provision of medical imaging and
laboratory services
VIR ERRAF BR 1087 REESYERILRRE
Paeon ProCare Oncology Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 50 50  Provision of medical and
surgery services
EEEELRETLERAT R 1007 REERRFHMRE
Paeon ProCare Physiotherapy & Hong Kong HK$100 75 75 Provision of medical
Fitness Centre Limited physiotherapy services
EENBERREEET LBRAA R 100% 7T REBENERBRY
ProCare Integrated Medical Imaging & Hong Kong HK$100 55 - Provision of medical imaging and
Laboratory Centre (Tsim Sha Tsui) Limited laboratory services
EREABEYARILRT L (XYE) ER 100%7T RRESYERILBRE
ARAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B IS SRR MR

30 June 2023

202346 A30H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AR REEESR (@)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ARIER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
MR,/ BRITEE/ AD AR
8 REXLE EREA RELA IRER
2023 2022
023%  202F
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 75 75 Provision of medical imaging and
Centre (Central-One Chinachem laboratory services
Central) Limited
EREEVERABRT L (PR B 2,000,000/ 72 REESHERICRRS
ERH01H) ARAT
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HK$1,000 85 85 Provision of medical imaging and
Centre (Kowloon) Limited laboratory services
LEEEFALICRTOWE)BRRR  FAR 1,000/ 70 REESYERLBRE
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.5 62.5 Provision of medical imaging and
Centre Limited laboratory services
LRBEFERICRTOERAA R 10,000 70 RRESYERLBRE
Procare Medical Laboratory Centre Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical laboratory
services
EREE (BT LARAA BR 10,000 70 REERLBRE
ProCare PETCT Centre (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 75 - Provision of medical imaging
services
EREETRETL(FB)BRAA BR 10027 RRESTERE
Procare Physiotherapy and Rehabilitation Hong Kong HK$10,000 70 70 Provision of medical
Centre (Skyline) Limited physiotherapy services
EEMEARLERTO(RB)BRAR  FA 10,0007 REEENERERY
Procare Physiotherapy and Rehabilitation Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of medical
Centre Limited physiotherapy services
EEMERBRERT OERAA BR 12T REERMERBERE
202354 | BMABBKEEARLA 167
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e TR R R B R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

AEAIREEEE (#)
M A T E R ()

Place of Issued Percentage of

incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest

registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities

e,/ BRITEE/ AR AR
28 REXBH EMEA RELHl IRER

2023 2022
2023% 20224
SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”) Hong Kong HK$ 1,000,000 60 60  Provision of dermatological
services
ENBAKETLARAR (TEM) ER 1,000,000 7T R B RHRE
UMP Central Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 90 90  Provision of dental services
BAEKIHFL (PR AR, BA 100%7 BRI R
UMP Dental Centre (Yuen Long) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 70 70 Provision of dental services
BABHIHTL(TH) ARAT B 1,000,000/ 72 PR TR
UMP Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of dental services
oy D ERELINCLY B 10,0007 PR T R
UMP Medical Centre (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREHHL(BE)BR! R 1002 7T RRERRS
UMP Medical Centre (Kowloon Bay) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
BEERTL(NER)ARAR B 10,0007 REERRHS
UMP Medical Centre (New Territories) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of medical services
BagKrL (R ARAE R BT RHEESRY
UMP Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision
of medical services
BREFTLERAA R 10087 REBBR R ERRT
UMP Preventive Medicine Centre Hong Kong HK$100 75 75 Provision of medical services
(Central) Limited

BEBBRRHESH L (PR)BRAA &b 1007 BB RE

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023

2023F6A30H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION RAREEEN )
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ARIER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
AL/ R BRITEE/ AR AR
£ RExHE ERERAR Ll IERE
2023 2022
2023% 20028
UMP Professional Management (Macau) Macau MOP10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
Limited provision of corporate
healthcare solution
UMPEXEE (BF1) BRAH] AP 10,0002 F3 % RARRRERLFERRE
BANE
UMP Professional Management Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,012 100 100  Investment holding and
provision of corporate
healthcare solution
HRBBEXERARAA &t 50,000,012 REZRRRHECFBERR
BANR
UMP Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
KoERERERTLAR & 1007 Rt ERR
238 Day Surgery & Endoscopy Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 68 68  Provision of day surgery and
endoscopy services
BYHAFHEAREF OERAT] & 10,0007 REBRTFHRARZRERE
238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 61 61 Provision of medical services
238EMBETLARAT B 10,000 7T B RRS
IRBRMAZHERA R PRC RMB3,500,000 80 80 Provision of healthcare and
medical services
T AR#3,500,0007T REBRREREFRS
FRRREZHER AR PRC RMB3,500,000 80 80  Provision of healthcare and
medical services
hE AR#3,500,0007T REBRRELERRS
2023FH | BMABBREARA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.1

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
(@) The Company is a limited liability company under PRC

law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for equity investments and certain other assets which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2023. A subsidiary is an entity directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

2023 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the

current accounting period:

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and

equipment: Proceeds before intended use

o Amendment to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets: Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed

below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting the
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is
available for use from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds and the related costs
should be included in profit and loss. The amendments do not
have a material impact on these financial statements as the
Group does not sell items produced before an item of property,

plant and equipment is available for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —
cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contracts is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the
contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to

fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Company included only incremental costs
when determining whether a contract was onerous. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to contracts for which it
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 July 2022, and has
concluded that none of them is onerous.

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In July 2023, the HKICPA published Accounting implications
of the abolition of the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”)-long
service payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
that provides guidance on the accounting considerations
relating to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the

mechanism.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the HKICPA
guidance and expect to adopt this guidance in its annual
financial statements for the year ending 30 June, 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June
2023 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which

may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

BEVBREERE7R  REEA

2.3 ERMEEMARERZEBUE

4 & % A
HEBLNEHBMERAE BB
MR B — RIFETREE T £
Al - HEERRE E2023F6H308 IE
FEMAER  BEHRRUESEHBERE
FEA - LT EEHEAERGH -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RUATB#sZ &R
ST EE A

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of
accounting policies

BEGRRAEVRZEE] HHF#HEZZ 25 REBUBHEERELEHE
255 (EIE XM H BT - &at BUE A9 1% 5

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors: Definition of accounting estimates

BERGTERERZIER] » BHE  BF1EEBREFR - S5 1551 EE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

ERGHERBI12RNER]  riEd - REE —BX & E KB ERIHE
FE T

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

ERGAERBIRNER] HEHEXZZS  HEESERRB I RE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:

Non-current liabilities with covenants
ERGAERBIRIER]  HBEHEZZ 23 - WERVIKMHERFE B E B
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

FAEVBRELAF16R 2ER] HE  REAMOAXRSHNHEERE

The Group is in process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the

o, W

consolidated financial statements except for the following.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 replaces HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023, with early adoption permitted.

HKFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance and
reinsurance contracts. Under certain fixed-fee service contracts
(see note 2.4), the Group accepts significant insurance risk by
agreeing to compensate the customer if a specified uncertain
future event adversely affects the customer. Some of these
contracts could be insurance contracts within the scope of
HKFRS 17. Where the Group mitigates the risk by using other
contracts to transfer part of the risk to insurance companies,
those other contracts would be reinsurance contracts within
the scope of HKFRS 17.

The premium allocation approach is an optional measurement
model in HKFRS 17 that is available for insurance and
reinsurance contracts that meet the eligibility criteria. As
the coverage period of each of the Group’s insurance and
reinsurance contracts would be one year or less, they are
expected to meet the eligibility criteria and be measured using
the premium allocation approach.

HKFRS 17 may change how balances of insurance and
reinsurance contracts and the related income and expenses are
presented and disclosed in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, the Group expects that the premium
allocation approach would result in similar measurements of
contract balances as under the Group’s current accounting
policies. Therefore, the adoption of HKFRS 17 is expected to
have no material impact on the Group’s total equity at 1 July
2023 and 1 July 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised

in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as

a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash- generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (group of
CGUs) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of
CGUs) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the CGU retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments and certain debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’'s or CGU’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

=

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to

its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of 50 years and
the remaining lease terms

shorter of 20% and the

remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office 20%

equipment
Medical equipment 10%-20%
Computer 33.3%
Motor vehicle 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the CGU level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Brand names
Brand names with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and are not amortised.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful economic lives of 5 years.

Software

The development cost is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful economic life of 1 year.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets. At inception or on
reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component
and non-lease components, the Group adopts the practical
expedient not to separate non-lease components and to
account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
components (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leased properties 2 to 6 years

Office equipment 5 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not

the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases are
classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption, then the Group classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers, in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Except for investment in equity securities, in order for a
financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation
and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is

recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,

including historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification.
At each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the
debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual

payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised
cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Where shares are acquired by the share award scheme from
the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of cash dividends,
the total consideration of shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable incremental costs) or under
the scrip dividend scheme is presented as shares held for the
share award scheme and deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested awarded shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired under the scrip
dividend scheme (dividend shares) are credited to shares held
for the share award scheme, with a corresponding decrease
in the share-based payment reserve for awarded shares and a
decrease in retained profits for dividend shares.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of an operating lease
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the lease.
Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the expected
costs to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period using estimated cash flows and an equivalent asset is
recognised and depreciated over the term of the operating
lease. The estimated future costs of reinstatement are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the estimated future costs are added to or deducted
from the cost of the corresponding asset.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Company has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Details of the Group’s revenue recognition policy is described

as below:

(a)

Revenue from the provision of healthcare solution
services is recognised upon the provision of the relevant
services or on a time proportion basis over the terms of
the fixed-fee service contracts (including annual retainer
and capitation plans). Further details are explained in the
accounting policy for “fixed-fee service contracts” below;

Revenue from the below services are recognised as

services are rendered:
= medical and dental services;
- healthcare management services; and
= administrative support services

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset; and

rental income under operating leases is recognised on the

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed-fee service contracts

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed fee in which
the level of services depends on uncertain future events (the
“Fixed-fee Service Contracts”). The Fixed-fee Service Contracts
are in general of one to two years and the Group receives the
related service fees upfront. The Contract Customers cannot
recover the service fee upon the expiration of the respective
fixed-fee service contract periods irrespective of whether the
plan members utilised any services under the Fixed-fee Service

Contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, tests are performed to
ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts. In performing these tests, the
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss by establishing a provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are recognised on a time proportion basis (i.e.,
straight-line basis) over the terms of the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts. At the time of revenue recognition, plan members
may not utilise any services under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts and hence, no direct cost will be incurred by the
Group in association with the professional services rendered
by the doctors, dentists and auxiliary service providers.
Accordingly, expenses incurred in connection with the Fixed-
fee Service Contracts are charged to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes, a share award
scheme and warrants scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors), consultants and a business partner of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees, consultants and a business partner render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

In situations where the share-based payment transactions
are with employees of the Group, the cost of equity-settled
transactions is measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
these equity instruments are granted. In situations where the
share-based payment transactions are with non-employees of
the Group, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
by reference to the fair value of goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the
Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Group measures the goods or services
received, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.

The fair value of the share options granted is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the warrants granted is determined by
an external valuer using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model, further details of which are given in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised either in
employee benefit expense or other expenses, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

The Group shall revise the estimates of the amount for the
goods or services received if subsequent information indicates
that the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. For awards that do not ultimately vest
because non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date

of the modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Macau are required to participate in a social security
fund operated by the government of the Macao Special
Administrative Region. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed amounts of their payroll costs to
the social security fund. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the social security
fund.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets and financial
assets. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
this note.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

24 EESHBEME ®)

FEHENERBEE

IR B & E (S h €45 Wk E
REAEKEBHERSMIFEBTE
EAmEE - MzEE (KBEAR) R
HIERAHIEE RO BAREL
- HEANE-—HEESKA—RS
TP E MEXFEEAEERMBE
MEERRZRZTES -

BN BAGEA B R BN R R E XM
BRBWEHIER > THRAKERE S
REERREBZN B R BN IEE Hﬂ&
= ZMNBRRNMAEEERBER
B LD ERFIEHENRIERED
REFELE -

EERNBERFELER  FRPEE
(& HE'JWZF)’T%1E‘J§§&ET§)
WO B2 TR E - A& U8
"*E%?ﬂ’ﬁﬂj‘i&?é HE - ERBE
E(ATHAHSRBZETEERIN) - il
SHAMAREER A BENKHE
RAZEBEEINR - EAKRERARF
ZHRE BTSRRI AE P AT B OR
ZEZOIMERBEERAEER SR
BE -ZRFEENERKFELE Tk
B AR BB &I 2 RREE -

R D B RFIERE RERRIIER
EHEZ HHEEHFEMEL ZRER
B EREANER  REFRDEED
BARBELE  SIASBARELE
ZHEMAR  ZERBDEENTTINE

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
e
30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

B IS MR AR MR

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with

a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the

operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of profit or

loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;

and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued

operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong, associates and a joint venture are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

24 EEESTBEME ®)

S (&)

BEEARERERME - BEAINIE
ARMEERERARSREEL B
BBV EREE KT H DB T © BINHIE A A
REFELENKEERSMIZZFEM
RFHEXRFE/ETT

ERE5H B R M5

mEAKREZAMBHRRE  BEEAR
FHEXEMERBA X BER
BEZHECELENREERIBR
BRE 2 HE - At RBRR - BEZE
BREGFT I EEERSEHBRA
IWREECEEXRABEREEFELEX

=R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2023 was
HK$164,768,000 (2022: HK$164,768,000). Further details of
impairment testing are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets

The Group determines whether indefinite-lived intangible
assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the indefinite-lived
intangible assets. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the indefinite-lived intangible assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of the indefinite-lived
intangible assets at 30 June 2023 was HK$47,134,000 (2022:
HK$56,958,000). Further details of impairment testing are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

4.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services segment engages in the provision of corporate
healthcare solutions to Contract Customers in Hong Kong
and Macau;

(b) Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services
segment engages in the provision of medical and dental
services, medical imaging and laboratory services, health
check-up, and other auxiliary services in Hong Kong and
Macau; and

(¢)  Mainland China Clinical Healthcare Services segment
engages in the provision of health check-up service and
selected outpatient services in Mainland China.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of facilitating
decision-making process of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/ loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
excluding interest income, other income and gains, and share
of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates as well as
head office and corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, investments in joint ventures
and associates, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at amortised cost, investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, other assets and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instrument, and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with reference

to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

202356 A30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BREIHER @
(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2023 HZE2023F6A30R LFE
Continuing Operations
RASERH
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China
EERRA HER
Corporate
Healthcare Clinical Clinical  Continuing
Solution Healthcare ~ Healthcare ~ Operations  Discontinued
Services Services Services Sub-total Operation Total
LEBRRE BRER BRER RELE BAL
AR ERE RERHK RERH% B Rezk @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THR THR THT TR
Segment revenue: AHYA
External sales o e 244,691 437,819 44,657 727,167 - 727,167
Inter-segment sales PEEEE 1,534 124,955 - 126,489 - 126,489
246,225 562,774 44,657 853,656 - 853,656
Reconciliation: FoiR
Elimination of inter-segment ARRBEEH
sales (126,489) - (126,489)
Revenue WA 727,167 = 727,167
Segment results PR 45,004 32,037 16,793 93,834 - 93,834
Reconciliation: F1iB
Interest income MEWA 3,139
Other income and gains B RKE 13,467
Share of losses of: PIEEE
Joint ventures 5EAT (636)
Associates BERT (3,644)
Corporate and other AAREBRAR
unallocated expenses, net A8 (41,795)
Profit before tax B BAHE 64,365
Income tax expense MEHER (8,630)
Profit for the year FRHE 55,735
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

202356 H30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIHWER @)
(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2023 (Continued) B E2023F6A308 L FE (&)
Continuing Operations
GEEERR
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China
BRRRN HERY
Corporate
Healthcare Clinical Clinical ~ Continuing
Solution Healthcare Healthcare ~ Operations  Discontinued
Services Services Services Sub-total Operation Total
TEERRE BRER BRER KERE BAL
BT £ RERHE RERH B HE Y @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Segment assets AEE 169,424 331,774 21,145 522,343 = 522,343
Reconciliation: Fi
Elimination of intersegment receivables A BE RN FBLH (14,921)
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR EMASTEE 613,832
Total assets BEE 1,121,254
Segment liabilities AEE 94,695 255,216 10,594 360,505 = 360,505
Reconciliation: Fi
Elimination of intersegment payables ~ HHEEMFABHH (14,921)
Corporate and other unallocated AAREMASEARE
liabilities 5,951
Total liabilities BRE 351,535
Other segment information: Houas
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 12,231 87,616 4,038 103,885 - 103,885
Capital expenditure* BRER 850 108,208 276 109,334 - 109,334
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and S BARZBREABYE  BELXERE
equipment and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant BEYE  BEEXRBEEMOHRESD

and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

2023F6A30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BREIHER @
(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2022 HE2022F6A30B LFE
Continuing Operations
REBERHK
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China
BERRA HEIA
Corporate
Healthcare Clinical Clinical Continuing
Solution Healthcare Healthcare Operations ~ Discontinued
Services Services Services Sub-total Operation Total
tEBRkRE RRER RRER R BRI
BARERE R MR R MR Bt mexh it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
ThL TEL TEL TEL TEL ThL
Segment revenue: AHYA
External sales SNpEE 235,212 393,058 37,589 065,859 6,099 671,958
Inter-segment sales PEREE 1,764 107,361 = 109,125 = 109,125
236,976 500,419 37,589 774,984 6,099 781,083
Reconciliation: FLiB
Elimination of inter-segment ABRBEEH
sales (109,125) - (109,125)
Revenue WA 665,859 6,099 671,958
Segment results PHEE 35,284 68,602 1,534 105,420 1,197 106,617
Reconciliation: FLiB
Interest income MEWA 1,386
Other income and gains EflA R 20,035
Share of profits/{losses) of AEHE/ (B8
Joint ventures EY-UNG| 8
Associates N (1,638)
Corporate and other AAREBRAE
unallocated expenses, net A8 (39,231)
Profit before tax BB A 87177
Income tax expense fEHER (11,946)
Profit for the year ERFE 75,231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

202356 A30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BETWER @
(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2022 (Continued) B E2022F6H308 L FE (&)
Continuing Operations
REEEZH
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China
B LA hERH
Corporate
Healthcare Clinical Clinical - Continuing
Solution ~ Healthcare ~ Healthcare ~ Operations ~ Discontinued
Services Services Services Sub-total ~ Operation Total
PEEERE BRER BRER 51t B
EVYELT RERHE RERH £ BEzH 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TiEn Thn ThEn TR TR
Segment assets IBEE 152,147 193,333 6,545 352,025 - 352,025
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment receivables ABRERTEES (14,669)
Corporate and other unallocated assets NAREMKIREE 700,245
Total assets BEE 1,037,601
Segment liabilities 2HEE 84,675 205,919 13,020 303,014 - 303,614
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment payables ARERRFELH (14,669)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities A RREHFIEEE 11,351
Total liabilities 286 300,296
Other segment information: Rt HER:
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 12,413 61,533 4,671 78,617 4212 82,829
Capital expenditure? LU 10,494 70,199 1,019 81,712 2,803 84,515
S Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and < BARXBRERNEME BERZERE
equipment and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant BEY¥  BELRREBEEIMNOHRES -

and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group operates
within three geographical locations, Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China. Further details of the geographical
information in respect of revenue from external customers are

set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

e B ISR R M R
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Non-current assets ERBEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 553,415 530,365
Mainland China AR A 3 4,508 6,814
Macau el 2,431 2,812
TOTAL Fe 560,354 539,991

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes rental deposits, financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

4.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from two major customers from the Corporate

Healthcare Solution Services segment is set out below:

REFTER 8

TEFFEHR
KEMBEREF CREEXBRERRE
BRI IR 2 #B) MR AF S0 T -

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T T T

Customer A ZEA 46,229 47,029

Customer B = FB 27,754 21,329
REVENUE 5. WA

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations

is as follows:

7 B2 F 5 A A T 2 WA 2 DA
mF -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TR
Revenue from contracts with customers & B EHREER E155%
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEAZEFEHRA
Provision of corporate RE BRI R 4t
healthcare solution services EBERRRE
in Hong Kong and Macau i SR 5 R BR 75 244,691 235,212
Medical Bk 225,159 216,138
Dental R 19,532 19,074
Provision of clinical REBRBEMREMH
healthcare services iR PR B8 B AR 2 AR 75
in Hong Kong and Macau 437,819 393,058
Medical BR 379,273 337,435
Dental ZFRE 58,546 55,623
Mainland China Clinical Healthcare FEAthRREEREEL
Business 44,657 37,589
TOTAL =Er 727,167 665,859
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(O]

Disaggregated revenue information from continuing
operations

For the year ended 30 June 2023

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

LONE D

BEEAHKBA

() RARECBEEZEHHEZNR
AER

HZE2023F6H30BILFE
Corporate

Healthcare Clinical
Solution Healthcare

Segments Services Services Total
b=
BRRME
R R iR K 28 AR
2 &P PR # R R ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FHET
Type of services PR %5 B
Medical services BER% 225,159 423,930 649,089
Dental services 7F ® Bk 75 19,532 58,546 78,078
Total revenue from contracts B P& AU A 4258
with customers 244,691 482,476 727,167
Geographical markets it 38 T 35
Hong Kong a8 231,545 435,216 666,761
Mainland China R B A = 44,657 44,657
Macau P 13,146 2,603 15,749
Total revenue from contracts BEAXUA 458
with customers 244,691 482,476 727,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

20236 H30H
5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA @
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEEHWA (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information from continuing () REFEREXBZE&IoH2ZW
operations (Continued) AER(8)
For the year ended 30 June 2022 B E20226F6H308 L FE
Corporate
Healthcare Clinical
Solution Healthcare
Segments Services Services Total
%
BEERE
fRR T 2 Fe IR B8 &
72 B Pz 7% REEPRTS BEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T TF&T &L
Type of services PR %5 3 B
Medical services L 216,138 375,024 591,162
Dental services oF R} AR 7% 19,074 55,623 74,697
Total revenue from contracts BEAXWALETE
with customers 235,212 430,647 665,859
Geographical markets 38 T 5
Hong Kong 5B 220,497 389,438 609,935
Mainland China === NNbii) = 37,589 37,589
Macau JEFT 14,715 3,620 18,335
Total revenue from contracts BEAXHWA BT
with customers 235,212 430,647 665,859
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(O]

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023

2023%F6H30H
5. WA @
BEEAHWA (8)
(i) BOHE2ZWAER(E)

TR 2NN AR E A RE R L
AREHRNEHNEERARNBE
HIREXNEAOER ERBNHEA
T

2023 2022
2023%F 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET
Revenue recognised that was FFARSHYENEE
included in contract liabilities R E A -
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Provision of corporate healthcare 2> Z B E(RIEM R
solution services 7R 13,114 16,120
Performance obligations (i) BREME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services

The Group provides healthcare solution services by
entering into (i) capitation plan contract; (ii) annual
retainer contract; and (iii) fee for service contract with
Contract Customers. The performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered. Payment
is either paid upfront for capitation plan contract
and annual retainer contract or billed based on each
treatment incurred for fee for service contract which is
generally due within 30 to 60 days.

Provision of clinical healthcare services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered; and payment is mainly on
cash or credit card settlement.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) which amounted to HK$20,218,000
(2022: HK$19,081,000) as at 30 June 2023 are expected
to be recognised within one year.

A B A B/ 40 1 60 B RHEE it
mF :

FEH 1P 3 B R EBEF T SR TH
AEBFEBESNEFRIL)IRA
FEBFEEL : (VFETEERK
BE5A R(iVRBKEE MR
HEEBEREBHERTERS -
BHREBEERBHOREMN —
EBRRSENIE © IRABERBETEIS
RFEETREREEGNTEAR
BIS 3R - MARFS UL E S 4975 E AR
BEXERRAZAL KN30
E60RNEHIRY R -

TR LB B B (R LIRS
BHOEERRERE S HYE
R BEBBBRS RN
#0F -

MR2023F6 H300 B FTH TEAE
FREKIBOREK) IR S
B4 %820,218,0007 7T (20224 -
19,081,000/ 7 ) T8 Hi % — F (A i

5
=7
o ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains from

H At Y A R W 3

AEBERAFELEEBHNEMBBAR

continuing operations is as follows: WeEEDHramT
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Dividend income from investments BRAABEFARMEZE
at fair value through other WAz &E 8 B HA
comprehensive income 5,032 2,377
Rental income HE WA 4,440 540
Bank interest income RITH B WA 2,811 97
Fair value gain on financial assets at BARBEGTABERZ
fair value through profit or loss, net PREENAREE
LG 918 —
Administrative support fees income THRXEEKRA 583 342
Interest income on financial assets at 3% 8§45 AN 51 & £
amortised cost TREEMNTEWA 328 1,211
Interest income from finance lease AMEHENNE WA 252 46
Gain on deemed disposal of BAE L & S AT —FE B &
previously held interest in an UNCIESE ook 400 6
associate - 14,806
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B M E A A e e - 39
Others H i 5,186 1,964
19,550 21,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023

202356 A30H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BR% AR E
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is AR B R B F B A A EE T 8 R B AT AR

arrived at after charging/(crediting):

T3k, (GEA) T REZGH -

2023 2022
2023 20226
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 TER TET
Auditor’s remuneration ZER B & 3,051 2,879
Cost of inventories consumed BEHRFEKA 45,247 37,564
Professional services expenses HERERY 255,396 238,035
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% » BERLENE 14 32,376 22,163
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15(a) 69,681 54,625
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith BT & E o 17 1,828 1,829
Employee benefit expense (including directors’  EEBHHAZ (BEEEME
remuneration (note 9))*: (BizE9))*
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e 28 REREMER
other benefits 179,856 170,371

Equity-settled share-based payment expense®

Pension scheme contributions

Mg B AR AR
AR 36, 37 2,620 (1,247)
RIKE 2 ER (TEM G2

(defined contribution schemes)* 7,380 7,540
Less: Government subsidies® BT e (2,422) (4,176)
187,434 172,488
Equity-settled share-based payment expense M4 E AR AR R
(including employees, professional Fx(BREER ZXEMAR
consultants and other business partner)® Hi BB 36, 37 2,620 (1,247)
Foreign exchange differences, net = RE - Si[l5
Write-off of items of property, plant and WEDE  BERRXEER
equipment 482 343
Loss on disposal of items of property, plantand ~ HEWE - ERREEENER
equipment 144 =
Write-off of an intangible asset WE-—EEVEE 17 9,824 =
Impairment loss of an associate —RBERANRESR 20 1,546 -
Write-off of inventories WHFE 502 -
Lease payments not included in the YT EREEEaEHEL
measurement of lease liabilities MERR 15(c) 1,531 2,108
Fair value (gain)/losses on financial assets at fair &A% EEFABZHNEHEEND
value through profit or loss, net** AR BEMR)/BEFE (918) 4,825
Lease modification HEBHR (126) (76)
Expected credit loss of financial asset at REHKAHABZLEOREEL
amortised cost BHREEER = 6,240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B IS MR AR MR

30 June 2023

202346 A30R

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. BRBLATRI A ()
Inclusive of employee benefit expense from continuing operations of BERRUEERBEN ENAEE
HK$7,617,000 (2022: HK$7,801,000) paid/payable to the Group’s BEREFELEXEBNRERERBMAX
employees for the rendering of professional services, which was 7,617,0007 7T (20224 : 7,801,000/
classified as “Professional services expenses” in the consolidated ) AR EGREBERRTEERR
statement of profit or loss. [EXRBER] -

& The amount in the year ended 30 June 2022 represented a reversal of 4 #2022 6 A30H IEFEH SR ARE
equity-settled share based payment expense of HK$6,222,000 which mAEEE AR AEB O RF D
was credited to the line item of “Employee benefit expense” in the 6 222,000/ 7T o A REIRIE T & 2 R
consolidated statement of profit or loss due to the lapse of unvested BB RN A R EE T ALK
share option in the share option scheme. /\T,E\ﬁnﬁz [MEERAMFX | BITEEA -

’ As at 30 June 2023, the Group had no material forfeited g H2023F6A30H @ AEBEWES KR
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension HRA AR EREREE L RAREG
schemes in future years (2022: Nil). B (20225 - &) -

@ The subsidies were granted under Employment Support Scheme from G B AR R ARIEE B BT &R BUF &9
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and REEFEREVEGEERRTANE
were deducted in the line item of “Employee benefit expense” in the BRMNAX IETHEFNR - WESH
consolidated statement of profit or loss. There were no unfulfilled T8 348 B B R AR 1
conditions relating to the subsidies.

**  The net fair value gain was credited in the line item of “other income o RABERSFREGRABRRRANIE
and gains” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net A R zs | B17IR B ‘:F‘Euﬂ s RAfE
fair value loss was debited in the line item of “other expenses” in the EBEEEFEEGREBEERAN[H M
consolidated statement of profit or loss. X |BTHEAHER -

8. FINANCE COST 8. MEMA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx F A7
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGBZHE 5,675 3,918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

EEME
AEEEEMERETBHAXIM
BRAFES EHRR - FE QRS
££383(1)() ~ (b) ~ () ROIEREER A
(RBEEFRER) RO E2BRE M
™ :

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Fees o 2,450 2,285

Other emoluments: i B A5 -

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e 2 R E g T 12,690 13,545

Discretionary bonuses B IETEAL 865 =
Equity-settled share-based R AR ARD R

payment expense AR X 2,072 1,266

Pension scheme contributions BRIKE T EIH R 28 63

15,655 14,874

18,105 17,159

Certain directors were granted share options and share awards,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option schemes and the share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in notes 36 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The fair values of such options and awards, which have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, were determined as at the dates of
grant and the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the above directors’ remuneration

disclosures.

ETEERFEEFRARBIRHRE MR
BB H B AR 8 & At SR AT &l
BB R R - BRE—FFF
BRI ENER A M RAR M 3637 °

ZEBBRENEBH A BERKEA
HEE  DREBRALEGABRERT
R Mt AREMBRRNSBRE
ErimEEMERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

9. EEME

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ BIAFEHTEE
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances share-based Pension
and other  Discretionary payment scheme Total
Fees benefits honuses expense  contributions remuneration
g DEREEN
BER DRGBAER Bihe
ik Rt R BEEAL  HAREX HE HeshE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThEL THEL THAL TR TiET
2023 203%
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, Johnsesp ~ ZHE%4 290 = = = = 290
(HEHEE
A FHT)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sesjp ZEiRE £ 240 = = = = 240
(HEHEE
AF4L)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike ARAS A 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chau Chit, Jeremy Efipika 240 - - - - 240
1,010 - - - - 1,010
2022 20225
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 885 jp g L 285 = = = 3 288
(HEHEE
A FHL)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss ) ZEi&E 4+ 235 - - - 3 238
(REHEE
X F4L)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 154454 235 - - - 3 238
Mr. Chau Chit, Jeremy B LE 120 = = = = 120
875 - - - 9 884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

2023F6A30H
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEME=w)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES

Equity-settled

Salaries, share-hased
allowances and  Discretionary payment Pension scheme Total
Fees  other benefits honuses expense contributions  remuneration

e HEREEH

BER BB AER £k
g At BERL  NARRX TR EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
2023 2023%
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong FRITES 240 6,741 - 82 - 7,063
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen ~ BEEZ L 240 4,599 765 872 18 6,494
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRELE 240 - - 82 - 30
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael ANBEE 240 600 100 872 4 1,816
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix rZHET 240 750 = 82 6 1,078
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick ThERE 240 - - 82 - 30
1,440 12,690 865 2,072 28 17,095
2022 2022
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong RRIESE 235 7,365 - M 3 7,814
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen 82 %+ 235 4,020 - 21 21 4,487
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRELE 235 - - 2 3 449
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael AXBEE 235 - - m 3 449
Dr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix F5EET 235 2,160 - 211 21 2,627
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Eatid L3 235 - - 211 3 449
1,410 13,545 - 1,266 54 16,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

Executive directors (Continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2022: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2022: Nil).

During the year, professional services fees were paid/
payables to Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick, the executive directors of the Company,
in relation to the rendering of healthcare services to the
Group. Further details of which are set out in note 43(b)

to the consolidated financial statements.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three

(2022: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set

9.

EEME &)

(b)

HITES (8)

FR - AKERECHIENES
MEESMAREBEHIMARSE
1% 0 B2 B S E A RE BB 1B (2022
FE) -

FAMBEENEXRBENEL
I & /0 2Bk (20224 © &) -

RAFEE » AR BREERFHE
BE(BRAEARRARTESR) AN
SERUBEREREMACHN
SENRENEERGE - E—F
FHBEHNERE M HMRMEE43(b) ©

10. EEERSHFHNES

FAN AEAERSFMNEERE=%
Q002  ZR)EE  HENMEFE
B EXH 9 FARBRTMA (2022

out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
FMB)RFEARBESRIFITERAE
BHREFHEENMESFBET

the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - &85 K& H {th 48 A 3,642 3,270

Discretionary bonuses W5 TEAL 390 566
Equity-settled share-based LARE R 4 H B LARR 10 B E TR A

payment expense IR 2 = 304

Pension scheme contributions BIRE AR 36 36

4,068 4,176
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

10. B2 BRSHFMES &)
SETMEEERIETRERESET

SR AR

Number of employees

BEAH
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T Z2,000,000% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,000/% 7T 1 1
2 2

Share options and share awards were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
his services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in notes 36 and 37 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

The fair values of such options and awards, which have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, were determined as at the dates of
grant and the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

— R IFEFIMIEITRAEE N &= E
BRI M AN B R R R A AR
Kigin 82E) - BRE#E— T FEDBIER
A SR FE36 %37 ©

ZEBRENEBN A2 BERRL A
HETE  DREBHAERABRRT

R Mt ASREMBRRNEERRE
FEEREIFE R R IFTTHRAER R =
BEZHMEHKE -

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

11. INCOME TAX 11. FIEH

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax regime effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019.

The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this subsidiary
is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5%.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in

which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax from continuing operations charged

BEEMNEHEREREBAELENMGEF
JE R BRI EI%16.5% (20224 : 16.5%)
MR RHREME  BEAEE—REHBA
AIBR AN - Z M B A A A EH2018/201953%
TEERBEBNMAFEHEHE TH
BERER -

% M 8 A 7] 89 & 2,000,000 7T FE 2% Bt
FH128.25%8 KB - HAERTLF
IR 16.5%F R HF -

Hofth 1 SR B B B0 BRI A R
BHEBR, 7k 0BT B K it

st
= o
ZAr

WiFEBRRNR 2 REFBELEERK
=]
53

to the consolidated income statement represents: ZIERERRR
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Current — Hong Kong BVHA— &%
Charge for the year FARZH 17,383 15,116
Over-provision in prior years BEFEEBERE (364) (984)
Current — Elsewhere BIVER — H fth 3t [=
Charge for the year FAXH 1,454 518
Withholding tax SRR 54 (85)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETR (1,716) 6
Deferred (note 33) BRI (M45E33) (8,181) (2,625)
Total tax charge for the year FABIA LA 8,630 11,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

2023F6A30H
11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. FrE% @
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before REEUNEBEZEFRE (MRXRAAKRE
tax from continuing operations using the Hong Kong statutory SPHT B 1X R SR B S P AE RUEHE (& B)R
tax rate (the statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which the ERE)HAEBEARKEFELEED
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled) to the Z BB A AE RO B 75 B S A B R T K
tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: SREOHEHEHERAT
2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
Profit before tax BR B Al FIE 64,365 85,980
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate % &%516.5% (20224 : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) HYETE B R P st BiER 10,620 14,187
Difference in tax rates for specific W TE Bl VA RE R ok B Hh R A K
jurisdictions or enacted by local tax B R 2R T
authority, net 1,101 (618)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of i@ HAf A & HA B IR 1E 7 &
previous periods (2,080) (978)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & & A 7 K& B & A 7] FE (5 78
ventures and associates KM EE 706 269
Income not subject to tax EAGMTIAZ WA (3,806) (6,325)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z 2 1,111 3,643
Tax losses utilised from previous BREHEESEZ HIEEE
periods (2,527) (318)
Tax losses not recognised AERZ RIAER 1,705 3,180
Others Hih 1,800 (1,094)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate EARNEBEEREHEXFTE 2 HIBZ N 8,630 11,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

2023%F6A30H
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2023 2022
2023 20226
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THIT
Dividends recognised as distribution FRERED ROKE :
during the year:
Final 2022 — HK3.00 cents 2022F RHE — BB E B
(2021: HK2.80 cents) per ordinary 3.00/81lL (20214 : 2.807%1l)
share 23,780 21,710
Less: Dividend for shares held under g : B D BB T EIIB T EE N
the share award scheme P 9 IR (299) (272)
23,481 21,438
Interim 2023 — HK1.70 cent (2022: 2023 F R MR - BT BR
HK1.50 cent) per ordinary share 1.7074L (20224 : 1.50%1L) 13,786 11,890
Less: Dividend for shares held under & : fx D 8RBt 2138 NIBE K
the share award scheme & 1 B9 AR B (193) (151)
13,593 11,739
37,074 33,177
Dividend proposed after the end of the g% BioK 1% R i% 2. :
reporting period:
Proposed final 2023 — HK3.00 cents  #2#2023F RHI 2
(2022: HK3.00 cents, with scrip — &% E B A%3.007810
option) per ordinary share (20224 : 3.007& L
(M AR B IR IE) ) 24,329 23,780
The proposed final 2023 dividend of HK3.00 cents per FRNEZ2023F KRR E TR E B
ordinary share for the year is subject to the approval of the 3.008 AR AR AR R & fa I R B
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general FRE LA -
meeting.

232 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of HK$60,452,000 (2022: HK$72,168,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
789,955,284 (2022: 772,787,744) in issue during the year,
as adjusted to exclude the shares held under the share award

scheme.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$60,452,000 (2022:
HK$72,168,000). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
of 789,955,284 (2022: 772,787,744) in issue during the year
and excluded the shares held under the share award scheme,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 3,633 (2022:
366,353) assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all share options (2022: share options
and warrants) into ordinary shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 have been adjusted to reflect
the bonus element in respect of scrip dividend during the year.

13.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

RAREBERBERFAARGSE
R 2 Rl

BREABMNGEIHERARA R LT EE
m A AFEIEFERNFE60,452,00078 7T
(20224 72,168,000 70) RFENE &
17 % AR b0 # 7 15 Bk £0789,955,2 84 %
(2022%F : 772,787,744 ) (T B21ERH
REFEETERBNRMD)FE -

BREBERNSENERAQA LB
= FEA A E AR E60,452,000
770 (20224 : 72,168,000/ 75) &
HoTERMAMNT@BRMELESRE A
HESREABAAANFAE R
789,955,284 8% (20224F : 772,787,744
B) LR - WA BIERGD REFEIIE
TIERB MR - A RBRRETE B E
(20224 : BRERBRER) HHEAD
IEATARE  REEFABITHNY
BN IR B A3,633 % (20224 ¢
366,3530%) o

HE2023F F2022F6H30H IFFEH

BB AERE  ARBRE
RNE D IKE AR B ALFTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

202346 H30H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME - - BERFZE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~ and office Medical Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment  Computer vehicle Total
Fe-
Bg £ER
BF  NEEE BOERE  BERA ) RE ai
Notes  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
liE: T#7 T#n Fin T#7 T#n Tin T#7
30 June 2023 2023564308
At30june 2022 andat 1July 2022 2026 A30R &k
R0E7A1E -
Cost WA 57,15 88,209 7,834 92,309 30,682 602 276,761
Accumulated depreciation BifE (3553)  (@3,755) G60) (6531 (25.207) (60 (135,260)
Net carying amount KEFE 53,572 44454 2,232 35,778 5,465 - 141501
AUT July 2022, net of accumulated 1202287 A18
depreciation TkZihE 53,572 44,454 2,3 35,778 5,465 = 141,501
Additions KE - 30,549 880 61,420 5,136 - 97,985
Wite-off fi 45 - (610) (88) (37 (31) = (766)
Disposal hE - - - (693) - - (693)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRHEE 927) (14,960) (703) (12,203) (3,581) = (32,376)
Bxchange realignment L - (27) ) (52 (25) - (108)
At30 June 2023, net of accumulated 12023568308 +
depreciation and impairment ENRETERAE 52,645 59,406 2317 84,211 6,964 - 205,543
At 30 June 2023: 102356308 :
Cost WA 7,15 108,056 157 135,67 34471 55 343,051
Accumulated depreciation and BifERNE
impairment (4480)  (48,630) (52000 (61,056 (27,507) (555)  (137,508)
Net carying amount EETE 52,645 59,406 2317 84,211 6,964 - 0558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

(Continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2023%F6H30H

14. ¥ - BERSKE@®

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~and office Medical Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment equipment  Computer vehicle Total
(-
BE RER
BT NERE  BOZRE ERRG gk nE ait
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
fis TH Thr A TEn Thr Thr TEx
30 June 2022 2022%6A30R
At30 June 2021 and at 1July 2021:  H202186A308 &
R0NE7RIA
Cost B 57,125 57,538 7,739 74179 31,060 504 228,205
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (2,626) (43,148) (6,053) (52,983) (23,401) (564) (128,775)
Net carrying amount GEEE 54,499 14,390 1,686 21,196 7,659 - 99,430
AT July 2021, net of accumulated 7202157418
depreciation BNRgnE 54,499 14,390 1,686 21,19 7,639 - 99,430
Additions hE - 49,225 2,352 23,379 5,591 - 80,547
Disposal of subsidiaies HERELT 4 - (9,156) 1991) (406) (3,605) - 45
Write-off s - (95) (53) (172) (23) - (343)
Depreciation provided during the year Wz i1 & @ (927) (10,190) (782) (8,240) (3,953) = (24,092)
Exchange realignment S - 280 20 2 (204 - 17
At30 June 2022, net of accumulated 7202265308 -
depreciation and impairment ENBRZHNERAR 53,57 44,454 223 35,778 5,465 = 141,501
At 30 June 2022: R2022E6A308 :
Cost KA 57,15 86,209 7,834 92,309 30,662 602 276,761
Accumulated depreciation and 2FEREE
impairment (3,553) (43,755) (5,602) (56,531) (25,217) (602) (135,260)
Net carying amount et 5,57 44454 2232 35,778 5,465 R T
(@  The amount represents depreciation charge of HK$24,092,000 which (a) B B E K K24,092,000/8 T Z T E

includes HK$22,163,000 (note 7) arising from continuing operations
and HK$1,929,000 arising from discontinued operation.

TH ERRIERBFELEERZ
22,163,000/ 7T (FI5E7) KRR A B4R [E4E
BT 21,929,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

202356 A30H
15. LEASES 15. 5
The Group as a lessee AEBEEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for its medical centres, office AEBEFREBBHO PREYERM
properties and office equipment. The leases are negotiated for RERBIAHEGN  -BENR_=E
terms ranging from two to six years. INEFERTER o
(@) Right-of-use assets @ FHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEEERAREENREENSE
and the movements during the year are as follows: NEBHMT :
Leased Office
properties equipment Total
HEYE PRAERE ast
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 THER FHERT THET
As at 1 July 2022 R2022F7A1H 135,206 792 135,998
Additions NE 44,885 - 44,885
Lease modification HEBK (2,924) - (2,924)
Depreciation charge TELH (69,167) (514) (69,681)
Exchange realignment PE W 38 2 (346) = (346)
As at 30 June 2023 72023468308 107,654 278 107,932
Leased Office
properties  equipment Total
HEWME PRERXRE &t
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 THETT T THETT
As at 1 July 2021 R2021%7A1H 72,360 1,306 73,666
Additions NE 125,628 - 125,628
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKTEB A F) 40 (5,534) (5,534)
Lease modification MEEH (772) = (772)
Depreciation charge* e (56,394) (514) (56,908)
Exchange realignment P& o & (82) - (82)
As at 30 June 2022 202256 H30H 135,206 792 135,998
o The amount represents depreciation charge during year 5 BHFRERKEZ202296730H
ended 30 June 2022 of HK$56,908,000 which includes 1F £ 256,908,000/ 7T 2 #T & X
HK$54,625,000 arising from continuing operations (note 7) H EReERERELSEEBZ
and HK$2,283,000 arising from discontinued operation. 54,625,000/8 7 (M5E7) KRB E

BRI HE T 22,283,0008 7T ©
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15. LEASES (Continued)

Th
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e Group as a lessee (Continued) &
Lease liabilities (b)
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

15. HE )

BEBEBA (4)
HESE
gga%mﬁﬁﬁﬁimﬁ@m

Lease
liabilities
HESE
Note HK$’000
B & FHERT
Carrying amount at 1 July 2022 M2022F7 A1H KR EE 148,341
New leases s 44,885
Lease modification HEEH \ (3,050)
Accretion of interest recognised during FANERBEF S IE
the year 5,675
Payments 5% (72,064)
Exchange realignment PE W 38 2 (372)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2023 71K2023F6 A30H M EREIE 123,415
Analysed into: DHTIE -
Current portion BVER =8 5 58,483
Non-current portion FERNERER &5 64,932
123,415
Lease
liabilities
HEAE
Note HK$'000
B & TET
Carrying amount at 1 July 2021 RK2021F7 A1H M IREE 78,027
New leases MHEE 133,017
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 40 (6,121)
Lease modification HEBK ) (848)
Accretion of interest recognised during FRFERHF EIE e
the year® 4,067
Payments RS (59,037)
Rent concessions HE e (777)
Exchange realignment bE 5L 5 B 13
Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 1202256 H30H K BRI E 148,341
Analysed into: SHTIE
Current portion kb 63,272
Non-current portion SEENERER 85,069
148,341

The amount represents interest expense during year ended 30
June 2022 of HK$4,067,000 which includes HK$3,918,000
arising from continuing operations (note 8) and HK$149,000
(note 40) arising from discontinued operation.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

& EBRIBRKREE2022F6H30
H I % 84,067,000/ T 2 % B
X BEFRIERERELEERKY
3,918,000 7T (FizE8) RIR B E &
ﬁ?%%%f%Zmaoooi%ﬁ (Bt 5%
40) ©

HEBGENEEOMNGES TS
BER W E46 I E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B IS MR AR MR

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

15. LEASES (Continued)

15. HE @)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) FEEEREEAE)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss from continuing (c0 EFHEENREEZERIARBEFELR
and discontinued operation in relation to leases are as EEBRCRUEKCEEBNSE
follows: m

2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBENHE 5,675 4,067
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  {Ff & E RN ITE S H
assets 69,681 56,908
Rent concessions ik ) - (777)
Lease modification HEEN (126) (76)
Expense relating to short-term leases 7 B B & K & T H3
and other leases with remaining 76 A30H 3k 2 Al & i &Y
lease terms ended on or before HMHEE 2% (M&E7)
30 June (note 7) 1,531 2,108
Total amount recognised in profit or RIB5 R R 4258
loss 76,761 62,230

(d) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note d HEMBRRHEABERGZEENG
41(c) to the consolidated financial statements. WERMTFF41 (0B E -

The Group as a lessor AEEEFEASHEA

(e)

Finance Lease Receivables

During the year, one of the Group’s lease is sublet under

finance leases. The term of finance leases entered into is 4

(e) EHBMEAE
FA - AEE-BHENRIEME
MEDME - AR ZBEREFH

years. HAMR /R4 -
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAIT
Non-current finance lease receivables JERNHIE W R B E 3,904 5,858
Current finance lease receivables BNEfEl mEHE 1,954 1,578
5,858 7,436
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

(e) Finance Lease Receivables (Continued)

Amounts receivable under finance leases

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

15. HE @)
AEBEAEEA(E)
(0 EBUBEEE(HE)
5T B IE T R

Minimum Present value of
lease payments lease payments
REHENR MENRZRE
2023 2022 2023 2022

20234 20224 2023 % 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR FBT TERT FHBT

Not later than one year TR —F 2,134 1,830 1,954 1,578
Later than one year and BR—FETBABME
not later than two years 2,134 2,134 2,028 1,954
Later than two years and HBMEETEBNF
not later than five years 1,905 4,039 1,876 3,904
6,173 8,003 5,858 7,436
Less: unearned finance income 3 : REHELE W A (315) (567) - =
Present value of minimum FEURRERAENRZERE
lease payments receivable 5,858 7,436 5,858 7,436
16. GOODWILL 16. B8
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Goodwill [ 164,768 164,768
Impairment testing of goodwill 77 R BRI B
Details of the impairment testing of goodwill have been set out FERENANFBHNGEEMBRER
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. MizE18 ©
2023F® | BMAEBBKEERRAR
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

17. HtEEEE

Brand Customer
names* relationships Software Total
mEEE EFHERF nH &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET THET
30 June 2023 20236 A30H
Cost at 1 July 2022, net of 202257 A1 BRIBOA -
accumulated amortisation Bk 2T 88y 56,958 2,894 = 59,852
Amortisation provided during FNEHRE 5
the year - (1,828) - (1,828)
Write-off? Tl £ 9,824) - - 9,824)
At 30 June 2023 72023F6H30H 47,134 1,066 - 48,200
At 30 June 2023 72023F6H308 :
Cost [ 47,134 9,472 5,285 61,891
Accumulated amortisation REtiEsy = (8,406) (5,285) (13,691)
Net carrying amount fREFE 47,134 1,066 - 48,200
30 June 2022 2022F6H30H
Cost at 1 July 2021, net of 202167 A1BEILA -
accumulated amortisation Wk 2T 56,958 4,723 = 61,681
Amortisation provided during FNETRE
the year - (1,829) - (1,829)
At 30 June 2022 1202256 H30H 56,958 2,894 - 59,852
At 30 June 2022: K2022F6H30H :
Cost (DR 56,958 9,472 5,285 71,715
Accumulated amortisation Rty = (6,578) (5,285) (11,863)
Net carrying amount FEFE 56,958 2,894 = 59,852
S Brand names are regarded as having indefinite useful lives as they ML BN ASEEERATERFS -

are expected to generate net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely.
As at 30 June 2023, brand names with indefinite useful lives were

tested for impairment (note 18).

With the change in management’s intention of use of certain brand

name, one of the brand name is no longer to be used. Write-off of
brand name of HK$9,824,000 is recognised during the year based on

the management decision.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2023 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND
INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets acquired
through business combinations are allocated to the following
cash-generating units for impairment testing:

o Hong Kong medical services cash-generating unit; and
o Hong Kong dental services cash-generating unit.

The respective carrying amounts of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets allocated to each of the
cash-generating units are as follows:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023

2023%F6H30H
18. BB RERFEFHNEFLEER

=R

BB RBBEY A OB ERF B0
mYAENSREATREELEME
TRE AR -

BEBERBRSELEN K
s BEIMRBREELEM-

PEERRCELBNMNHERERS
HMWETLEENS AREMEDT

Hong Kong medical services Hong Kong dental services Total
EEBRRE ERFNES &t
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20226 2023 20226 20236 20226
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR THET THR TER
Carrying amounts of goodwill E&#&EE 141,666 141,666 23,102 23,102 164,768 164,768
Carrying amounts of EREDNHEN
indefinite-lived intangible ~ EEMKEE
assets 47,134 56,958 - - 47,134 56,958
20238 | MEBEBEBBERIA

241



242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND

INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)
The Group considers the higher of fair value less cost

to disposal and the value in use when determining the
recoverable amounts for impairment test.

The recoverable amounts of the Hong Kong medical services
and Hong Kong dental services cash-generating units have
been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The basis used
to determine the value assigned to the budgeted revenue is
the average revenue achieved in the year immediately before
the budget year, taking into account the expected growth rate.
The growth rates and discount rates applied to the cash flow

projections are as follows:

18. BERERFHNEFLEER

BRI =)

REERER A @ S8 - AE
BeERAABERBLERNRERE
BZEEE -

EEBERGAEBTIMRGRESEE
B mr i@ g BREEREELET
EMETE - TERSREEE I ER
ETFHRNMBEREAER SRR
A AREERERAEBEENESE
HEEBREFEN —FMREBHNFHK
A RS RERERR - EARES
MBRRIER R RITBRANT :

2023 2022
20235 2022%
Hong Kong medical services BEBERYE
Growth rate #RE 4.4%-14.2% 4.4%-20.5%
Discount rate Prif = 15.0% 13.0%
Hong Kong dental services &8 7 R
Growth rate HRE 3.0% 2.2-3.0%
Discount rate iR = 15.0% 13.0%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations
of the cash-generating units for 30 June 2023 and 30 June
2022. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based on its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived

intangible assets:

Crowth rate — The growth rate is determined with reference
to the growth rate for the relevant unit, adjusted for expected
business, market development and economic condition.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit which is
determined with reference to the weighted average cost of
capital of the Group.
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18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND
INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate

to the estimation of cash outflows for key operating costs. Such
estimation is based on historical performance and/or amounts
stipulated in underlying contracts, where applicable.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, for Hong Kong
medical services CGU and Hong Kong dental services CGU,
any reasonably possible change in the above key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amounts of the respective CGUs
to exceed their recoverable amounts.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

18. BERERFHNELEER
=R EAC )

EREEFENEMARKRREEEL
ERANESRLENGAEH - T
Bt DRBBERR R LEBEELQ
(FnE M) FrET B 2 S B1EH o

ARBEERR REEBERBGRE
FE&M&%%%MHE%E%FEEM

bl F R REREE(T A I ] g &
EJJT\Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ%Fi%uE’JEEETEi
BEAUEEEE -

19. REEQATNKRE

2023 2022

2023 % 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TABTT

Share of net assets BRFEEE 8,022 7,978

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 30 June 2023 are

AEEEGE QT MR2023F6HA308 /5

as follows: B
Place of Percentage of effective interest
registration/ EREZEIL
incorporation Ownership Voting Profit
Name and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
R
=1 RERME BEREESD RRE MEIK EEREE
UMP Dental Centre Hong Kong 50 50 50  Provision of dental
JV Limited (“UMP Dental JV”) services
BeBBINaBEERA BB BRI RURTS
((HEBBIHMEGER TJ)
Acton Digital PET-CT Hong Kong 32.5 32.5 32.5  Provision of medical
Centre Limited (“Acton”) imaging and
laboratory services
BB RHUBEZGERLR
R

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of UMP Dental JV because the share of losses of the
joint venture exceeded the Group’s interest in the joint venture
and the Group has no obligation to take up further losses. If
UMP Dental JV subsequently reports profits, the Group resume
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the
profits equals the share of losses not recognised. The amounts
of the Group’s unrecognised share of gains of this joint venture
for the current year and cumulative losses at 30 June 2023
were HK$507,000 (2022: share of losses of HK$139,000) and
HK$980,000 (2022: HK$1,487,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

19.

REEQXTNRKRE @)
REBDRIEEREELESEHET
MEERANERE  REASEGEZEE
ARANEBEEBEEAEERNZEER
AR - AN E I EE EAEE—
FEHE  MEBBIREEARIHZE
BASFE - ASEEe RN EEGEREE
RERMEEEIBHEE®R - HiRIER
REEEFE - REERARFEEEG I
B AR ARKRER Y = & 5 K R2023
F6H308 RETE1E 5 5l B507,0007%8
7T (20224 : fE(L E518139,000/% 7T)
12.980,0007%% 7T (20224 : 1,487,000/%8
JT) ©

TERHAEGNTBEANARBEEEAR
7] HO B 48 1 75 A B

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHExT FHT
Share of the joint venture’s (loss)/profit EhEE AR (B8 FIBK
and total comprehensive (loss)/income FRNEME(EBE)WALE
for the year (636) 8
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBMN A E R A
investments in the joint ventures KERmAE 8,022 7,978
20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REFE QA BINIRE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET AT
Share of net assets B FEE 18,895 25,412
Impairment* B * (2,176) (630)
16,719 24,782
g As at 30 June 2023, the recoverable amount of the Group’s interest @ M2023F6A308 @ AEBR—MEEE A

in an associate was assessed to be less than its carrying amount. An
impairment loss of HK$1,546,000 (2022: nil) (note 7) was recognised
in an associate during the year ended 30 June 2023.
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

20236 H30H
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REFE QA RINIRE (5)
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B ARIMFFABERAAT
Place of registration/ Percentage of
incorporation ownership interest
Name and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
TR rEBREREEES
% REEHE Bk FEEK
2023 2022
2023F  2022%
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical imaging and
laboratory services
AN HRPOBRAA B REREZE R BRERE
Sunny Wealth Consultants Limited Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical services
HEBBARRA B R F iR %
Tiger Era Limited Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical and
consultation services
ERBB A B TR F i R 75 AR 15
UMP Eyecare and Optometry Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical services
Centre Limited (“UMP Eyecare”) and sale of spectacles
A BEREHRE KA AL B RERERBRHERR
BRAR ([BARR)
UMP Medical Centre (Grandiose) Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical services
Limited (“UMP Grandiose”)®
BABBHL(BERE)ERLH BB REBERS
([BAZERE]C
UMP Medical Centre (Tsing Yi On Tao) ~ Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical services
Limited
BABBHL(BRRE) BRAA BB REBERS
Paeon ProCare Day Surgery Hong Kong 25 25 Provision of day surgery services
Centre Limited
ERBEFMRLERAF A e ftt B iE F M7 AR 7S
The GBA Healthcare Group Limited Cayman Islands/ 13.5 13.5 Investment holding
(“GBA Healthcare Group”) Hong Kong
EREESEERAA HERS/EF REER

([REERESE])

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Place of registration/
incorporation

20. REEE RN BINIRE (8
BMANTMEMERMT :

Percentage of
ownership interest

Name and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
w1, AL L FREfEREERS
% REXH BAl TEEH
2023 2022
2023 2022%
BEBBEEMR(ER)ERAR" PRC 13.5 13.5  Provision of medical services
h REBERRE
BEBABRBEHARRARARL PRC 13.5 13.5  Provision of healthcare
consultation services
HE REABRREEARE
BEHABBEREEFTLOBERAAFS  PRC 13.5 13.5  Provision of healthcare training
services
H RAERRRIEN RS
e (R BEBAERAR PRC 13.5 13.5  Provision of healthcare training
and consultation services
HE RRBt B BRI IR B R o 3 AR 7
RINBEE TR BERA A PRC 20 20 Provision of medical services
h REBERRE
Omni Care Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong 25 25 Provision of medical services
Bt REBERRE
S The associate is a limited liability company under PRC law and S ZHE N AT BEAE THEREELA

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprise under PRC law.

The Company is a limited liability company under PRC law.

The Company is under the process of deregistration as at 30 June @

2023.

The Company is under the process of liquidation as at 30 June 2023.
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20.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of associates, Paeon ProCare Day Surgery Centre
Limited, UMP Eyecare and UMP Grandiose (2022: UMP
Eyecare and UMP Grandiose), because the share of losses
of these associates exceeded the Group’s interests in these
associates and the Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amount of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses
of these associates for the current year and cumulatively were
HK$1,206,000 (2022: HK$22,000) and HK$4,987,000 (2022:
HK$3,781,000) respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

20. B’%Hﬁ‘%/&ﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁ %)

m'ﬂ

%‘%IE%&E@M%F&{EH&%%@TP

BEHEFMHOLERAR  BARME
BraBHUE (2022F  BMERB KBS
BB NEE AREELEFBHER

ANEBEEEBEASERHEHE A
AR MRS - T AR BN 4 B (TR —
FEE c REERAFE R RFTAER
MELMZSHE L AAEBESED A
1,206,000 7T (20224 : 22,0007 7T)
4,987,000/ 7t (20224 : 3,781,000
BIL) e

TRHEABATBEANANEEBE A
BIRERMIEE R -

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET

Share of the associates’ loss and total F R R E AR EE
comprehensive loss for the year MEHEREARE (3,644) (1,638)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s 7N £2 B A B & 2 5] £y

investments in the associates & EEREE 16,719 24,782

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

1. RBERATTENSHEE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Financial assets at amortised cost BREBHEKNAGTENEREE 6,240 25,105
Impairment B (6,240) (6,240)
- 18,865

Analysed into: DHTHE -

Non-current portion JEENERER - -
Current portion BVER &K 7 - 18,865
= 18,865
As at 30 June 2023, the balance after the provision of 1K2023F6H308 @ FHIRREREFEED

impairment is nil (2022: HK$18,865,000).

As at 30 June 2022, the Group's financial assets at amortised
cost represented listed debt investments with fixed maturity
dates between 2022 and 2023 and fixed interest rates ranging
from 4.25% to 6.875% per annum.

EER AT (20224 118,865,000/ 7)) ©

202256 A308 © 7N & B8 A A
TEMeRMEEREAGEEHSHANT
2022F F2023F M ETERKIRE &
BEFRNF4.25%%6.875% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

22. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BRARBEFARMBZEEA
HRE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT THET
Investments at fair value through other A ABETAHEMEZE
comprehensive income WARKRE
Unlisted equity investments, FELTRAKE -
at fair value* ERnEEFE 5,167 3,885
Listed equity investment, EHRAKE -
at fair value* AR BETE 31,677 27,632
36,844 31,517
S The above investments were designated at fair value through other S NERECEERBAABEFT AL

comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature.

During the year, the Group received dividends in the
approximate amounts of HK$30,000 (2022: HK$90,000) and
HK$5,002,000 (2022: HK$2,287,000) from an unlisted equity
investment and a listed equity investment, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023

2023%F6H30H
INVENTORIES 23. &
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Pharmaceutical supplies EE5Y 12,372 8,834
TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. EZ EWRFIE
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FiE T
Trade receivables 2 S EW A 121,095 81,414

The Group’s trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to two months for certain customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a designated policy to monitor and minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are trade receivables
due from related companies of HK$1,055,000 (2022:
HK$812,000), which have the same credit period as other
Contract Customers. Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(“CTFE”) is a major beneficial shareholder of these related
companies in which Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive
director of the Company, is the Chief Executive Officer of
CTFE.

AEBEEGNEPZEZIRREEN
EEARET - EEH—RA/—EA
HETEPALRREMEA - BREH
EFORARSEREE - ARE AKX
R EREBUGRIRERBAISES - 1R
BHEERRE  AERY&EERLRE
RE - BHESROAERAEEETHE
8o NREBELENZEE 5 RBFIAR
BRAEENEARKEMEERTIF
R o BHRUKRETE S ©

AEENE S RN BRI BEE A
AR E B EUERIAT,055,0007 7T (2022
812,000 70) * ZEREMNEEH
HEMENEFIER - ARBLEEBR
ANAN(TARERE] EZE@EH AT
FEESRE MARRARITESER
EAERRARBLEENTHREH -

2023F5 | F

>
MW

5
i

SEEEBRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

24. EZEWFIE &)

RBEHRNE ZHRUGRIRIREZ B
MERE DTN T

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within 1 month & A A 75,143 54,110
1 to 2 months 1221@ A 20,972 11,546
2 to 3 months 2E31E A 12,308 10,456
Over 3 months 31E A Mk 12,672 5,302
121,095 81,414

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than two years and are not subject to enforcement activity. As
at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed that the loss
allowance under the application of HKFRS 9 was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25. BARIE - HttERRERH

OTHER ASSETS ftb & =
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
20235 20224
6A30H 6H30H
Notes HK$000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT THT
Prepayments TE 5K I8 7,267 5,624
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEEWME BELERSB
property, plant and equipment HA I HHRES 5,968 3,968
Deposits REE (a) 33,345 29,585
Other receivables L& (a) 10,864 17,252
57,444 56,429
Less: Portion classified as B D HERIIERBEE
non-current assets Eop=ion) (24,630) (27,421)
Current portion BN ER 32,814 29,008
Notes: B &E
(@)  The above balances relate to deposits and other receivables for (@)  L3I# &R N E2023F R2022F6 A
which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts 30R M ME MR R B 2R
as at 30 June 2023 and 2022. The loss allowance was assessed to be Bo REMBEBWKIE BEBELTE
minimal. BEIK -
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. RAARBEFABENESHE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Listed equity investments, at fair value EmlEAEE
(BARBEFE) 1,654 1,806
Unlisted but quoted investment funds, FLTEERENKREES
at fair value (BAREEFE) 27,793 26,723
29,447 28,529
The above investments were classified as financial assets at fair L ESBREARBETAERZD
value through profit or loss. EWMEE -
202355k | BMABBKEEERR 251
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mE

B IS MR AR MR

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

27.

BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

27 ;EWM;\ &Aﬁl-\—.lﬂljnnﬁ?

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAT

Due from associates JE WU Bt 8 8 B R 10,163 29,771
Impairment VERIE] (6,772) (6,772)
3,391 22,999

Due to associates JFE {~TBS 2 2 B 3k I8 1,131 976
Due from joint ventures FEWE B R RIRIA 50 1,119

The balances with associates and joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Except for the amounts
due from associates which are individually impaired, the
expected credit losses were assessed to be minimal.

The above provision for impairment of amounts due from
associates is provision for individually impaired amounts of
HK$6,772,000 (2022: HK$6,772,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$6,798,000 (2022: HK$7,027,000), of
which the related debtors were in financial difficulties and
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

28. EERAEE D T M AL ER

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHET

Due from related companies JE W2 B8 Bk A R 5RIA 1,335 1,446
Due to related companies JE 1<t A Sk & B R IE 2,122 2,254

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies,

disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong Kong Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, are as follows:

BATFERE BB BT
NGERBEBERR (KREE
FHEEH) ANEIBEBEQT :

Maximum Maximum
amount amount
At outstanding At outstanding At
30 June during 30 June during 1 July
Name 2 2023 the year 2022 the year 2021
m2023%F  FRER  N002F FARS  R021F
6A308 REEHE 6A308 REEFE 7R1R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR ThR TET TET TET
Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise BMNmZER
Management Company Limited ~ EEAR QA
(“GZ Ruian’)* (THRMEZ))* - - : 7 6
Healthcare Assets Management ~ BEEEEEAR A
Limited (“HAML”) and ([BEEEEER
its subsidiaries* AW BAR)! 1,080 1,164 1,171 1,186 1,214
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RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023

2023%F6A30H
28. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 28. BN A B MV RR (8)

(Continued)

& GZ Ruian is controlled directly by Dr. Sun Man Kin, an executive & BMNHEXARATRITERRCEREE
director of the Company. The Company was deregistered during the BEEZES - 22BN FE BRI -
year.

9 HAML and its subsidiaries are jointly controlled by a subsidiary of J BREEEERAMBARAREAKRER

CTFE. Mr. Patrick Tsang, an executive director of the Company, is
the Chief Executive Officer of CTFE.

EW—FHMERRLRES - AR A
TEECREAERBABEENTHR
-

The amounts due from related companies are unsecured, EW BB AR REREERR 2R KA
interest-free and repayable on demand. EERER -
29. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND DEPOSITS 29. B  RWITEBRRER
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Time deposits TE HAfF 3K
— Maturing within 3 months —3 & A A2 41,484 -
— Maturing after more than —HE3ME A &
3 months ZI| 5 52,794 -
Cash at banks and on hand RITERRFREAS 194,852 235,727
Pledged deposits ERER 1,365 2,393
Cash, bank balances and deposits RE  RITEBNRTER 290,495 238,120
Less: Time deposits-maturing after more 3 : & Hi 77 ;—iR @3 1@ B
than 3 months 1& 2| # (52,794) -
Less: Pledged deposits (note) A B AR TE R (BT RE) (1,365) (2,393)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REERTRERNEAT R
consolidated statement of cashflows ReEEY 236,336 235,727

Note: As at 30 June 2023, the Group has pledged deposits with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,365,000 (2022: HK$2,393,000)
in connection with surety bonds issued by a bank in favour of
independent third parties for potential damages of dental equipment
and potential disruption of medical services.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

MEE M2023F6A308 - A& EE K IR

48 A $£1,365,000/ 7T (20224 :
2,393,000/ 7C) KI1F R+ To 0 B — &
BITRBETRREREREEBRER
KTEMMEBBELE=FBLHNED
1%EAL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND DEPOSITS

(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$26,025,000 (2022: HK$9,787,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

30. TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

29. R - B|ITERRER @

REmEHR AEBEUARE (TA
RE]FENReRRITER A
26,025,000/ 7t (20224 : 9,787,000
BIL) c AREINATERERSEME
B AT RBREAREFBEIINES
EROIA R A5 TE - EE R EEER
E o ASREEESREREETINESR
BRRITHARBELBKEMEY -

BAERBRERG B RITERFED
STEF KB - RS BT
% m—BEABATE  RTAEME
MEE RS EE - RE T A
R BERF B o 47T R0 R BV T
RSB R T T H3 88 4930 83 10 38
77

30. EZ ERRE
MRS IR H B 5 M ZBIRHE A 1

MRRER DT T

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

Within 1 month R EDER 36,925 27,604
1 to 3 months 12318 A 26,157 11,089
Over 3 months 318 A LA £ 979 364
64,061 39,057

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on terms ranging from 30 to 90 days.

BESREMNRIEARE R —RN30E90K
NEEE o

N T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

202356 H30H
31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. Attt E N RIBAR BT E A
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
2023F 20224
6H30H 6H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Contract liabilities SREE (a) 20,218 19,081
Other payables H fth & £ 518 (b) 34,087 21,366
Accruals FEsTE A (b) 13,646 15,017
Deposits received BEWRE S 2,177 3,079
Due to non-controlling shareholders of JEfTHIE AR FEIERBE (o)
subsidiaries RIE 1,813 2,293
71,941 60,836
Notes: B &
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@ AHEBENFBOT :
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
20235 20224
6H30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Advances received from customers REFWENBR
Provision of corporate healthcare solution ME A% PR R
services to Contract Customers IR fRR T R RT 14,384 13,114
Provision of clinical healthcare services T2 (iR PR B8 R AR 2 IR 75 5,834 5,967
20,218 19,081
(b)  Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are by HtENFIAREFERATGE  B—
normally repayable on demand. RIREREE -
() The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are (0 ENKBQEIZERRRSN SR A EE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BT ERREREER -
32. LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING 32. REMBLARAFERRRERNE
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES N
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
6H30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Loans from non-controlling shareholders KB FEERRAR R B & 48,800 -
The loans from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are KEWBARFEZERBRRNERREL
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B THBERRERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

20235 6H30H
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. IEEBIIH
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FANELERBEEERBBRZDHUT :
year are as follows:
Gross deferred tax assets BEEBEEERRE
Depreciation
in excess
of related Future
depreciation benefit of
allowance tax losses Total
AR
wEREBN HEER
mE ZRREHE &ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FET
At 30 June 2021 and at 1K2021F6H30H &
1 July 2021 2021567 H1H 1,417 = 1,417
Deferred tax credited to the FARLGFA B KR AR
consolidated statement of EFERLIE (FMYsE11)
profit or loss during the
year (note 11) 618 3,075 3,693
At 30 June 2022 and at 7202256 HA30H &
1 July 2022 #202247 818 2,035 3,075 5,110
Deferred tax (charged)/ FARGZAB=EE (HR),FTA
credited to the BEIERL I (FHEE11)
consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the
year (note 11) (195) 4,253 4,058
At 30 June 2023 12023%F6H30H 1,840 7,328 9,168
202368 | BABBEREERAR 257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Gross deferred tax liabilities

33. IEEFIE (@)

Depreciation

EEHREBEEERE
Fair value
adjustments

allowance

in excess of

arising from

related business
depreciation  combinations Total
AR EKE6t
TEN BEEW
TERE QLAEERAE ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T T
At 30 June 2021 and 720216 308 &
at 1 July 2021 R2021F7A1H 1,695 10,543 12,238
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FARGEEBEKRIR
to the consolidated statement S (GEN) YR B 5 1B
of profit or loss during the year (fFaE11)
(note 11) 1,703 (635) 1,068
At 30 June 2022 and 7202256 H30H &
at 1 July 2022 120227 A 1H 3,398 9,908 13,306
Deferred tax credited to the FRRGEBTZERITA
consolidated statement of profit A& i £ 18
or loss during the year (note 11)  (Fff#£11) (2,074) (2,049) (4,123)
At 30 June 2023 7202346 H30H 1,324 7,859 9,183

At 30 June 2023, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$54,184,000 (2022:
HK$37,080,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$14,055,000 (2022:
HK$25,160,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
Withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$19,633,000 at 30 June 2023 (2022:
HK$9,336,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

33. IEAERIE (1)

BIEP B ZEMRERE - KRR B A
MR ECERIEREESIR
Z R BRI 0%EUTEINR o IL# E B
200841 818 #4330 #E A 72007
F12A3181%& 2 8F) o fr Bl Ayt B2 5
BB EFERER R 2 BT LRI &
- AIPTREATEHNRE - ASEEA
MTEMHEA10% - At - AEEEA
7 R B A M B 2 B B BB A B BE20084F 1
AIBREEZRBNIKREMEBNTE
M-

M2023F6H308 * WEFEEAEER
FR B A b X 37 A BT B A A O AR BE L 2 R
(R TENTL &) M FE - /Y T8 0 7% 1
RIEEFTE - BEERE  ZEMBAF
RA] B RE T RATge DIk B R F o
M2023F6H308 © IR E R B A
MITB AR BN ARRELEHEAE
WEREERE 4 /4819,633,000/8 T
(20224 : 9,336,000/ 7T) °

AR AR R R A IR B R TS R

1=
= °

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

2023%F6A30H
34. PROVISION 34. BfE
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
At the beginning of year REF 9,788 2,627
Additions during the year F N 2,557 7,475
Amount utilised during the year FAFBAEHE (168) (78)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEREE (258) (144)
Exchange realignment bE 55 58 B (17) (92)
11,902 9,788
less: Portion classified as non-current W DERERBAEBZ D

liabilities (6,309) (7,441)
Current Portion ki) 5,593 2,347
Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements BEAEBEMTLMNEBEERZS
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return fERR - TR AR R A B FE o B SR IR AR LR
certain of its leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in (REBREAEME) ~AEEAKESE
the respective tenancy agreements at the expiration or sooner THEWXREZEBEEBZETHN
determination of the corresponding lease terms as appropriate. REE - EREABEBEBHERESZTZ2ER
The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated based on BR/SEMAFERMELHNE TR
certain assumptions and estimates made by the directors with R AEETMIEA o BRER RihEr e T A

reference to quoted prices and/or other available information. Bl EREE B -

The assumptions and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023

20236 H30H
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B&
Shares &)
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHT
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000%
(2022: 5,000,000,000) (20224 : 5,000,000,000/%)
ordinary shares of BREE0.001% T
HK$0.001 (20224 : 0.001%87T)
(2022: HK$0.001) each Y & 58 Ak 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE
810,955,244 810,955,244 8%
(2022: 792,666,555) (20224F : 792,666,5550%)
ordinary shares of BREE0.001E T
HK$0.001 (2022% : 0.001/% L)
(2022: HK$0.001) each EOR=R 811 793
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B IS MR AR MR

30 June 2023

20234

6H30H

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share
capital during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 are as

35. BRA (@)
B4 (E)

RABREE2023F X2022F6A30H
IEFEZEERCEITRAESHMT :

follows:
Nominal
Number value of
of ordinary ordinary
shares shares
=giiliie 4] T EREE
Notes HK$’000
B = TET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 July 2021, at 30 June 2022 M2021F7 /418 »
at 1 July 2022 and 7202266 H30H -
at 30 June 2023 R202267R18 &
202356 H30H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BETMER
At 1 July 2021 M20215F7A1H 775,350,089 775
Shares issued in lieu of cash BITRM ARE (a)
dividend Rl E 17,316,466 18
At 30 June 2022 and R2022F 6308 &
at 1 July 2022 7K2022F7A18 792,666,555 793
Shares issued in lieu of cash BITRMOARE (b)
dividend REBRE 18,288,689 18
At 30 June 2023 1202366 H30H 810,955,244 811
(@  On 26 November 2021, the Company’s shareholders approved at the (@)  F2021F11 8268 - ARARFERRE
annual general meeting a final dividend of HK2.80 cents per ordinary BFEANS EHERESE202156H30H
share payable in cash with a scrip dividend alternative (“the Scrip IFFE R PR BFI L @AR2.80/8 1l -
Dividend Scheme”) for the year ended 30 June 2021 (the “2021 Final B AR B AIR & AT I P A SARR R B
Dividend”). During the year ended 30 June 2022, 17,316,466 new BER (AR ESTE) (12021F K H
shares were issued by the Company at a deemed price of HK$0.78 B&21) o B £202256A308 IEF E -
per ordinary share, credited as fully paid, to shareholders of the AR ARG IRE BAR0.7878 TR R (E(E
Company who had elected to receive scrip shares in lieu of cash to REEREDMARSRHARBRE AR
settle the 2021 Final Dividend of HK$13,506,802. The remaining DRI R B 1T17,316,4660% A BR 51| {E 44
balance of the 2021 Final Dividend of HK$8,203,000 was satisfied B2 & LA 113,506,802/ 7T &Y
by cash. Further details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme are set out in 2021 REARR B © 2021 R AR B 6 £4
the Company’s circular dated 24 December 2021. 18,203,000/ 7T E & AR & T o LARR
REFHEME—FFHBHN A HR2021
F12H24H MR R ALEEK
(b)  On 25 November 2022, the Company’s shareholders approved at the (b)  F2022F11 8258 * ARAARERRE

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

annual general meeting a final dividend of HK3.00 cents per ordinary
share payable in cash with a scrip dividend alternative (the “Scrip
Dividend Scheme 2022”) for the year ended 30 June 2022 (the “2022
Final Dividend”). During the year ended 30 June 2023, 18,288,689
new shares were issued by the Company at a deemed price of $0.78
per ordinary share, credited as fully paid, to shareholders of the
Company who had elected to receive scrip shares in lieu of cash to
settle the 2022 Final Dividend of HK$14,265,000. The remaining
balance of the 2022 Final Dividend of HK$9,515,000 was satisfied
by cash. Further details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme 2022 are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 23 December 2022.
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2R ([LARRK E5T812022 1) ([20224F
REI B ) - B E2023F6H308 IEF
B AR EREIRE@AR0.787 AR IE
BRAZERDKEROUREESH
ANA AR R E1718,288,6898% A BR Il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

Share option schemes

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme except that (i) no further options
could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the share
options are different as further detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, consultants of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was approved and adopted on 18 August 2015. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 27 November 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Schemes is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Schemes within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

36. BREIRIRER

fBIRRERT &
ARBEEH XA E /N ERE S
(TERARBEAERESS]) MER
R & ([FEREst &8 ) (e [5t8]) -
B SR AEEEEKDAMERN
BEBR2EERERBIEH - EAQ
B % & AR RO AT 8 £ 22 ok S R A
ST EMERFAEU - A TERIN - (VAR F
REEXAHEENBRETERLE
B ¢ R (i BRI TTEE RITES
BRZERN T XL -

EIGERZHEEREARRES (B
BREIIENTES) AEBHAME
B AEEMER mAEEREER
SRS EER AEERF - AQF
0 N N/N [ =N = R R E =
BEARER o BN AR E R BT SR
20158 A 18 B HEH#E ) R F 40 - B IR 4
T2 20155118278 £ BRIEA
HhpEUES(ER] - BRIEZ B
B WI0E o

B AT A IR B RTT B IR &
2 8B HERETERARR AR
B2 BHITRMD10% ° RIZR BB A R E
12 A HE ARG SR ERSEE
BTBROESHE RRAQRBERE
fa] B PR B B 1T AR 19 1% © fEfal B bt R
BNE—IRUBEREAERRAS L
PR R AL -

MARBESE  THAHIEZMRK
EAREBHEARDNBREARATLE
BEILIFNITESE - IS AAR
A ERRIBYIFATE T IR
FBRBARDEMERE(BREARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$1.2228 and the share options are
exercisable after a vesting period of one to two years in the

following manner:

Vesting period of
the relevant percentage of the options

BREREADLNEEDS

36. B ESTEIRRRESE @)

MRS 8 (8)
EPNNEEI N (AN
BITEE A1.2228 870 - AR A —
EMFEBHEZRATHARTE

Maximum
percentage of
options
exercisable
AT 158 B AR &Y

RE2ADH

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2016

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2017

201548 HA18H 220168 A17H 10%

201558 H18B £201758H17H 90%

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of
the share options; and (iii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 36. EREFE R BRER &)

(Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued) BRESE (8
The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option FA - BRRMEESHBRESTSET
Scheme were outstanding during the year: W ARTTEERBBREN T
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hoE 19 fBRE pillk: B B
TREE A 1T1EE 2B
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET T4 BERET T
At the beginning of year NS 1.2228 23,822 1.2228 27,008
Exercised during the year FATRE = = = =
Lapsed during the year FRERK 1.2228 (23,822) 1.2228 (3,186)
At the end of year RER - - 1.2228 23,822
No share options were exercised during the years ended 30 HZE2023F 20226 A30H IEFER
June 2023 and 2022. I B AR A AT A
The following share options under the Post-IPO Share Option FA - BRAREERBRESSIET
Scheme were outstanding during the year: mARTTER BT ¢
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hoE g BRE pillk: B BB P
TREE BE 1TE(E 2R
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET Tt SBEET T
At the beginning of year REH] 1.38 26,310 1.28 36,286
Exercised during the year FRITE - - - -
Forfeited during the year F AR K 0.77 (342) 0.77 (7,476)
Lapsed during the year FREM 0.77 (228) 1.76 (2,500)
At the end of year RE R 1.40 25,740 1.38 26,310
No share options were exercised during the years ended 30 HE2023F 202268308 IEFER
June 2023 and 2022. A 42 B AR AE ME AT o

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

36. B ESTEIRRRESE @)

Share option schemes (Continued) BRESE (8
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options MR ERRE BB T RATTERBRERN
outstanding under the Schemes as at the end of the reporting TEERITERAWRT :
period are as follows:
2023 20234
Number of Exercise
options price*  Exercise period
BAESE TEE* 1TEH
HK$
000 per share
T15 BRETT
11,600 2.06 30 June 2019 to 5 November 2023 20196 H30H £2023F11A5H
250 1.56 4 May 2020 to 3 May 2025 202055 H4H £202555H3 H
500 1.56 4 May 2021 to 3 May 2025 2021455 H4H £202555H3 H
750 1.56 4 May 2022 to 3 May 2025 202245 H4H E202555H3H
5,056 0.772 26 May 2022 to 25 May 2029 20225H26H %2029 5H25H
3,792 0.772 26 May 2023 to 25 May 2029 202345 H26H F2029%5H25H
3,792 0.772 26 May 2024 to 25 May 2029 202445 H26H F202945 H25H°
25,740
2022 20224
Number of Exercise
options price*  Exercise period
B ESE 7B 1768
HK$
000 per share
T BRETT
1,358 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 2016485188 £20224 115268
22,464 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 201758 A18H £2022%F11 826 H
11,600 2.06 30 June 2019 to 5 November 2023 201956 H30H £20235F11 A5H
250 1.56 4 May 2020 to 3 May 2025 202055 H4H £202555H3 H
500 1.56 4 May 2021 to 3 May 2025 202145 H4H £202555H3 H
750 1.56 4 May 2022 to 3 May 2025 202245 H4H E20255%5H3H
5,284 0.772 26 May 2022 to 25 May 2029 202245 H26H £202945H25H
3,963 0.772 26 May 2023 to 25 May 2029 2023%F5H26H %2029 5H25H
3,963 0.772 26 May 2024 to 25 May 2029 2024 5H26H %2029 5H25H
50,132
S The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in S AR R T (E(E 7 B AR R AT AR B T3

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 30 June 2021 (ranged from HK$0.33 to HK$0.37 per
each share option) was amounted to HK$7,232,000. No share
options were granted during the years ended 30 June 2023
and 30 June 2022. During the years, the Group recognised
a share-based payment expense of HK$1,039,000 (2022:
HK$4,975,000) and reversal of Nil (2022: HK$6,222,000) of
share based payment due to the lapse of share option in the
share option scheme.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 30 June 2021 was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The

following table lists the inputs to the model used:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

36. B ESTEIRARESE @

MR REET 8 ()

HZE2021F6 308 L FEARTHE
RIER QR EEA7,232,000% T (&
DEREN T0338ILE0.378T) °
E =2023F6A308 K2022F6 A308
FEFERTERLERE AEER
FEANBERAUROABERNONRAX
1,039,000 7T (20224 : 4,975,000/
7T) LA K B B AR AR T I AP A B AR 2R K
i # B = 7 7T (20224 : 6,222,000
TC) Z AR RETEE K e

REZE2021F6A308 IE FEKH AR
DEENERENA R BENE LB
NZEAEAGE - ERe RERER
OB R EGMS - TRINEAMARR
SOETPNES &

2021

20214

Dividend yield (%) % B 2 (%) 1.46
Expected volatility (%) J’E\Hﬂ B I (%) 53.99
Risk-free interest rate (%) % 1 2 (%) 0.93
Expected life of options (year) ﬁ'ﬁﬁx%fﬁ HIE 8 (5F) 8
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IN#E T RRE (BB L) 0.772

&
op
Rl

B

5
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual

outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into

the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
25,740,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 25,740,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$26,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$35,968,000 (before issue

expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 25,740,000 share options
outstanding under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 3% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

36. B ESTEIRRRESE @)

BRESE (8
BRENTARFRY T —F RRAEE
HEETEEN - BHRERRERBE
B8 A] R BROR R B (U5 A] BE R 0 (R R
BERER) -

MER AL BEFEMACELBERE
R EL ARG -

RBEEBHR A2 RETEAE
25,740,00017 & AR 17 {50 B AR o IR IR AR
NAEl BRI EARNERE  BEITERRITE
B R M 5 38 B3R 1T AN B125,740,000%
REHNE AR R IE INAR AN 4926,0007% 7T &
B% 15 % (B 493 5,968,000 7T ($1BR 31T
FZAT) °

Rt FHRAMBRRELERH - AR
AR B ET 8175 25,740,00017 AR 17 L FE
Pt - HERARRNZAND EHTR
7 #I3% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Warrants

On 24 October 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Zheng He Health
and Medical Resources Limited (“Zheng He”), whereby
the Company agreed to issue the unlisted warrants for the
subscription of 110,411,000 shares of the Company to Zheng
He (or any company or trust under the control of Mr. Law Siu
Wah, Eddie nominated by Zheng He) subject to certain vesting
conditions.

On the date of grant, the fair values of warrants to be issued
for each milestone were HK$22,362,000, HK$25,226,000 and
HK$25,226,000, respectively.

There were 36,803,667 warrants with a grant date fair value
of HK$22,362,000 issued upon the fulfilment of the vesting
conditions which have then expired on 5 June 2022. As a
result, an amount of HK$22,362,000 had been transferred from
share-based payment reserve to retained profits during the year
ended 30 June 2022.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Company had nil warrants
outstanding.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

36. B ESTEIRARESE @

M2018F10A248 * &N Q 7] BZheng
He Health and Medical Resources
Limited ([#8F0]) &7 32 — I8 R B8 173 &
(IREHBZ] Bl ARFREMR
BN (= B EP RN IR & 2 78 EE EE ST AR 1R
B A RS 5E) 1T IE £ R AR
B UEREETHEBRGETREARR
7]110,411,00088 (& {5 °

RELBEH BRI ERBRETHR
RAEZEN AR EBED R AE22,362,000
BT 25,226,000 7T K25,226,000/8
ﬁ o

RIFHBEAAEEB22,362,000% 7T
#136,803,667 10 7 57 B {5 i K 18 35 1T
2 RIHEE S M R2022F6 A58 &
e Btk v 22,362,000 T 2 sRIAEE &
REZE2022F6 8308 IEFER ARG
RERONRBESBREZEFHE -

20234 K%2022F6 A308 © AR Al
M R ITE R R AR HERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 June 2016, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
the contributions by certain eligible participants and providing
them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for the growth and further development of the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the
Company’s directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group, and employed experts of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 30 June

2016, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited to 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company at any time. The
maximum number of shares which may be awarded to each
eligible participant in the Share Award Scheme is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share Award
Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected and the number
of shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is
determined by the board of directors. The shares to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by a trustee
(the “Trustee”) from the open market out of cash contributed
by the Group and be held on trust for the Selected Participant
until such shares are vested with the Selected Participant in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect
of any shares held on trust for the Group or the Selected
Participant.

During the year, the Group purchased 3,156,000 (2022:
200,000) of its own shares through the Trustee from the open
market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$2,537,000 (2022: HK$157,000) and has
been deducted from equity. As at 30 June 2023, such shares
were classified as treasury shares of the Company as they were

not yet vested.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

During the year, 2,000,000 (2022: nil) share awards have been
granted under the Share Award Scheme and 382,846 (2022:
348,406) shares of the Company were scrip dividends with
respect to shares of the Company held under the Share Award
Scheme.

The movements in the Company’s shares held under the Share
Award Scheme during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022

are as follows:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

37. R R B E ()
FR - -BERMDEHE R D
2,000,000% (20224 : &) % 15 82 Eh M
382,846/% (20224 : 348,4060%) AR
AR ARNEEFEIETEBZAR
AR W AE R B D ©

AR EI D 2B AT 2118 T8 M RR D 7
HE2023F M2022F6A30B ILEE 2
ZEmT

Shares held

under the

Number of Share Award

ordinary shares Scheme

PR 17 5% B =t 21

ZEREA BETHEENRG

HK$’000

FHET

At 30 June 2021 1R2021%F6H830H 10,005,611 14,693
Purchases of shares for the share award  FLA& {7 2251 2188 B 1D

scheme 200,000 157

Allotment of scrip shares fid 24K B A% 19 348,406 272
Issuance of share awards immediately 1T ENRE 55 B 1Y AR 1 22

vested (600,000) (558)

At 1 July 2022 7202247 A18 9,954,017 14,564
Purchases of shares for the share award  FLAX {7 82BN 51 £ 88 B B 1p

scheme 3,156,000 2,537

Allotment of scrip shares Ao % R B 382,846 299
Issuance of share awards immediately 1T ENRT 55 B M AR 17 22 B

vested (2,000,000) (1,580)

At 30 June 2023 7202356 H30H 11,492,863 15,820

As at 30 June 2023, nil (2022: nil) awarded shares are
outstanding and these awarded shares were included in
11,492,863 (2022: 9,954,017) shares of the Company held
under the Share Award Scheme.

M2023F6A30H & W £ (20224 :
\/)RBRNDABEARITE  ZERER
NEBRERGEBHAZETELZD
11,492,863/% (20224 : 9,954,017/%)
ZAN/NET Sl i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

202356 A30H
37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 37. R RBEEE (@)
Details of the awarded shares outstanding as at 30 June 2023 20234 K%20226F6H308 BTSN
and 2022 were set out as follows: BB ARG FIFNAT -
30 June 2023 2023F6H30H
Number of awarded shares
RBROME
Share price
as at As at Granted Vested  Forfeited As at
the date Grant 1 July during during during 30 June
Date of grant of grant price 2022  theyear  theyear the year 2023 Vesting period
REEAH #2022%F 20235
REBH WROER RHER 7A1IE FaRd FAEE FARK  6A308 BEH
HK$ HK$
BT BT
30 June 2023 0.79 - - 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - - Granted and
immediately
vested on 30 June
2023
202356 A30H B &R RR2023F
6A30REEEB
- 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of AEBEBREE2023F6A308 IEF
HK$1,580,000 (2022: nil) during the year ended 30 June 2023. EREIURDEERONZAX
1,580,000/ 7T (20224 : &) -
30 June 2022 202256 HA30H
Number of awarded shares
RBROME
Share price
as at As at Granted Vested  Forfeited As at
the date Grant 1 July during during during 30 June
Date of grant of grant price 2021 the year ~ the year  the year 2022 Vesting period
RELEAH #2021 20225
REBH WROESR RHER 7R1IR FaRE FABEE FARK  6A30R BEH
HK$ HK$
BT BT
30 June 2022 - - - - - - - NA
202246 A30H TEH
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38. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 160 to
161 of the consolidated financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents (i) the fair value of
the shares of the then ultimate holding company that were
used to satisfy the consideration of the Group’s acquisition of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries and additional interests
in certain subsidiaries in 2014; (ii) the waiver of amounts
due to the then ultimate holding company and a major
beneficial shareholder of the Company for the acquisition of
a subsidiary; and (iii) the waiver of other payable by a former

non-controlling shareholder.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of
share options and share awards granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related share options or share
awards are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits or to
profit or loss should the related share options or share awards
expire or be forfeited, respectively.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are included
in note 36 and share award scheme are included in note 37 to

the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve represents (i) the transfer of the profit
generated from subsidiaries incorporated in Macau from
retained profits to the legal reserve in accordance with article
377 of the Macao Commercial Code until the legal reserve
balance reaches half of the capital of the relevant subsidiaries;
and (ii) pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in
Mainland China, a portion of the profit of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China has been transferred to legal
reserve which is restricted to use. The legal reserve is not
distributable.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

38. ##

AEERAFERBEFENRFESR
REZSH2IINGE W HRERE160E
TO1EMGEABREK -

HERE

& B ()E R & SR A AR 2014
FRANENAEBRES THEBARRK
BERETHBAR 2EIIMER 2 RER
IR )R S BE ¢ (i) EA 52 LUk B — R B
BARENERREERAG R —&BXR
RAEZEHREORIA  Rkiii)—H&
AT FE 158 AR % 51 A So L JIE < S0 IE o

LR BERON KRB

U RERONRFERERERERLE
R R T 150 O B s A K i fn BB 2 1 7o (B
1B - WA M mERM 2.4 ARG &
EMONRRX B2 Gt BRRTBE—F
it - 2B RNE EERES AR =
BETERERERNEERIN AR
B P e X A ) 22 B 38 HA S BUR UL s 0
BEREEFMENER -

ARARZBRETE ZFBEHREE M
MR M EE36Mm A D 2B T8l 2 1B S
RERE MR R M &E37 -

ETE 8

VA TE {1 18 () A% 72 R P RE M A 32 B9 Y 8
DA R BB CRPIREE ) 377 1%
HEFNBERETHE  ERAERM
BEREZSENBRARRAN —+R
I RGDVRIFF B A BEERE
B ARBRPEAROKEARD A&
MOFNBERER R X R G HXE &
o RERBBIADIK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

2023%F6A30H
39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 39. AR ERFERERNFEE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B & 2 Al
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material BEEERFERERNDAEENE QT
non-controlling interests are set out below: AHBESINT
2023 2022
2023 20226
Percentage of equity interest held by JEYERR R s i A MR AE
non-controlling interests: ERg:a
SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”) ENBEEERLERAF
(&M 40% 40%
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Profit for the year allocated to DB T IFIERERHNFENR
non-controlling interests: M
SkinCentral =10 1,975 1,436
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests: 2 1 3E#E I m HIAR B ¢
SkinCentral Z - 4,000
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R %R B # 3F 12 I 25 Y
interests at the reporting date: REtEER
SkinCentral =M 17,076 15,101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiary, modified for fair value

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

39. EEERFERESNIEEE
B B 2 B ()

TRFHALEHB AR B E R
2 YHRBRBEENAABEHRE
HEFT - I BESBERREBEFRT

adjustments on acquisition. The amounts disclosed are before

any inter-company eliminations: I 8H -

SkinCentral

=

2023 20235 HK$’000
FHERT

Revenue A 56,909
Profit for the year FRNE 4,937
Total comprehensive income for the year FRA2EBAELRE 4,937
Current assets REEE 23,548
Non-current assets FERBEE 43,998
Current liabilities nREBBE (12,141)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (6,778)
Net cash flows from operating activities KRERHMERSNEFHE 18,441
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZBAARSREFHE (8,500)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEFSMARSREFHE (392)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kR FEBWIEMNFER 9,549
SkinCentral

=3

2022 20225 HK$’000
TET

Revenue WA 48,049
Profit for the year FRANE 3,590
Total comprehensive income for the year FRA2EBAZLRE 3,590
Current assets REEE 11,058
Non-current assets FERBEE 57,326
Current liabilities wREBE (16,906)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (7,788)
Net cash flows from operating activities KRERHMERSNEFHE 12,514
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZBFARSREFHE (3,743)
Net cash flows used in financing activities mMEESMTARERE F5E (18,500)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re kR FEBWR D FHE (9,729)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

40. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 40. DRI REETK

On 31 December 2021, 55% shareholding of The GBA
Healthcare Group Limited (“GBA Healthcare Group”),
previously known as UMP Healthcare China Limited, an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was
disposed of at a consideration of HK$22 million. Subsequent to
the transaction, the Group’s shareholding in GBA Healthcare
Group decreased from 80% to 25% and the Group ceased
control over GBA Healthcare Group. As a result, GBA
Healthcare Group and its subsidiaries have become the
associates of the Group. As the disposed business is considered
as a major line of business, the corresponding operation had
been classified as a discontinued operation as a result of the

completion of disposal.

The results of these discontinued operation for the year ended

30 June 2022 are set out below:

R2021F12A318 » A QAR EEIESE
BB AR REEBEEEARAR
([REEBZEEE]  AIHEHSBGF
Bl AR A 7)6’1550/0Hx%u22§%5%ﬁ
MREDLE RRXH5%  AEEEKNE
% 28 B & B A I AR L 5 78 0% % Z=25%

MASBETEIZEHRNEEREEER - B
It RERBESERENBARE K
AEREENBENF c HRATHEME
BRERRBEFENEBRR  HENES
FHERKEEDDEADRIEEEE
ﬁ%a

HE2022F6A308 IEFE - HEDK
IFEEEENELENT

2022

20224

HK$’000

FHET

REVENUE A 6,099

Other income and gains H fth Yo A B o 5,379

Professional services expenses EERBEEA (3,571)

Employee benefit expense & B R AR X (9,374)

Cost of inventories consumed EREERAR (362)

Depreciation and amortisation e R (4,212)

Other expenses, net H th i 2 F 58 (8,025)

Finance cost A& A AR (149)

LOSS BEFORE TAX BR B Al S 15 (14,215)

Income tax expense FEHiE R -

(14,215)

Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEBERIEREEBH KR 15,412
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED ERIEEEXBNFRFNE

OPERATION 1,197
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mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

2023F6A30H
40. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 40. CRIEBEXRE )
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at 31 BEKRBEMR2021F12A318 (HEH
December 2021, the disposal date, were as follow: B MEEmENT -
Notes HK$’000
B = FAET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MRE 14 14,158
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 5,534
Investments at fair value through other R R A BEF AHMEZAKRANKE
comprehensive income 494
Deposits RiE S 2,101
Inventories FE 167
Trade receivables B 5 E WA 1,585
Prepayments, other receivables and FENFRIR - HAh REURIE K KA & B
other assets 1,272
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHEeFEY 24,349
Trade payables B 5 R FRIE (2,191)
Other payables and accruals H b e 5 N 5t B B (3,778)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) (6,121)
Amounts due to related companies JFE 1< A Bt X R FR IR (17,143)
Non-controlling interest FEIE P i an (4,086)
16,341
Gain on disposal HE 2 W 15,412
Release of reserve upon disposal H & T A% BR 1 (1,786)
29,967
Represented by: (A
Cash consideration received BEWREHKE 22,000
Fair value of the Group’s existing AEERARENRIREE
shareholding 7,967
29,967
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

2023%F6A30H
40. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 40. ERLERERHK )
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect 20211284318 (HEBH) AR
of the disposal of GBA Healthcare Group as at 31 December ERNERBREENE S RREEFEYD
2021, the disposal date were as follows: BRI FRZ AT
HK$’000
FET
Satisfied by: IATE A
Cash consideration received 2B ERE 22,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHENRERRESEEY (24,349)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in ~ BT EHBRARNEES X
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReFBWHR L FEE (2,349)
Cash flows from discontinued operation ERLEREXBHNRERE
2022
20224
HK$’000
FET
Net cash used in operating activities RETEE AR FE (5,922)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBSMABR S FE (5,415)
Net cash used in financing activities MEESFTAIR S T (2,337)
Net cash used in discontinued operation ERIFEEXEMBE S FHE (13,674)
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mEMBERRME

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$44,885,000 and HK$44,885,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
leased properties (2022: HK$125,628,000 and
HK$133,017,000).

During the year, the Group entered into tenancy
agreements in respect of certain of its medical
centres and office premises. Pursuant to the terms
of respective tenancy agreements entered into by
the Group, the Group is required to restore the
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated
in the tenancy agreements. Accordingly, a
provision for reinstatement costs in respect of
the leased properties of the Group amounting
to HK$2,557,000 (2022: HK$7,475,000) was
recognised and these costs were included as part
of the cost of the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and reflected as additions to leasehold
improvements of the Group during the current year.

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

41. mEBRERERWE

@ FEFREXRS

(i)

(i)

REAFEEAN  NEBEBER
HEMEZHERENER
BEERMEABEMNIER
AN E D Bl A44,885,000%
JC %44,885,0007% 7T (2022
% :125,628,000/ T &
133,017,000/ L) °

REAFEERN  AEERHEE
TEBHRORPEAEYES]
VHEWRE c BEAEEFA
IV ERABERHEAOGR
AEEBABHREDEEE
EHERBFTHATEAOAMEE -
Eiit EERAEERE

EEIRKAEAE2,557,000
W& I (20224F ¢ 7,475,0007%
J0) ¢ ML ERARAERAR
SEWME  BE REHEKRAR
B —ED - WRAFEE R
ABASEHRENEEENE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 41. 8B RERXMHE &)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

(c)

activities

by MEEZBHELENEESD

Lease liabilities

HESE
HK$’000
FTET
At 30 June 2021 RK2021F6H30H 78,027
Changes from financing cash flows BER SR EH (54,970)
New leases MHEE 133,017
Lease modification HEBK (848)
Rent concessions HE R (777)
Decrease arising from disposal of & — KB A EEE /R
a subsidiary (6,121)
Exchange realignment R 13
At 1 July 2022 202247 A1H 148,341
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRNE (66,389)
New leases MEE 44,885
Lease modification HEEHK (3,050)
Exchange realignment b 5, 58 & (372)
At 30 June 2023 7202346 A308 123,415

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

(0 HENRESRHAE
IARERERNHEERES AL

statement of cash flows is as follows: WREANR ¢
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TFHT
Within operating activities KEEHA 1,531 2,108
Within financing activities B & B A 66,389 54,970
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42. COMMITMENTS

42.

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end

of the reporting period:

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

S
RBEEK  REBOERAENT -

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEX FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AB R -

Medical equipment EQJ%*“{% 48,148 18,800
Computer equipment and software i mﬁ&i}\ﬁ- 2,390 2,045

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 127«1 CRER
WMRERME 29 -
Leasehold improvements HEMEEE - 1,556
50,567 22,401

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BB AR S

(@) In addition to the transactions,

arrangements and

balances detailed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the Group had the following

(@ KRULFEHRAMBERREMMTT A
LR 5 - REERERRIN - RF
A ARE SRR ETHEARR

material transactions with related parties during the year: ST :
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt = THET THET
Associates: BeE QT :
Administrative support fee income THRXEEBERA (i) 535 390
Professional services expense EERKER (ii) 3,134 2,587
Healthcare services income B ERERAUW A (i) 404 506
Joint ventures: |EQT:
Administrative support fee income THXEEKRA (i) 46 21
Professional services expense XK ER (ii) 373 376
Related companies*: 2R/
Administrative support fee income ﬁﬂl?ﬂ%%ﬂlﬁl?\ (i) 3,874 -
Lease payments/property rental and R ERS (v
related expenses )SUH 77 < 6,587 6,755
Contract healthcare solution BHBBRRERER (v)
services income E%Eﬁﬂ‘%qﬂl]\ 23,180 16,355
@ Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the = ARAETESR, /JEZRE

Company are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of

these related companies.

HARERBATNEER /%
BB -
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mE

30 June 2023

2023%6HA30H

B IS MR AR MR

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by associates and joint ventures and was
charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical
services rendered by the Group and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The lease payments/property rental and related expenses
were related to the leasing of certain medical centres or
premises for the Group’s operation and were charged at
terms stipulated in the respective tenancy agreements. Lease
payments included depreciation charge of right-of-use assets,
interest on lease liabilities and rental expense amounting to
HK$5,272,000 (2022: HK$5,831,000), HK$234,000 (2022:
HK$427,000) and HK$1,081,000 (2022: HK$497,000),
respectively. The corresponding right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as at 30 June 2023 are HK$5,135,000 (2022:
HK$8,660,000) and HK$4,106,000 (2022: HK$8,862,000),
respectively.

Contract healthcare solution services income was related
to the provision of healthcare services to the employees of
related companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT

43. BB AR Z (&)

(@)

(&)

B e

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

TR EERABRNEEIRKH
Hr B AR 75 % B 3% S IR TS AR B X
VASE 4R B8 77 48 B 19 FE HO IR SR UL ©

EXRBERIBERRAREER
Al A 7R 5 B de L O B8 R AR A AR 7%
I PAKE B8 77 48 B 169 FE HO R R AR ©

B AR 2 AR5 A B K 2 [ 4R 4
BB R RIS AE R AMRRE AR E
15 7€ B R UL & -

FEMNR WERS RIEEHAS HE
FES TEER L AEBMLEE
BEAR - WERBERE R
FIAMIERIKE - HENRBEEE
RAREEEZHESZL  HEEEZ
FMERBERZ S A A5,272,000
7T (20224 : 5,831,000/87T)
234,000 7t (20224 : 427,000
#B7T) %1,081,000/8 7T (20224 :
497,0007% 70) ° 1820236 H30
HziEEERAEEERTEERRE
2 Bl &5,135,0007% 7T (20224 -
8,660,000/ 7T) & 4,106,0007 T
(20224 : 8,862,000/ 7T) °

BRBERREBARATRRTEA
HEEBRARNESRINER
fRi2IRTSAERAIL LAAB R 77 iE B 1%
TE R IR E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other transactions with related parties
Professional services fees paid to the executive directors
of the Company in relation to the rendering of healthcare

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

43. BB AR B (@)
(b) HiEBSXS
B 7N £ B 12 1 B AR (R AR A5 1
FAAFRRTEENILRLEE

services to the Group are as follows: ol
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THETT
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael RN BREAE 4,362 4,920
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick FHFEE 3,912 4,017
8,274 8,937

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

(0 AEEETREBASHRM :

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT THIT

Short-term employee benefits % B B 12 A 24,404 18,157

Post-employment benefits BB 1R AR A 144 60
Equity-settled share-based R EE ARG

payment expense RERENRFE X 1,073 1,638

Total compensation paid to key ENEEEERAER
management personnel Z BN 4 EE 25,621 19,855

Further details of directors’” emoluments are included in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(v),
(@)(vi), (a)(vii) and (b) above also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MREFHMZE—FHBIARN
AP B RKRMEI

A B L3 (@)(v) ~ (@)vi) * (@)(vi) &
LEZBB T XS TEXLETR
AIETHAS AT ZBER S

&
op
Rl

B
S

5
i

2023F % | § SHEEERAQT
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mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 4. TRITESD %E

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial R|ERR SHRemITANKREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: K
2023 2023%
Financial assets THEE
Financial Financial assets at
assets at fair value fair value through other
throu§ profit or loss comprehensive income
BARBETARS éﬂﬁﬁﬁ%‘f}
MEMEE Etb2ERANESREE
Designated Financial
Mandatorily as such assets at
designated upon initial Deht Equity ~ amortised
assuch  recognition investments  investments cost Total
RERBAR - REH
BEEER  EEAR BB
BUARE MAAGE  EBRE  RARE  SREE L

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TEn TEn TEn TER TER

Financial assets at amortised cost &4 8 p% AR5t £ H)

TREE - - = = - -
Investments at fair value through ~ BAAEBEF AL
other comprehensive income FEBANRE - - - 36,844 = 36,844
Trade receivables BH RN - - - - 121,095 121,095
Financial assets included in STABRTE - £t
prepayments, other receivables EUFERE
and other assets BEMEREAE - - = = 44,209 44,209
Financial assets at fair value through A # B ABE
profit or loss LEREE - 29,447 - = = 29,447
Due from associates Eguﬂlﬂ#%ﬁﬂ?ﬂlﬁ - - - = 3,391 3,391
Due from a joint venture FEl—MEERRANE - - - = 50 50
Due from related companies JE R TTAIE - - - - 1,335 1,335
Cash, bank balances and deposits B4~ BITEHRIFH - - - - 290,495 290,495
- 29447 - 36,644 460575 526,866
Financial liabilities cHEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RGBSR A E
Memas
HK$’000
TER
Trade payables ZHEMNRIA 64,061
Financial liabilities included in other payables ST AE At B FRIE &
and accruals BHERNEMEE 36,074
Loans from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries B BB A R IR R AR R A E X 48,800
Due to associates JE Tk A ) AIE 1,131
Due to related companies AN NG 2,122
Lease liabilities MEEE 123,415
275,603
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5 75 R 2% Y &

30 June 2023

mE

202346 H30H
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 4. eMIT EHoE»®)
(Continued)
2022 2022
Financial assets TREE
Financial Financial assets at
assets at fair value fair value through other
through profit or loss comprehensive income
RARBEFAER BRRBEGA
MemEE EteAbANERERE
Designated Financial
Mandatorily as such assets at
designated  upon initial Debt Equity amortised
as such recognition investments  investments cost Total
N ERIERE REH
BHEE B EEAE AT ER)
BEAAHE  HFAE EHRE BARE SREE Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT TEL TEL TEL
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ fRE SN AT EH)
TRAE - - - - 18,865 18,865
Investments at fair value through &2 BE AE A
other comprehensive income 2ERARERE - - - 31,517 - 31,517
Trade receivables 2 HEWFE - = = = 81,414 81,414
Financial assets included in SIARNFE A
prepayments, other receivables WA R A
and other assets BENMSREE = = = = 46,837 46,837
Financial assets at fair value through %24 BEF AER
profit or loss zmﬁrz - 28,529 - - - 28,529
Due from associates [ AUNGE = = = = 22,999 22,999
Due from a joint venture Y —F47 5 = = - = 1,119 1,119
Due from related companies JE I AR —JT)\IE = = - = 1,446 1,446
Cash, bank balances and deposits &~ RITEBREH - - - 238,120 238,120
- 28,529 - 31,517 410,800 470,846
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REEN AT E
HeraE
HK$’000
FHL
Trade payables EC kS 39,057
Financial liabilities included in other payables .ﬁ')\ﬁ@ﬁgﬁ TIE K&
and accruals ﬁg’ﬁﬁﬁ']ipﬁﬁf\ 24,567
Due to associates BT IE 976
Due to related companies FEA A A A 2,254
Lease liabilities MEAE 148,341
215,195
2023 | BEEBREBERA
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30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. TRMTEMNAREBERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEH
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEENTREE (RAERAAREE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are EEEENEREERIN MEREER
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: NAEENT
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DNREE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20224 2023 20224

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$’000
TERT TAT TERT TAT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised R KA 2
cost & EEE
— Listed debt investments —tHEBRE - 18,865 - 15,493

Investments at fair value through %2 7 BEFT A EAth
other comprehensive income 2 & W A% E

— Unlisted equity investments ~ —3F E IR A& 5,167 3,885 5,167 3,885
— Listed equity investment — ERAREKE 31,677 27,632 31,677 27,632
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFAER
through profit or loss ML B EE
— Listed equity investments — ETlRARIEE 1,654 1,806 1,654 1,806
— Unlisted but quoted —JFETMEFRE
investment funds HIRERES 27,793 26,723 27,793 26,723
66,291 78,911 66,291 75,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, other financial assets included in prepayments
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, lease liabilities, balances
with associates, related companies, joint ventures and
non-controlling interests approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities/repayable on demand
of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is based on price
quoted by financial institutions with reference to quoted price
in an active market of the listed securities comprising the fund
portfolio being valued.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments are estimated
based on either the market approach or recent market
transaction price. The market approach is based on price
multiple determined with reference to comparable public
companies and includes appropriate risk adjustments for lack
of marketability.

45.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

ERMITENAABERAAE
BEH @
EEECITRSRESSEY - BT
BEH - BIREWRIE 85 EMNKE -
S ATERT OB R U B S A
RBE - s AHAMENRIERET B A
MemEaE MEAE BBR2AF -
B AT - A8 AT R I RAE S
HBHALBERREREMRS  TBH
ME T AREEBEREIE,REREE
HEFEYEL REK -

TREENBENOABEKEERS
7 (MIFRAHBREE) RERRZ ST
RB|ZTENESBEAR - BEA TS
ERBREFTAAEE:

EBRAREBRENAABEERA
M5 HEETE -

FLETREESH AR BERENER
HENRE T2EBRABENES
AN LEMESEERMIZHRE -

FLETRAREZ AABEDIERTS
RHTEIR M EEITREE - MIHEN
B2ENELR EM AR REERERER
EEEMELEERRAEMEEZ
EREHEAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

45. TR TENAIAEBERAIAE

BER @)
TR N2023F £2022F6 4308 &
BT EMENEARNT ISR A SUEE

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis as at 30 June 2023 and 2022:

R & BRE DT -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
EER M EXTUBERAEE gE AREEHBASEZHBE
As at 30 June 2023:
7202356A300 :
Unlisted equity Market approach  Enterprise value- to-EBITDA  1.04 to 12.52 10% increase/decrease in EV/
investments multiple (“EV/EBITDA EBITDA multiple would result in
multiple”) increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$527,000/HK$527,000.
EETRAKE 5% PEEEHBITDAGH 1.04212.52 EV/EBITDAEEUE 1,/ 2 10%1%
(TEV/EBITDAE&1]) LR 5 BEEM/H 527,000
B IT,/527,0008 T °
Discount for lack of 20% to 40% 10% increase/decrease in DLOM
marketability (“DLOM”) would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$368,000/
HK$368,000.
RAEH TR 20%E40% R R N, 10%H5
([ RERE YR RERARBERD/HEM368,000
5 7T,//368,000/8 7T °
Discount for lack of control  nil to 20% 10% increase/decrease in DLOC
(“DLOC") would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$117,000/
HK$117,000.
R I & EZ20% MM HIEHTRIE I,/ B 10%5
(T RER IR E]) RERRBERD/HEM17,000
;‘%75/1 17,0007 ©
Control Premium nil to 25% 10% increase/decrease in
control premium would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$94,000/HK$94,000.
R E EE)5% RIS BN, HA10%5E

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

45. TRTENAAEBERAIAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEER @
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
fEE R EXTABERAEE gE AABEHBABEZHRE
As at 30 June 2022:
7202256 A308 :
Unlisted equity Market approach  Enterprise value- to-EBITDA ~ 1.17 to 13.26 10% increase/decrease in EV/
investments multiple (“EV/EBITDA EBITDA multiple would result in
multiple”) increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$460,000/ HK$460,000.
FEEMRARE m5E R EBEHEBITDABE 1.17213.26 EV/EBITDA fEEE M,/ H10%:
(TEV/EBITDAE &1 ]) LB R BEZM,/H 460,000
/%m/46o,ooo,%rc °
Discount for lack of 20% to 40% 10% increase/decrease in DLOM
marketability (“DLOM") would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$265,000/
HK$265,000.
RO AT R 20%Z40% R BT RE M, R 10%E
(TR EEEYTE] LEDABERMD /1B M265,000
B IT,/265,0008 7T °
Discount for lack of control  nil to 20% 10% increase/decrease in DLOC
(“DLOC") would result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$95,000/$95,000.
RO I 2 EZ20% MJH %M’é%ﬁ%i“ m/ B 10%
(T RER IR E]) LH AR BERD, /95,0005
7c/ 95,000/ 7T °
Control Premium nil to 25% 10% increase/decrease in
control premium would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$76,000/$76,000.
EHERE EED5% BEHIEREEN/HD10%5H

2023F5 | F

HRARBEEM, FL76, ooo,%
7t,/76,00075 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023

2023%6HA30H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. EMIENIABERAIAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BER @)
Fair value hierarchy RARBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TR AEESRT AN ABER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EFR:
Assets measured at fair value: BAREBEFTENEE :
As at 30 June 2023 M2023%F6H30H

Fair value measurement using
ARBEEFERANEE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERmE EATERE EXFTEE
BE [IPN ¢ WAYE

(25—8) (2=8) (5=8) B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THT TET TET
Investments at fair value through &2 # BEF AE A
other comprehensive income: Z2HBARIKRE :
— Unlisted equity investments —FELETRARKRE - - 5,167 5,167
— Listed equity investment —EmBRAKRE 31,677 - - 31,677
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABRED
through profit or loss TREE
— Listed equity investments — FRARE 1,654 - - 1,654
— Unlisted but quoted investment ~ —3F E BB RED
funds BEES = 27,793 = 27,793
33,331 27,793 5,167 66,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. TR TENAREBERAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEH

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) MABEERE)
Assets measured at fair value: BARBENENEE:
As at 30 June 2022 7202296 H30H

Fair value measurement using
DREEFEFANEE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
mEME  EAUBE EATAUEER
RIE BABE BARE
(5—B) ($-F) (=B a3
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT TET

Investments at fair value through AR EEFFAEAM

other comprehensive income: Z2HBARIKRE :
- Unlisted equity investments —FLTRARKRE - - 3,885 3,885
— Listed equity investment —EERAKRE 27,632 - - 27,632
Financial assets at fair value BAREEFTABZN
through profit or loss TREE
— Listed equity investments — L IRARKRE 1,806 - - 1,806
- Unlisted but quoted investment ~ —3E FT{EGREM
funds KERAS - 26,723 - 26,723
29,438 26,723 3,885 60,046
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value REN eREEF—EHE_ELH
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets WEAREBETSER (20224 &) -
(2022: Nil). The movements in fair value measurements within FE-BANAABEFENZSHNT :
Level 3 are as follows:
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Equity investments at fair value through BARBEFARELER
other comprehensive income: WARBRARIRE :
At 1 July R7A1H 3,885 5,367
Purchase EE - =
Disposal b - (494)
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in other A E fth 2 T M A T BB A
comprehensive income AR EERR/(F]) 1,282 (988)
At 30 June K6 H30H 5,167 3,885
2023FH | BABBEREBRAR 291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

45.

46.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED |

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 30 June 2022 and 2023.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they

are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

With respect to listed equity and debt investments, the Group
purchases and holds them only through various creditworthy

financial institutions.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 30 June. For listed debt
investments, the Group also monitors them by using external
credit ratings and ensures that investments are only made in
debts meeting a certain credit rating to minimise credit risk.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT
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46.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. i EREEEERBE ®)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERMK (&)
As at 30 June 2023 720235 6H30H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 5
FEER 2HESEEES
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
P Ex1 P Ex2 P& ER3 fE1L % &t

HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Financial assets at amortised — #Z# 55K Azt £ 8

cost: SREE :

- Normal —IE® - - = = =
Trade receivables* B 5 FE W R IE - - = 121,095 121,095
Financial assets included STATERFRIE -« A

in prepayments, other FE Wk IE R At

receivables and other assets ~ BEH LM EE

— Normal** = IEG= 44,209 - - = 44,209
Due from associates JiE Wi Bt & A B 5118

— Not yet past due = ﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁ 3,391 - = = 3,391
Due from a joint venture B —R&ER ﬂt 18 50 = = = 50
Due from related companies & U BE % D 7]

- Not yet past due = lﬁﬂiﬁ%@ 1,335 = = = 1,335
Cash, bank balances and Be RITEHRK

deposits EZ

- Not yet past due — A AR 8 EA 290,495 - = - 290,495

339,480 - - 121,095 460,575
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. I EREEEERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (%)
As at 30 June 2022 1202256 H30H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A EH
EEER 2HBRHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
=329 P B2 P B3 BLE GE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TAT TAET TET TAT

Financial assets at amortised 12 $5p N 5t 2 8

cost: CREE

- Normal =IEG 18,865 - - - 18,865
Trade receivables* 5 & Yo skaEx = = - 81,414 81,414
Financial assets included STATER IR « HAh

in prepayments, other FE Wk e H At

receivables and other assets ~ BEH L R EE

— Normal** —EE* 46,837 = - - 46,837
Due from associates & it Bt & 1A B 5108

— Not yet past due —mAREH 22,999 - - - 22,999
Due from a joint venture EW—EAERRFE 1,119 - - - 1,119
Due from related companies  Ji& Uiz 8 B A 7] 208

— Not yet past due — M AREH 1,446 = - - 1,446
Cash, bank balances and He HBOEHRK

deposits EZ

- Not yet past due —EAREH 238,120 - - - 238,120

329,386 - ~ 81,414 410,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

w For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note

24 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 11% (2022: 14%) and 36%
(2022: 36%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,

respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors

the Group’s working capital requirements regularly.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H
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o FEATRNFOR - EfhEKTIR R EME E
MEeRMEECERERNEYEBHA
VEEHBIZESREEB VS HER
EEERRAEERNENEREIER] -
B ERMEEZEEERRUEIFE] -

AEEELBEHRUEFENEER
WD%&*&%%%%&%F%GW%
WA M 24

%ﬁiﬁi-ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ¢
CEAAREENE S EWRIES
%Iﬁ11%&2022ﬁ5-uwa)&36%(2022
F:36%) BAERRAEERANER AR

AREBABRIE o

B B
AEBEENEREREERAREHNE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

46.

BHEEREEEBRREE @)

/}Ibibﬁnm (it
RI|BEHIR - AEBIRE HRRERM K

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ETHNErREBEINHBERAEINMAT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2023
2023F
Less than 1to5 More than
On demand 1 year years 5 years Total
REREE  OSRF 125 5L At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER TER FTHET
Trade payables B 5’ RIA 979 63,082 = = 64,061
Financial liabilities included & A E Ato & 1< 5008 K
in other payables and EAERMNEREE
accruals 36,074 - - - 36,074
Loans from non-controlling 3 & /& A 7] JE42 %
shareholders of subsidiaries ~ B& R & 48,800 = = = 48,800
Due to related companies & 5 BA B 2 Rl KR 2,122 - - - 2,122
Due to associates NE A —NEIF O] 1,131 - = = 1,131
Lease liabilities HEBE = 63,860 64,678 540 129,078
89,106 126,942 64,678 540 281,266
2022
20224
Less than Tto5
On demand 1 year years Total
RERER PR1E 1854 A&t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET FHET
Trade payables B RENRE 364 38,693 - 39,057
Financial liabilities included in S E A RE TR K
other payables and accruals EHERNERMARE 24,567 = - 24,567
Due to related companies FE < BB A B 3K IE 2,254 = = 2,254
Due to associates JIE {5} Bgh & 1) B ZRR 976 = = 976
Lease liabilities HERE - 66,603 88,361 154,964
28,161 105,296 88,361 221,818

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2023 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital structure in order to support
its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The Group
primarily funds its operations by cash generated from operating
activities. As at 30 June 2023, the Group did not have any

bank borrowings or outstanding bank loans (2022: nil).

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

e B ISR R M R

30 June 2023
2023%F6H30H

6. ¥BEREEEFERBEE®

BEXRER
AEBEAEENEZARAREARAS
EFBCENEE N T HEEBRENEARSE
B U RHEEB R ARREIERANE
B AEEFZEALEEHEELENR
EREEZERHTES - M2023F6H30
A ANEEWEFARITEESRARER
FITER (202246 : 48) o

REBBRBEERRE(CRAREEN
R EHERE R AREREERERE - A
HTFREMRE  REEARN TR
TTHRTRRAD o 2N & B30 1 52 (AT SN 3D e N
BB AR ZRIFER - MELZE2023F6H30
H&2022F6A30H IEFE - EAERE
B BEKBEFWRELELT -
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o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RS R R M R

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

7. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

47. KR

7] B 35 iR % &

BENBRERRANRRFTBEMRRENE
RSN

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments at fair value through other BAREERFA
comprehensive income Hith 2 HKRARKE 31,677 27,632
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 31,677 27,632
CURRENT ASSETS ﬁbﬁ?
Prepayments and other receivables T A~ TR IE K H th & YRR IR 251 436
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKNATTENESREE - 18,865
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEF AEZH
profit or loss TRIEE 27,793 26,723
Due from subsidiaries N NETE ] 478,074 464,143
Cash, bank balances and deposits R |ITHERRIFK 88,208 34,161
Total current assets mEEEER 594,326 544,328
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENA R
Other payables and accruals Hth F& A 5R8 K B 5T & B 111 555
Due to subsidiaries XN NGTE 51,652 29,700
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 51,763 30,255
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBNE EFRE 542,563 514,073
Net assets BEFH 574,240 541,705
EQUITY s
Issued capital B EITRA 811 793
Reserves (note) 1 (M) 573,429 540,912
Total equity B 574,240 541,705

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2023 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

30 June 2023

2023F6A30H
7. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. 21 B B AR R R ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes: B 3
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARFEHERZENT
Shares held
Share under the  Share-hased
premium  share award payment Fair value Retained
account scheme reserve reserve profits Total
RH%R UBRG A
SEET -4 3:4 ARERE
RHEER RENKRS DR it BERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THL TETL TATL THT TATL
(note 37) (note 38)
(M&E37)  (MHEss)
At 1 July 2021 R2021%7A18 409,015 (14,693) 46,984 (10,946) 84,088 514,448
Profit for the year ERF]E - - - - 35,809 35,809
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMEZERA
Changes in fair value of equity investments BAR {“fﬁﬁ)\ﬁm%ﬁl&)\ﬂ’]
at fair value through other comprehensive mexﬁ oYL
income - - - 11,766 - 11,766
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERALE - - = 11,766 35,809 47,575
Final 2021 dividend 2021F KBRS - - = - (21,438) (21,438)
Interim 2022 dividend 202265 B E = = = = (11,739) (11,739)
Transfer upon disposal of equity securities RNERAR WEEU\%@
designated at fair value through other EERANBAE S RER
comprehensive income = = = (306) = (300)
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend BOIRAURERERE 13,490 (272) = = = 13,218
Purchases of shares for the share award i RE BB ERD
scheme - (157) - - - (157)
Equity-settled share-based payment INEREENURAAERN
arrangements [N §7er = 558 (23,609) = 22,362 (689)
At30 June 2022 and 1 July 2023 720226 A308 %202357R1H 422,505 (14,564) 23,375 514 109,082 540,912
Profit for the year ERFIE = = = = 50,975 50,975
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZEEE:
Changes in fair value of equity investments BOABEGFALMZARAL
at fair value through other comprehensive RARENALBEED
income - - - 4,586 - 4,586
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERALE - - - 4,586 50,975 55,561
Final 2022 dividend 2025 RABRE = = = = (23,481) (23,481)
Interim 2023 dividend 203FHHRE - - = - (13,593) (13,593)
Transfer upon disposal of equity securities REERTERARAABEH AL
designated at fair value through other EERANBAE S KBS
comprehensive income - - - (94) 94 -
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend BOROURERERE 14,246 (299) = = = 13,947
Purchases of shares for the share award SR REFEBERD
scheme - (2,537) - - - (2,537)
Equity-settled share-based payment INER B URD AERHN
arrangements [hE§7er = 1,580 (7,205) = 8,245 2,620
At 30 June 2023 #2023%6A308 436,751 (15,820) 16,170 5,006 131,322 573,429
2023 | BEEBREBERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2023
2023%6HA30H

48.

49.

NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO

YEAR END
On 31 August 2023, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong has resigned from the

board of director in The GBA Healthcare Group Limited and
the Group lost its significant influence over GBA Healthcare
Group. As a result, the investment in GBA Healthcare Group
and its subsidiaries are no longer accounted for as an associate
and has been reclassified as investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income from investments in associates.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 September
2023.
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48.

49.

FHEARFAREENRE

R2023F8A31H KR TEAREE
RARERBEESBARARNESSHNE
HoBEAEBAEEHANERERES
EERARNERTEN - Al - KK
EBREEEEARARLKENBAAN
"ETBARABE AR @ WE B R
ERRNREETHBEEIRAREBER
AEMEZEBANKZE -

HEGRSVBERR

FEAEMERERN2023F9 421 A EES
G HEE R IR RE TR o



A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M BHE

AEERBEARYRFENREREE

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, BE&IFIZHEZME (FBirE B A MEEZ

as extracted from the published audited financial statements and

restated as appropriate, is set out below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
mERE

MBmERSEEHWED) HIIWT -

Year ended 30 June

HZ6H30BLLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FExT FAET FABT FAT T T
Continuing operations FEEEER
Revenue WA 727,167 665,859 616,361 553,128 564,897
Profit before tax B A4 AT ) B 64,365 85,980 90,357 90,988 39,175
Income tax expense FriS i & A (8,630) (11,946) (19,780) (13,034) (14,696)
Profit for the year from KEFELLEERED
continuing operations F AR E 55,735 74,034 70,577 77,954 24,479
Profit/(loss) for the year B R E TR
from discontinued FERFE(EE)
operation - 1,197 (39,040) (17,644) (4,930)
Profit for the year F AT 55,735 75,231 31,537 60,310 19,549
Attributable to: IAT&FHEN :
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE 2N 60,452 72,168 34,834 58,915 12,798
Non-controlling interests JEIE PR RE RS (4,717) 3,063 (3,297) 1,395 6,751
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
As at 30 June
MH6HA30H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20205 20194
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT F& T FAT FATT
Total assets 4aEE 1,121,254 1,037,601 969,977 891,307 842,100
Total liabilities BLEE 351,535 300,296 276,921 220,800 156,138
Net assets BEFE 769,719 737,305 693,056 670,507 685,962
Equity attributable to: IATRTT IR
Owners of the Company KANBER A 740,547 698,653 639,498 611,846 612,995
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR fE 29,172 38,652 53,558 58,661 72,967
Total equity T &5 % 5R 769,719 737,305 693,056 670,507 685,962

2023%F 3% | BABKEEARAA
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GLOSSARY
Al B

“2023 AGM”
[2023F R RBEFAE |

“Affiliated Clinic(s)”
[ B B 2 Frr |

“Affiliated Doctor”,
“Affiliated Dentist”,
“Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers”

(BB (BB TR -

(B B 4 B BRI 4R 11

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”

RN EARNCIESEUN

“Audit Committee”
[BxZEeg]

“Auxiliary Services”

[ %5 Bh BR 75 |

“Auxiliary Services Provider”

[ &5 B) AR 75 LR 4t =&
//BBSN
[R5 2 %= |

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 24 November
2023
AREFKR2023F11 H240 (2R E) BTNREFAE

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members

WIHMAEELLEC KBS E K ENEER L 5 ARG 815K 8 2 HERER
B TRRTS RS B RIS 2 P

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/Auxiliary Services Provider(s) who has/have entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to Plan
Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement, has/have
received or will receive an amount from the Group based on the volume of Plan
Members treated

BRI eEREEANSBEI v RENMETEIK B RERL B BRE B ERE &k
BEREZHFTEKEREMASERNRENEE T8 HYRGIRME

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company currently in force
BATEME AR BREET RESI R EAR

the audit committee of the Board

EFgB I ER%Ee

includes physiotherapy, traditional Chinese medicine, vision care and optometry
and child health assessment

BEDELRE PE RMUEEEBAARZERRERTG

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group
as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical Centres in
accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the
Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers

ERFHEERERNEEZ I RERIARE B A SE BT 6B R 15 3 0 R R B
SEBPLOAREHD RSN RGIRME U RBBHBRERME

Bronze Bauhinia Star
MEFEE
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“Board”

=3

“Chairman”

[EFE]

“Chief Executive Officer” or
//CEO//

[1TER A

“COVID-19”

[ kRS

“Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees”

[EEETESFRZHH TR ]

“Company”

[ARRA]

“Contract Customers”

“Corporate Governance Code”
[ EAsT Al

“CR Medical”

[EE B EE]

“CTFE”
[ARE
“CT Scan”

4 B

GLOSSéRl
Al B

the board of Directors

g

the chairman of the Board

EXEER

the chief executive officer of the Company
RRBITRABRE

means coronavirus disease 2019, a disease caused by a novel virus designated as
severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2

2019BMRARBHRRE - —EARBARESUETRASGSSEERAS2OHMILRKE
Sl R R

the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees adopted by the
Company
ARRFIRANESETESF R ZHNETER

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014
e BBEBARAR  R2014F 1M ASEREFSHSEOZEMAINERAF]

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for Plan
Members
EREIBEAENENEFRERBMNERAKETLEEFENRBRARREE
B AR T

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

E R BIT T HATE e B R E R ST R

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1515)

EEBFERARAR  RASHSEMALERERXAER EMNBRAE (KX
5% < 1515)

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Hong Kong with limited liability
FARBEEBBR QR REFEEFZMRINER D

computed tomography scan, a medical imaging technique used in radiology to get
detailed images of the body non-invasively for diagnostic purposes

BEREERE ENHE2TN—RBREEXEEMN  AREAMMES ARNFAR
BIAE D B A &

&
i)
PR

B
S

2023F5 | F =¥

5
i

B AR AF
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GLOSSARY
Al B

“Dental” or “Dental Services”

[t sk [ 7 B AR 75
“Dentists”

[ 7] % |
“Directors”
[E=]

“Doctors”

(884 |

“EPS”
[T ]

“FY2019”
[20198F R [Z |

“FY2020”
[20208F B [ |

“FY2021”
[2021 81 B [E |

“FY2022"
[2022BF B [ |

“FY2023"
[2023B8F BRF [Z |

“General Practitioners” or “GPs”

[2R 8L

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and secondary
dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics, implants and whitening
BRERERNTHRE (WRTF R ARE _EFRRE (MATERTHE - AELE
B EERITEEA)

dentist who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated Dentists
ERFHEERERNEEZ R RRER AR B A SE E AT 6B R 15 2 60 R B
BEBHOARES MR E - AN E T &

directors of the Company

ARAES

doctors who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to
provide Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the
terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group and the Affiliated Doctors
ERANEEREAKRERE SERIARIREARSEZRFT /R 1 80 R B
AEBHLOAREBERENEL  UNBER

Earnings per share
SREF

the financial year ended 30 June 2019
BE2019F6A30R LI BFE

the financial year ended 30 June 2020
HZE2020F6 8308 LB FE

the financial year ended 30 June 2021
B E2021F6A30R LI BFE

the financial year ended 30 June 2022
HZE2022F68308 L KEFE

the financial year ended 30 June 2023
B E2023F6 A30H L HFE

Doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of contact
for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to the appropriate
specialists or services required

EXE2RIRNELE REC/ARERHEAZH  AEAFARERTREENZ
EEEAFER RS
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“Global Offering” or “IPO”

[2HBEEIHERAREE]

“Greater Bay Area”

BN A

“Group”, “we”, “UMP” or
“UMP Healthcare Group”

EX ARG TR
[MABK A BABHKEE]

“Healthcare Ventures”

[ Healthcare Ventures |

//HK$1/
[l

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ &8 NOR PT i R B AR 18 AR A%

“Hong Kong & Macau Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services”

(BB RRPIEEERRE
FRIRTT R IRTE

//JP//
[ K41

GLOSSéRl
Al B

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and outside
the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation
S, the details of which are set out in the section headed “Structure of the Global
Offering” of the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015
ARBABEABRALRERBESHAEXZBRINBMEIZDEERD  FHEHR
AAA2015F 11 AI7ENARRBRER2HREEMNRE] — T

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, a geographical region of
China comprising Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Foshan, Huizhou, Dongguan,
Zhongshan, Jiangmen, Zhaoqing, the Special Administrative Regions of Hong
Kong and Macau for the purposes of this document

BERANER  BAXMHME REM R ZKE - L B RE BT
F- 2B - B85 HI7TBUR KRR B 1T B R AT 4B A /0 o B 4 3 [ 35

the Company and its subsidiaries

KRB REKEBRR

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTFE

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited * R& & B E 2 A & A GIEEM K ZH AR A
A BRARBNEZRREAARBEENZENE QA

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEEREERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REFE B AIITRE

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and
Macau
REE FLORPIR B & B & fe f iR R B8R R E RS

provision of corporate healthcare solutions services in Hong Kong and Macau

REE RORPIR MM DR BERREFRTT RRG

Justice of the Peace

At

&
i)
PR

B
S

2023F5 | F =¥

5
i

B AR AF
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GLOSSARY
Al B

“Listing Date”
==l

“Listing Rules”

[Em AR

“Macau”

[RFT ]

“Mainland China” or “PRC”
[P E A 3 [E
“Mainland China Clinical

Healthcare Services”

AP B8 P 3t e R 8 8% R 0 AR 7%

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

[88 5% ) ok [ B8 /% AR 75
“Model Code”
EEEE

“MRI”

[ 0 KRR ]

“PET-CT”

[ 1E % F I &7 2 17 1 |

“Pinyu”

[am 4]

27 November 2015
201511 H278

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B X FreE s £ AR A

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
o BUR PIH BI1T R 8

the People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

REARKMNME (RAHREMS - TEEFE  BRFAKEE
provision of clinical healthcare services to self-paid patients in Mainland China
RPBEALR S EBERTERBRRERYE

include general practice and specialist practice
EREENMBEELRENER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
ETRANME TS LT RTABEETETESFIZNELETR

magnetic resonance imaging, a procedure that uses magnetism, radio waves, and
a computer to create images of areas inside the body

MAOREKG T RBEA#) ERERVNERKAZFBATRITENIIE
=2

positron emission tomography-computed tomography, a nuclear medicine
technique which combines, in a single gantry, a positron emission tomography
(PET) scanner and an x-ray computed tomography (CT) scanner, to acquire
sequential images from both devices in the same session, which are combined into
a single superposed (co-registered) image

FEFEFEREERH 2 FRSBURESEETHFHERHES (PET) &
XNEMEERERSR (CT) ER-—AERUEMBEEREFINEELBZZEZR
BERE—BNREE)FH

Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Medical

MW BRAR RERBRABEEZIMAZINERAE  RARREIERRE
Y REFBENREZEZ2ENBERA
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“Plan Members”

&8I E |

“Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”
[BRAFESEBERERTS

“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”
[B R F 3% & Al iR AR AT 3

“Remuneration Committee”

(FNEZEE]

“RMB"
TAR®]

“SBS”
[REFES]

“Self-paid Patients”
(BEEE]

“Share Award Scheme”

[ A% 0 22 &t &1 )
“Share(s)”
37

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3]

GLOSSéRl
Al B

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically

include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of corporations

and/or their dependants

ZIKEIJL% SEREEATENE  —K
BER/HHEKE

BREEBERBRERAARKEDN

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Company on 2
November 2015
ARAR2015F 1T A2BHERFANE R AREERBIRES

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 18
August 2015
EEZgMN2015F8 18 #/E RIRMH B R A F & pBAES &

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeBETHFMEZES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEEEEBARE

Silver Bauhinia Star

b++E|:z

R 5 2
patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pays for

services using cash or credit card

IAKRERENBABRTLONRLERARESIEARINRBEERNES

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June 2016
EEEMN2016F6A30R fL/E RRMAN Bt LER) 5T Bl

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of
the Company

AR B RS F IR E{E0.001 7% T 8 & i IR
holder(s) of Share(s)

B A A
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GLOSSARY
Al B

“specialist practice” or
“specialist services”

[ER B8R ERIRT]

“Stock Exchange”

[ B 22 B |
“UMP Medical Centre(s)”
[ B & B A5 AR O

“UMP Network”

[UMP43 4% |

ey

[ %]

the range of specialist practice offered by UMP, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine,
Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine,
Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology,
Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology (ENT),
Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology, Respiratory Medicine, Rheumatology
and Urology, an updated list of which is available on www.ump.com.hk
BEBBKRERN-—RINENEER 2R LOER  KER AW - BERRE R
BREBE  BERITEE - B@INE - A BRE - ER  BEHNE - B
ER R ERRAIER  BERWMER - B NI SR HIRAR
J2\ )R Bt B PR} - 48 5B ETE B Bwww.ump.com.hk = 7] & 3]

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARGMERAA

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary
Services which is/are operated by the Group

RUBERERY  TEREE AHEPHRBEOEHHL - ARAEELE

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and (ii)
Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but each of which
has entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members
BROVAKEKENBBHEPORMNEBD MM (LB AKEEENDH - S
BERAEBIT L BRAMEIKEREBERY - TERSE R REBRE)

per cent

Aot
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¥ : business@ump.com.hk
¢, : (+852) 2824 0231

: (+852) 2511 1152

@ : https://www.ump.com.hk

UMP Healthcare
Official Youtube Channel
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